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Highlights 2

OVERVIEW

China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) are a leading provider in the
vocational training education in China in terms of average students
enrolled and revenue generated for the year ended 31 December
2020. Our business focuses on providing innovative vocational
training education to students to increase their employability in the
ever-changing employment market, as well as supporting China’s
evolving workforce requirements driven by its sustained economic
growth, urbanization and industrial upgrade.

Our vocational training education mainly covers four industry
sectors, namely, culinary arts, information technology and internet
technology, auto services as well as fashion & beauty. We
serve these four industry sectors under seven renowned school
brands, namely New East Culinary Education, Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology Education,
Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion & Beauty
Education. As of 31 December 2020, we operated 206 schools
and centers with 133,310 average number of students enrolled
and customers registered for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Our comprehensive nationwide school network covers 29 of the 31
provinces in mainland China and Hong Kong.
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Our brands

SEE T mhE

i Culinary |
& i -

. A

= REE

Ownick @ RRZHR
BRKS HEERE
Comprehensive cuisine training programs High-quality western style catering education

including eight Chinese regional cuisines and providing specialized culinary training

western culinary skills

Customized catering experience centers
providing customized catering experience

=0 S R A i B services to customers who are interested in
ZHEATIEIIRE " ?giﬁ:g ;ﬁ;&{ijﬁﬁ cooking or who plan to establish their own
G LAV Ty ey sk . businesses in the catering industry
'ﬁ‘ 63,500 1 m\ 4,708

FAATEELT SRRSO
R TR RN BRI TERL A K
REWEPIREHALAGT I B 5B ARTS

'ﬁ‘ 1,012

) ®fi { 5 z=
L BRI WISEZONE =20k
Information technology & internet technology training
providing a wide range of information technology and internet
technology related courses
15 BB B BB A B 45 5|
R — RIS B R B B R

Data technology education
cultivating professional data
technology engineers
DT A ol

EEEEYERIT TR

'ﬁ 41,3891 'ﬁ‘ 7581

w ABiISENS D @S GEIE ]

on-mind fashion & beauty education
Auto-related skills training
focusing on providing practical training on
auto repair skills and other auto services
AR R R
FIRMTERBEREREMTERENHE

Fashion & beauty skills training
focusing on cultivating high skills
fashion & beauty professionals
SIEES e =
EIRBRSREREEEAT

'ﬁ‘ 21,7891 'ﬂ' 1541

Note 1:  Average number of students enrolled/customers registered for the year ended 31 December 2020
Hrat1 o BZE2020512 431 H EFEHFEEIIAR BT AR
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The following chart sets forth the information of our seven school

brands as of 31 December 2020:

Segments
i

Culinary Arts
TR

Information Technology and
Internet Technology
R BRI R B AR

Auto Services

RERK
Fashion & Beauty
RHEE
TOTAL

ait

Brands

i

New East

wRA

K Ovick

h =

Cuisine Academy ' ]
£HEp BEERE I

Xinhua Internet )// %ﬁ ERRHE

%ﬁ%%&ﬂ XINHUA COMPUTER EDUCATION

TE#E#IEZE2020F12 A31 BRI+ EZ2
R ER

Wisezone WISEZON= =585 "
EEZER

Wontone w ABSENS
. WONTONE AUTOMOTIVE EDUCATION
g8

On-mind D@ EREFmHEEWHE
= é’,i on-mind fashion & beauty education
BE5
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Average number of

students enrolled/

customers

No. of schools/  registered for the
centers in year ended
operation as of 31 December 2020
31 December 2020 HZ2020%
12020 12318
12A318 IL5E
BEETH FENAR/
Ll 1= EFEMAZ
64 63,500

35 4,708

20 1,012

31 41,389

22 758

33 21,789

1 154

206 133,310




KEY MILESTONE
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Year

FH
1988-2005
19884 £20054F

2007
20074

2012
20124

2015
20154

2016
20164

2017
20174

June 2019

201946 A

January 2020
202041 H

2020

20204

Event

=4

Established New East Culinary Education, Xinhua
Wontone Automotive Education.
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Internet Technology Education and

PRIHTER T REIHE - MEERBE RBRTEHE -

The number of our schools in operation reached 27.
B BB B B 27Ff -

The number of our schools in operation reached 40.
BER BB EF40FT

The number of our schools in operation reached 71, and we expanded our business to

Hong Kong.

BEMNERMBEZEINN YEBBEREEE

Egtablished Omick Eduqation of Western Cuisine an
A BOR BT R AEHE ©

Established Cuisine Academy.
PRI SRR ©

o

d Pastry.

The Company’s shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 12 June 2019 (the “Listing”).

ARARRNA2019F6 A12BEEBHMERFMAR AR ([BRMA]) TR LD (ML
ml) e

HKE X
TEXEAM
Welcomes the Listing of
China East Education Holdings Limited

PERAHEERAERAS

(Stock C@e: 667)

Egtablish On-mind Fashipn & Beauty Education.
PR B & RS I E R -

The number of our schools and centers in operation reached 206 including 64 schools

under New East Culinary Education, 35 schools

under Omick Education of Western

Cuisine and Pastry, 20 centers under Cuisine Academy, 31 schools under Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, 22 schools under Wisezone Data Technology Education, 33
schools under Wontone Automotive Education and 1 school under On-mind Fashion &

Beauty Education.

PR A PEESEFTERR KRS B P EE 208 L

EERER NP OBE ZDI206FT - BIEIIRITRERE FRECAPTER - BURS TR

EBIUH B PTES1PTEN - EEER

JRDT A A BN EI A EE22 T 2R - BRI EHE FESSMER R ST MEEXHE

FREE1FRT o
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Revenue WA

Gross profit EH

Profit before taxation B IR NE]
Net profit for the year FALEF
Adjusted net profit EEEeal

Adjusted EBITDA @

Net assets
Total assets

BEFE
BEE

Adjusted net profit was derived from the net profit for the year
excluding the effect of (i) non-cash share-based payment expenses;
(i) the net foreign exchange losses/gains; and (jii) the non-recurring
Listing expenses. This is not Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards measure. For details, please refer to the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Adjusted
Net Profit and adjusted EBITDA” in this report.

Adjusted EBITDA was derived from the adjusted net profit for the
year excluding finance costs, income tax expenses, and depreciation
expenses. This is not Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
measure. For detalils, please refer to the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — Financial Review — Adjusted Net Profit and
Adjusted EBITDA” in this report.
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Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
(RMB miillion) (RMB million)
(AR¥BEERT) (AREBEED
3,649 3,905
1,969 2,280
444 1,070
258 848
500 900
1,436 1,797
As at
i
31 December 31 December
2020 2019
2020F 20194
12A31H 12H31H
(RMB miillion) (RMB million)
(AR¥EEBT) (ARBEED
6,040 6,120
9,821 9,678

IR TR IBE MR - SIBR(AIER
SRR ERG IR  ()FE N Yam
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15 E2HAAREERE AT — &
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AR —#T -

AR B BT E RS A m M AR R A
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Chairman’s Statement X E#H%E

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”)
of China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”),
| hereby present the annual report of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2020.

OVERVIEW

Year 2020 is a special year in the development of the Group. In
the face of the outbreak arrival of the COVID-19 pandemic, the
Group united as one to overcome the difficulties and strived to set
foot on the path of leapfrog development in order to make steady
progress in overall development, delivering results that can endure
the essence of time.

REVIEW OF RESULTS

1. For the year ended 31 December 2020, with the Group’s
operating efficiency affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, its
main operating revenue was approximately RMB3,649 million,
representing a year-on-year decrease of 6.6% as compared
to year 2019. Net profit for the year ended 31 December
2020 was approximately RMB258 million, representing a
year-on-year decrease of 69.6% as compared to year 2019;
the adjusted net profit for the year ended 31 December 2020
was approximately RMB500 million, representing a year-
on-year decrease of 44.4% as compared to year 2019.
The number of new students enrolled and new customers
registered for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
145,472, representing a year-on-year decrease of 4.7%.

2. During 2020, 29 additional schools recruited students and
came into operation, bringing the total number of schools to
206. 28 schools, including Hengyang New East, Changchun
Xinhua Computer, Xuzhou Wontone Automotive, Shantou
Omick, and Changsha Fashion & Beauty, are at the
preparation stage. In addition, the Group intends to build
Shandong Vocational Education Industrial Park in Shandong,
the first phase of which with a site of 160 mu has been
officially approved, covering a total planned construction area
of 1,015 mu and a gross floor area of nearly 500,000 square
meters. It is expected to be put into operation by end of year
2021.

EMEELIR

RAERERBERFIHEERBRA
(=27 ES((EE))g((E8)) ?I
EANBIREMBAR (REAE®]) &
E2020FF 12 A1 B IEFERE -

Bk

2020 RAG B BHEERR TR —F -
M EIERMER  AEBEATRRE - £
TR - #HE LH*E%L%@Z%LK
mTﬂam*& W?%@%$ﬁﬁ
T — &G REERBRE

RECE

1+ EZE2020F12A318ILFE » A%
EREUaTIERBEreE  £4
WABOANRKES 649HE T © B
2019 T #6.6% : #ZE20205F12 A
BTAEFEAENABHARKE258EE
7T [A2019F T #69.6% : Bl E
202012 A31 A I FE LT
BHARES008 ST - FALE20194F
T#44.4% : RELZ2020512 A31
HEFERRBERFTER,ZMAK
145,472 A » [EHE2019F T#4.7% ©

2 FA2020%F - AEEFILHAEEERR
20FT  BRIR4ABUE206FT - EIBHRE
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T IE VB - HIR BRI ETE
1,0158 * B E% #1500,000F J5
K o FBEHR2021 FERILALEA o
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Chairman’s Statement XE#H%E

A significant breakthrough was achieved in the construction
of the regional center. The Sichuan Regional Center was
successfully established with a planned construction land
area of 1,500 mu and a gross floor area of nearly 1 million
square meters. The first phase of 300 mu of land was
officially approved. With its construction fully commencing, it is
planned to be put into use in year 2022 with high quality and
standard.

The level and standard of education have been further
elevated. In year 2020, Anhui New East and Guiyang New
East were upgraded to senior technical schools, and three
new secondary vocational schools and technical schools
were added, bringing the total number to 39. The Group
became the first batch of third-party evaluation certification
institutions for vocational skill levels and issued its first batch
certification certificates in April 2020 in China. The Group has
achieved remarkable results in the application of skill training
bases for retired military personnel, and has been approved as
a designated training institution in 17 provinces.

LOOKING AHEAD

We will continue to consolidate our position in the industry
and achieved significant growth in revenue. We will accelerate
the nationwide layout of each segment, complete the
preparation of new schools as planned, further strengthen
the control of the effect of network placement, improve the
accuracy of placement, realize the intelligence and refinement
of advertising, systematically deploy brand promotion,
integrate various resources, enrich the form of media
cooperation and expand the influence of the brand, so as to
realize the dual promotion of brand marketing and market
enroliment.

We will highlight our quality of teaching and cultivate strong
development advantages. We will optimize the teaching
management system, strengthen the control of the teaching
process and improve the teaching quality assessment
mechanism to ensure the quality of teaching and learning.
Moreover, we will vigorously improve our R&D capability,
establish a sound R&D innovation system, accelerate the
introduction and training of R&D personnel, significantly
increase the investment in R&D funds, and actively apply for
national R&D projects.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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Chairman’s Statement X E#H%E

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude
to the parents of our students and the shareholders for their trust
and support and to all employees and the management team for
their contribution and dedication. In the future, we will continue
to elevate our education standard, increase operating efficiency
and perform corporate responsibility. We will strive to nurture
our students and develop their talents with results satisfying their
parents and employers and recognised by the society.

China East Education Holdings Limited
Wu Wei
Chairman of the Board
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW

We have a leading position in vocational training education
segment in China in terms of average number of students enrolled
and revenue generated for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Moreover, we also have a leading position in China in providing
vocational training education in three segments, namely, culinary
arts, information technology and internet technology, as well as
auto services. Headquartered in Hefei, Anhui province, we have
established a nationwide school network consisting of 206 schools
and centers in operation as of 31 December 2020, spanning 29 of
the 31 provinces in mainland China and Hong Kong. We operate
our business and establish our schools and centers under seven
school brands, namely, New East Culinary Education, Omick
Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry, Cuisine Academy,
Xinhua Internet Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology
Education, Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion &
Beauty Education.

We are a pioneer in providing vocational training education in China
in culinary arts, information technology and internet technology,
as well as auto services. These industry sectors are areas in
China where there is significant unmet demand for vocational
training education to bridge the supply and demand gap between
employers and students. Our primary goal is to provide students
with solid knowledge and practical skills in their chosen profession
that are tailored to the needs of employers with a view to increasing
graduates’ employability and their average compensation levels.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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OUR BUSINESS SEGMENTS

As at 31 December 2020, we operated 206 vocational education

institutions under the following brand names:

Segments and Brands

72 BB K%

CULINARY ARTS
RELR A

New East Culinary Education
(“New East”)

MR REHEHE
([#=RF])

Omick Education of Western
Cuisine and Pastry (“Omick”)

BOK TR EHE
([&k=))

Cuisine Academy

EIRERE

No. of

schools/

centers
218/
RO E

64

64

35

35

20

20

I EE D AT

E D
R2020F12A31H » HMEU T @RERT
KL 20BFT IR A S -

Description

g

New East Culinary Education has been providing comprehensive
culinary training programs to students who pursue a career in
becoming professional chefs. We teach our students the cooking
traditions and practices of diversified Chinese cuisines, including
the well-known and widely recognized eight regional cuisines
in China, supported by an integration of classic Chinese and
Western culinary skills. Each of our schools under New East
Culinary Education offers various culinary training programs with
different program lengths to meet students’ differentiated learning
focuses and demands.

MR ZEHEHE —ERERNASBEFMN S ERHE R E A
FIRRIE - WPIBIRBETHETEERIERRE ZEE (B
FEHERZEZ RN N\R T RER) A RERRATLHRT
EEREE - TR RHEHBETSMERBEHTARERROHSE
TEIEIIEREE - LUmEBETRNEBEHMEL -

Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry offers high-
quality western style catering education, which is committed to
providing specialized culinary training to students with a focus on
western pastry and western food. We offer a variety of courses,
including baking, desserts, western cuisines, bartending and
barista training.

BORAANAEHEREREEANERHE RHIRREBLER
HLUATRRI A E AEMEETAT - RORESERE - 218
R - FHE - TRE - B MNBERDIE o

Cuisine Academy has been providing customized catering
experience services to customers who are interested in cooking
or who plan to establish their own businesses in the catering
industry. Cuisine Academy primarily providing customers with
customized catering experience programs.

ERBLR A ZHRBEBSENERTERLECHRANE
FPREMAGTHZERRIRE - ERBREIBARPIRHALAR]
FRETRERRARAZ -
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Segments and Brands

2 &P B2 fa fE

INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY AND
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
FEREM R BB AR

Xinhua Internet Technology
Education (“Xinhua Internet”)

MEBKHE
([#ESR])

Wisezone Data Technology
Education (“Wisezone”)

FEEBRDTAA I EH
(T#EER])

AUTO SERVICES
RER

Wontone Automotive Education
(“Wontone”)

BRAEHE
- 30

No. of

schools/

centers
2K

ROEE

31

31

22

22

33

33

Management Discussion and Analysis &2 E &1 227

Description

i

Xinhua Internet Technology Education provides information
technology and internet technology-related training programs.
We provide a wide range of information technology and internet
technology-related training to students with different course
lengths.

FE B A RS BRI R B R AR R BIRRAR © BiFIm
BERM-FIME SR R EBARMEREI - fETRRE
RRARIE ©

Wisezone Data Technology Education primarily provides short-
term information technology and internet technology programs
to junior college and university students who have possessed the
basic knowledge and seek to further develop relevant practical
skills. By cooperating with a number of technology enterprises
and higher education institutions, we train professional data
technology engineers.

EEBREDTAL FIEMEZELREZREER MBI SE IR
FHEB BB RN AF & IR E RS SR R BB AR
HZRIZ - MBS IEM RN SHERESE  RIMEER
BB TIZAD -

Wontone Automotive Education focuses on providing hands-on
auto repair skill training as well as practical training of other auto
services, such as automobile commerce.

BEAEHE IR R TER SR A R TER S E M=
RIEHEF -
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Segments and Brands

2 &P B2 hE

FASHION AND BEAUTY
ILES

On-mind Fashion & Beauty

No. of  Description

schools/
centers

21/
ROEE

I EE D AT

1 On-mind Fashion & Beauty Education focuses on cultivating high

Education (“On-mind”)

B2 T WX EHE ((REF)) 1

SUMMARY OF OUR OPERATING DATA

The following table sets forth the number of new students
enrollments/new customers registered under each segment and

skills fashion and beauty professionals.

B EHEREEHE ZINERSRERHEEAM -
REHBHR

TREHFNEH ZE2020F &2019F12A31 8 1
FEREOBEREEDHOIEIAKXS

brand for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019: FRETMAS :
Change
25
New Students Enroliment®/ Year ended 31 December Increase/
Segments and Brands New Customers Registered®? BZ12A31ALLEE (Decrease)
AR,/ 2020 2019
FBRBME FEFEMAH 2020 20196  #in/ (HD)
CULINARY ARTS
32400
New East Long-term 31,220 35,663 (12.5%)
HRA RHERE
- One to less than two years 3,390 5,661 (40.1%)
——FUEMEUT
- Two to less than three years 17,219 21,668 (20.5%)
—MELE=FUT
- Three years 10,611 8,334 27.3%
Short-term 37,319 41,785 (10.7%)
R
Subtotal 68,539 77,448 (11.5%)
Pt
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Change
28
New Students Enrollment®/ Year ended 31 December Increase/
Segments and Brands New Customers Registered® BZ12A31ALLEFE (Decrease)
AR,/ 2020 2019
FBR@IE HEFEMAZ 2020 2019 %M/ (H2)
Omick Long-term
BOKEr RERE
- One to less than two years 695 99 602.0%
——FUAEMEFEUT
Short-term 14,218 12,170 16.8%
ybiE S
Subtotal 14,913 12,269 21.6%
P
Cuisine Academy Short-term 10,649 10,066 5.8%
R FERE
CULINARY ARTS Subtotal 94,101 99,783 (5.7%)
R P
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
5 RE M R E MR
Xinhua Internet Long-term 20,719 24,771 (16.4%)
MEE RERIE
- One to less than two years 762 1,327 (42.6%)
——FUAEREFEUT
- Two to less than three years 7,669 13,227 (42.0%)
—MELE=ZFEUT
- Three years 12,288 10,217 20.3%
=%
Short-term 2,515 3,083 (18.4%)
SRR
Subtotal 23,234 27,854 (16.6%)
P
Wisezone Short-term 4,402 4,049 8.7%
E#EER REEARIE
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY  Subtotal 27,636 31,903 (13.4%)
5 BEA R E MR H A P
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Segments and Brands

WK

AUTO SERVICES
RS

Wontone
=il

AUTO SERVICES
RERE

FASHION & BEAUTY
EIEES S
On-mind

FASHION & BEAUTY
LIS

THE GROUP
%M

THE GROUP
%8

New Students Enroliment/
New Customers Registered®
R AR,/
FEFEMAZ

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FUEMEUT
- Two to less than three years
“MEAE=ZFEUT
- Three years
-=fF

Short-term

RHRE

Subtotal

st

Long-term

RERE
- One to less than two years
——FLAEMEFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

—-=F

Short-term
LS

Subtotal
/J\E—r-

Long-term

REIRZ
- One to less than two years
——FLAEMEFUT
- Two to less than three years
—MERE=FUT
- Three years

Short-term
ySEiENES

Total
At

Year ended 31 December

EHZ12A318LLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
12,672 10,432
914 1,746
3,026 3,474
8,732 5,212
10,504 10,493
23,176 20,925
124 -
14 -
5 -
105 -
435 -
559 -
65,430 70,965
5,775 8,833
27,919 38,369
31,736 23,763
80,042 81,646
145,472 152,611

I EE D AT

Change
-]
Increase/
(Decrease)

i,/ (H2)

21.5%
(47.7%)
(12.9%)

67.5%

0.1%

10.8%

N/A
TiEm
N/A
NEM
N/A
NEM
N/A
il

N/A
NEM

N/A
TEH

(7.8%)
(34.6%)
(27.2%)

33.6%

(2.0%)

(4.7%)
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(1) New students enrollment represents the total number of students
newly enrolled at our operating schools in a certain period. We use
new students enrollment to reflect our ability of student recruitment
and the popularity of our programs.

(2)  Number of new customers registered represents the total number
of new customers attending our customized catering experience
programs of Cuisine Academy.

The following table sets forth the average number of students
enrolled and customers registered under each segment and brand
for the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Average Number of
Students Enrolled®/

Segments and Brands Customers Registered®
T AR,/
2R mE EFEMAZ
CULINARY ARTS
REHM
New East Long-term
R RERIR
— One to less than two years
——FUERMEUT

— Two to less than three years
—MFLAE=ZFLT
— Three years

Short-term
SRR

Subtotal
/J\'EH-

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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BT -

(1) FEIIARER R E IR R IR 2 EER
FIEAEAIR o AT AR R R
BB 2ENE D RRIENZEDRE
B

@ HEPEMABIEZINERELALAR R
RERRRENNE, AR -

TRSFHNEZE20205 22019512 A31H
IEFEREDIRBEE SO FHEIA
NEEFEMAL

Change
28
Year ended 31 December Increase/
HZ12A31ALLEE (Decrease)
2020 2019
20204 20194 #h0,/ (Rd)
57,897 62,281 (7.0%)
4,098 6,367 (35.6%)
37,066 44,274 (16.3%)
16,733 11,640 43.8%
5,603 5,948 (6.8%)
63,500 68,229 (6.9%)
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Segments and Brands

D ER

Omick
BOKE

Cuisine Academy

ERERE

CULINARY ARTS
R

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
EERMR EMARM

Xinhua Internet
B

Wisezone
ZEER

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY
BRRMR BRI

Average Number of
Students Enrolled®/
Customers Registered®?
T AR,/
EFEMAH®

Long-term
REARIZ
— One to less than two years

——FAEMFAT

Short-term
52 HARRAE

Subtotal
et

Short-term
KEHAEREE

Subtotal
Nt

Long-term

REARIZ
— One to less than two years
——FAEMFEAT
— Two to less than three years
—MEAE=FAT
— Three years

— =4

Short-term
52 HRERAE

Subtotal
/J\E—r-

Short-term
52 HARRAE

Subtotal
Pt

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLEE

2020 2019
20204 20195
398 97
4,310 4,344
4,708 4,441
1,012 666
69,220 73,336
40,917 39,407
1,194 1,236
18,025 20,033
21,698 18,138
472 735
41,389 40,142
758 1,017
42,147 41,159

I EE D AT

Change
28
Increase/
(Decrease)

#m/ (B)

310.3%

(0.8%)

6.0%

52.0%

(5.6%)

3.8%
(3.4%)
(10.0%)

19.6%

(35.8%)

3.1%

(25.5%)

2.4%
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Segments and Brands

D IR

AUTO SERVICES
REHEE

Wontone

[N

S8

AUTO SERVICES
B

FASHION & BEAUTY
SO EE
On-mind

B = 5

FASHION & BEAUTY
BFREE

Average Number of
Students Enrolled/
Customers Registered®?
T AR,/
EFEMAZ®

Long-term

RERIZ
— One to less than two years
——FLAERFIRT
— Two to less than three years
—MEAE=FAT
— Three years

—=%

Short-term
52 HARRAE

Subtotal
/J\%—'|-

Long-term

RERIR
— One to less than two years
——FAEMRFENAT
— Two to less than three years
—MEAE=FAT
— Three years

Short-term
52 HARRAE

Subtotal
INEF

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE
2020 2019
20204 20195
20,100 19,223
1,441 2,334
6,761 9,103
11,898 7,786
1,689 1,853
21,789 21,076
55 -
6 —
4 _
45 -
99 -
154 -

i

Change
28
Increase/
(Decrease)

#m/ (B)

4.6%
(38.3%)
(25.7%)

52.8%

(8.9%)

3.4%

N/A
NER
N/A
NiE A
N/A
i
N/A
NER

N/A
NER

N/A
NER
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Average Number of
Students Enrolled®/
Customers Registered®?

TR,

DR mE EFEMAH®
THE GROUP Long-term
rEH REARIZ
— One to less than two years
——FUAERENAT
— Two to less than three years
—MFUAE=ZFUT
— Three years
Short-term
SEIE Y
THE GROUP TOTAL
S L CHI
Notes:

1)

As our schools provide various vocational training education
programs during a year and the course length and the program
commencement date varies for our different long-term and short-
term programs, we believe that the average number of students
enrolled is a measure that is comparable to that of our competitors
and therefore can fairly present our ranking and market position in
the industry. Our average number of students enrolled for a year is
only an approximation of the average number of students enrolled
during a certain year, representing the sum of the number of students
enrolled at our operating schools at the end of each month divided by
the number of months during such year, without taking into account
any transfer or withdrawal.

Our average number of customers registered for a year represents
the sum of the number of customers registered at Cuisine Academy
at the end of each month divided by the number of months during
such year, without taking into account any withdrawal. The courses
for one month or shorter are regarded as one-month programs for
the purpose of calculation.

I EE D AT

Change
25
Year ended 31 December Increase/
BE12A3ALEE (Decrease)
2020 2019
20204 2019% i/ (H4)
119,367 121,008 (1.4%)
7,137 10,034 (28.9%)
61,856 73,410 (15.7%)
50,374 37,564 34.1%
13,943 14,563 (4.3%)
133,310 135,571 (1.7%)
BiE -

U
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Tuition Fees/Service Fees

The following table sets forth ranges of our tuition fee and service

fee rate under each segment and brand for the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019:

Segments and Brands

72 &P B2 hE

CULINARY ARTS
RREE T
New East

#RTT

Omick

Cuisine Academy®

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
AND INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

EEHEMN R BRI
Xinhua Internet
B

Wisezone
ZEEER

Program®

B

Long-term

REIRIZ

Short-term®@

52 HRRRIZO

Long-term

REIRTE

Short-term®@

R HARRIZ@

Customized catering
experience program

FLAGTHIZ B8 SR AR A2

Long-term
REIRIZ
Short-term®@
52 HARRIZO
Short-term®@
72 HARRIZ®
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B8 REE

TREYEZE2020F 22019F12A31H 1E
FEEDHLRENBERRGEEHE :

Tuition/Service fee

28 RiEE
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
20205 2019%F

(RMByper year for long-term programs,
RMBper program for short-term programs)
(REIGRIEUAN BB T F BN -
JZEIRFEUA R ML, RIE B E )

10,400-99,400 5,600-82,000
380-82,000 800-58,000
46,000-72,000 40,000-60,000
800-39,000 5,500-39,000

777-15,600 980-22,800

16,800-38,800 15,800-38,800

3,280-28,800 1,680-26,800

999-26,800 1,000-28,800
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Tuition/Service fee
28 REE
Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE
Segments and Brands Program® 2020 2019
2B b w0 20204 20194
(RMByper year for long-term programs,
RMB/per program for short-term programs)
(REIREBUARE T FREN -
FEEISRIE A RITT, - RIE /32 7)

AUTO SERVICES

RS

Wontone Long-term 4,800-38,600 4,800-38,600

&8 REIRE

Short-term®@ 1,000-37,500 1,000-37,500
72 HARRIZ®

FASHION & BEAUTY

SIS

On-mind Long-term 11,800-29,600 N/A

X £ 5 RHEIRIE i

Short-term®@ 3,600-15,800 N/A
52 HARRIZO ANiE A

Notes: Pt -

(1) We charge tuition fee to students enrolled at our schools. Tuition fee 1 ?ﬁfF‘iFﬂi&%ﬁ‘é?ﬁ%ﬁﬁ’ﬂ?i%ﬁi%% ° H
of our long-term programs are typically charged based on the yearly ﬁ_%ETJ%Z%@FEEJ%%*&EE?‘UKE R 2 Y
tuition standards of different programs that students enrolled in such FEEBRREUMREREER -
period.

(2)  Tuition fee of our short-term programs are typically charged by each @ FEHRIZ 2 —RORIR R4 Wl 1 & R 12
program that students enrolled in. THR o

Q) We typically charge customers service fees by each program that ©) ﬁij‘j*ﬁﬁ?jﬁEﬁ FEIR 2Bt it 1) & PR
customers registered in Cuisine Academy. BREEHRESEE -
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Recommended Employment and Entrepreneurship Rate

We are committed to assisting our students in developing

their

careers. Our average recommended employment and

entrepreneurship rate of our long-term program graduates from

New

East and Omick reached over 90%, while Xinhua Internet

and Wontone reached over 95% for the year ended 31 December

2020.

The following table sets forth the recommended employment

and entrepreneurship rate of our long-term program graduates by

brand

s for the year ended 31 December 2020:

Brands" AR W
New East HEH
Xinhua Internet HEE R
Wontone &8
Omick UK S
Notes:

M

China

As the schools of other brands had not provided long-term
programs of one year or more and these was no graduate of
long-term programs of the schools of On-mind during the year
ended 31 December 2020, the recommended employment and
entrepreneurship rate of these brands were not included. We also
provide graduate placement service or entrepreneurial service to
students of our short-term programs. However, students enrolled
in our short-term programs generally have different study goals
and expectations, such as to enhance a specific skill or to study for
interests, as compared to students of our long-term programs who
are generally more focused on seeking long-term employment or to
setting up their own business.

We provide graduate placement service and entrepreneurial service
to all students of our long-term programs. The recommended
employment and entrepreneurship rate represents the total number of
students of long-term programs who are hired through our graduate
placement service program or who set up their own business
through our entrepreneurial service in a certain period, excluding
students who are employed through other channels divided by the
total number of graduates of long-term programs during such year.

East Education Holdings Limited ® FERFHEERER QA
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3| M3 R T B2

BOBRONEBABRREBELE - &
E2020F12A31HIEFE » BRMFEF K&
BORT REREEEENFHSIBRER
BIEREFEIOWIUA L - MIEBIKREBA
EHO5% LA I o TREIIEZE 2020512 A 31
HIEFEZRMEEDNRAREEE £
BRERAIEER

X

Recommended
employment and
entrepreneurship
rate®

SIBHMER
IS

94.3%
95.5%
96.0%
92.5%

AR E E2020F12 A31 B ILFEHE MR
IBETERARERET DR —FHRY
RERBEFETERIEIE RARER
¥4 BRFTABLERERNSIERERA
¥R o BN AEESRENSERE
BIFESEARTS R BIZE IR - AT - HBER
EFERARERET B NEBHRY
RIREL  HERMEHRENSZE K
BRETFEMZEE BIERE IR EREE
BB pE

BAMAA R AREEERHARERS
RABVZEIRTS - 5l Bt R Al X XA
BRI A R 5 BISUE BRI
BIZEARTS T AISZPI Y R 75 T 52 HE 10 & 18
RIEEL R (TEREEREMRETH®
ENBEL)BRUAZFERMRIZEELLE
2 o
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group’s revenue was approximately RMB3,649 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, decreased by 6.6% as compared
to approximately RMB3,905 million in 2019. The decrease in
revenue was primarily attributable to a decrease of approximately
5% in number of new students enrollments and new customers
registered due to the outbreak of novel coronavirus (COVID-19) (the
“Epidemic”) during the year.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue and
average tuition/service fee per student/customer by segments and
brands for the years indicated:

I EE D AT

gy dE) ]
LUN

HZE2020F12A31 A HFE - REBUA
BYARMES 6498 ETT - B2019FMAA
R¥3,906 A& L N #6.6% ° WARADEE
HRF NG E AR ECOVID-19) ([ &
1) - BEEIEIARERHEL M AZ
B M HIS%

TREINBPIRFRFERD 88 K g8
DHRAREBEEE BPTHEE R
BEEA

Year ended 31 December

HE12B31ALEE
2020 2019 Change
20205 2019% 28
Average Average Average
Tuition/ Tuition/ Tuition/
Service Fee Senvice Fee Service Fee
per Student/ per Student/ per Student/
Revenue  Customer® Revenue  Customer”  Revenue Customer®”
sgEE/ 5e8t/ §28%/
EF &P EF
11988/ TgE/ 88/
WA REEY KA REEY WA REEY
RMB'000  RMB000  RMBOOO  RMBOOO Increase/(Decrease)
ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFI 1/ (74)
CULINARY ARTS TEEHIE
New East HEA 1,954,301 308 2,138,046 31.3 (8.6%) (1.8%)
Omick BUKS 325,295 69.1 338,082 76.1 (3.8%) (9.2%)
Cuisine Academy ? ERERe 55,805 554 48,256 725 15.6% (23.9%)
2,335,401 387 2,524,384 34.4 (7.5%) (2.0%)
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY EERTR BB AR
Xinhua Internet MESH 747,583 181 774,465 19.3 (3.5%) (6.4%)
Wisezone ZEER 45,819 60.4 58,860 579 (22.2%) 4.4%
793,402 18.8 883,325 202 (4.8%) (7.0%)
AUTO SERVICES RERH
Wontone BB 483,203 22 531264 252 (9.0%) (12.0%)
Other Miscellaneous Businesses RftRRERo 36,886 N/ATER 16,333 NATER 1258%  NATNER
Total ¥ b 3,648,892 271 3,905,306 28.7 (6.6%) (5.4%)
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Notes: PR -

(1) For illustration purposes only, the average tuition/service fee revenue (1)
per student/customer for the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019 is calculated on a basis as revenue generated from tuition or
service fees for the year divided by the average number of students
enrolled and customers registered in the year.

2) During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, revenue )
generated from Cuisine Academy mainly represents service fees
collected from customers who attended our customized catering
experience programs.

3) Other miscellaneous businesses primarily include revenue from 3)
fashion & beauty business and the internet technology solution and
staff outsourcing services provided to independent third parties.

(4)  The total revenue and percentages do not include inter-segment (4)
sales which are eliminated upon consolidation.

Management Discussion and Analysis EE g

(IR + BE2020F £2019512
B3 BILERGRBE R THEE,/
R B SR NS BRI BE A
R AR 4F T30 AR R B A A
B -

REE2020%F 201912431 H IEF
o AEREREANBATEARZM
BIFLAGT I AT RN T P UE S
BRISE -

HipAX B E 2 RRERWEE R MBI
E=NRHEMNEBERMEATRRET
SMEBRFEEE EROURA ©

BRAR B LA A BIEE S FHR BRI
B BRI E -

The Cost of Revenue AR

Our cost of revenue consists of teaching staff salaries and benefits, HBPWWMARARBESE TEHE REF -

teaching related consumables and other costs, leasing expenses/ HERBEERERREMKA BERS
depreciation of right of use assets, campus maintenance and FTRAEEENE REEERFTE °F

depreciation, utilities and office expenses. The cost of revenue J R AT o WARKARBEE20194
increased from approximately RMB1,625 million for the year ended 12A31BIEFEHARKE,6258 BT
31 December 2019 to approximately RMB1,680 million for the year MEHZE2020F12A31HIEFEHARKE
ended 31 December 2020, representing an increase of 3.4%. 1,680E & 7T © HIEA3.4% °

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our cost of revenue TRETIPIRFERPIMAK AL AL :

for the years indicated:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020% 2019F
Cost % of Total Cost % of Total
s Ib4em
B Btk KR BAt
RMB’000 AMB 000
AREFR ANREFT
Teaching staff salaries and benefits HETHEREN 540,447 32.2% 520,607 32.0%
Teaching related consumables and other costs ~ ZIEAABEFER R E MR 385,837 23.0% 435,425 26.8%
Leasing expenses/Depreciation of right of use assetsH &R %/ BEEEITE 285,876 17.0% 252,732 15.6%
Campus maintenance and depreciation REFERTE 342,997 20.4% 293,108 18.0%
Utilities INEE!; 72,638 4.3% 73,795 4.5%
Office expenses PARY 52,264 3.1% 49,640 3.1%
Total At 1,680,059 100.0% 1,625,307 100.0%
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Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The Group’s gross profit was approximately RMB1,969 million for
the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to approximately
RMB2,280 million in 2019. The gross profit margin was 54.0%
for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to 58.4% in
2019. The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the
decrease in revenue for the year ended 31 December 2020 as a
result of the Epidemic. The following table sets forth a breakdown
of our gross profit and gross profit margin by segments and brands
for the years indicated:

I EE D AT

EMRERME

REZE2020F12A31HILLFE - AEEE
FAEHARE1,9698 BT + M2019F AL
ARM2,2808E 7T © #{£20205F12 431
BIEFE - EFIEE54.0% © M2019F A
58.4% o EFIEF L EEHNEBEHHE
2020F12 AB1 A IEFEHIW AR D « TF
HINFREREZRDE RmEE D HERN K
EFIEAA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALEE
2020 2019
2020% 2019%
Gross profit Gross profit
Gross profit margin®  Gross profit margin®
| Eilkll A EREO

RMB’000  percentage RMB000  percentage
ARETFT Bt ARETFIT A7

CULINARY ARTS TEEN

New East TER

Omick BURA

Cuisine Academy FR2k

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY AND BEEMR BB R
INTERNET TECHNOLOGY

Xinhua Internet MEEK

Wisezone EEZER

AUTO SERVICES AE RS

Wontone Bl

Other Miscellaneous Businesses®? RpExge

Total Bt

1,111,934 56.9% 1,299,306 60.8%
141,917 43.6% 173,642 51.4%
17,486 31.3% 8,802 18.2%
1,271,337 54.4% 1,481,749 58.7%
454,557 60.8% 507,671 65.6%
18,576 40.5% 2,944 5.0%
473,133 59.6% 510,615 61.3%
198,645 H.1% 273,624 51.5%
25,718 69.7% 14,011 85.8%
1,968,833 54.0% 2,279,999 58.4%
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(1) The establishment of new schools and centers under a segment/
brand has a negative impact on our gross profit margin for the
relevant segment/brand. During the initial ramp-up period after a
new school or center commences operations, we incur substantial
fixed costs for teaching staff salaries and benefits, leasing expenses,
and other fixed costs while initial revenue from the new schools and
centers are limited due to the relatively small number of student
enrollment or customer registration in the ramp-up period of the
schools and centers.

) Other miscellaneous businesses primarily include gross profit derived
from fashion & beauty business and the internet technology solution
and staff outsourcing services provided to independent third parties.

Other Income and Expenses

For the year ended 31 December 2020, other income and
expenses amounted to approximately RMB191 million (2019:
RMB117 million) which primarily included government grants,
interest income from bank deposits and entrusted loans and Covid-
19-related rent concession. The increase in other income was
mainly due to the increase in interest income from bank deposits
and entrusted loans of approximately RMB41 million and the
recognition of Covid-19-related rent concessions of approximately
RMB23 million during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Other Gains and Losses

The other gains and losses were recorded at net losses of
approximately RMB127 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 (2019: net gains of approximately RMB131 million) which was
mainly attributable to net foreign exchange losses of approximately
RMB167 million as a result of mainly the depreciation of Hong
Kong dollars possessed by the Group, which consists of proceeds
form the initial public offering of shares of the Company, against
Renminbi during the year ended 31 December 2020, while the
Group recorded net exchange gains of approximately RMB85
million for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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(1) R—EDE mEE TR ER KD
CEHBERDE, MENENKELTH
FE - NBEREP LB EENTRIE
B RPMBBETHERER -
B B ST R B At [B] E A E AR K8 B E K
A 1 R AR B AR DR R A B RS B
ARBZPEMAZRREE D - HIaUA
AR -

@ HOMEXBIZeRBRHIERAEL
FENREMNEBBRMEATREET
SMEBRFEEEROER ©

HAb W AR R

REE2020F12A31BILFE » Bl
ARREZABHARE191E &L (20194 ¢
ARBINMTEERT) AP X ZBIEBNH
B) - RITHERREZTEZOFEWA - LA
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Selling Expenses

The Group’s selling expenses was approximately RMB829
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to
approximately RMB698 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. The increase in selling expenses incurred for the year ended
31 December 2020 was mainly because the Group had placed
more advertising costs during the year and the inclusion of the
selling expenses of newly established schools and centers.

Administrative Expenses

The Group’s administrative expenses was approximately RMB570
million for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to
approximately RMB576 million for the year ended 31 December
2019. It represented about 15.6% of the revenue for the year
ended 31 December 2020 and was increased as compared to that
of 14.8% for the year ended 31 December 2019. The decrease
in administrative expenses was mainly due to the decrease of
equity-settled share-based payment expenses from approximately
RMB116 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately RMB76 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 and partly set off by the inclusion of administrative expenses
of the newly established schools.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of approximately RMB146 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 represented the interest expenses on
lease liabilities recognised following the adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standard 16 — Leases (2019: RMB132 million).
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Adjusted Net Profit and Adjusted EBITDA

To supplement this report which is presented in accordance

with HKFRSs, we also presented the following unaudited non-
HKFRSs adjusted net profit and adjusted EBITDA as additional
financial measures which we believes that it can also provide useful

information to help investors and others understand and evaluate

the Company’s financial performance:

Net profit

Adjustments for: Non-cash share-based
payments
Net foreign exchange
losses/(gains)
Non-recurring Listing expenses

Adjusted net profit

Adjustments for: Depreciation
Finance costs
Income tax expenses

Adjusted EBITDA

Note:

palil

REREANRE (RIEEEVHREER) 2
3I) - RRBIEA T RERIZIERBUT
BEEAKEHBRAANREHBERITER
HE A S A FERINA TR 8 - AR FME
= HUREARANER  HBREER
Hi AL T RHERRBFHRR

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREFT
(unaudited) (unaudited)
(REER) (CREEZEZ)
4B 7 257,614 847,818
FEE DSBS MRk D
AEBAEAHAE 76,166 115,829
& 5518, (URa)
et 166,503 (85,270)
LB FTRAY - 21,578
AR AR 500,283 899,955
FEE e 603,209 543,323
BTG AR 146,053 131,521
FriS#i 186,134 221,703
BARSHITER
BRI AR 1,435,679 1,796,502
BaE -

0} Non-HKFRSs financial measure does not have a standardised

meaning prescribed by HKFRSs and therefore may not be

comparable to similar measures presented by other companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment as at 31 December 2020 increased by
0.7% to approximately RMB1,416 million from approximately
RMB1,406 million as at 31 December 2019. Increase in property
and equipment was mainly due to the inclusion of the property and
equipment of newly established schools and centers during the
year.

Capital Structure, Liquidity, Financial Resources and Gearing Ratio

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s issued share capital
was approximately RMB193,000 divided into 2,195,103,706
shares of HK$0.0001 each, and the total equity of the Group was
approximately RMB6,040 million (31 December 2019: RMB6,120
million).

As at 31 December 2020, the current ratio of the Group,
representing current assets divided by current liabilities, was 2.6
times (31 December 2019: 2.9 times) while the gearing ratio of
the Group, representing total liabilities divided by total assets, was
38.5% (31 December 2019: 36.8%).

As at 31 December 2020, the total of time deposit and bank
balances and cash of the Group amounted to approximately
RMB5,170 million (31 December 2019: RMB5,775 million),
representing 52.6% (31 December 2019: 59.7%) of the total assets
of the Group of approximately RMB9,821 million (31 December
2019: RMB9,678 million).

For the year ended 31 December 2020, our capital expenditures
were approximately RMB870 million (2019: RMB636 million) and
were primarily related to acquisition of property and equipment and
right-of-use assets for upgrading the existing school premises and
construction of new campuses and regional centre.

It is believed that the Group has sufficient capital to meet its
commitment and working capital requirements for future operations
and for general business expansion and development.
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Other Financial Assets

As at 31 December 2020, the Group held other financial assets

of approximately RMB899 million, particulars of which are set out

below:

Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit or loss (‘FVTPL”)

Bank of Hangzhou

“Tian Li Bao” Structured Deposits

China Construction Bank Corporation
(GCB Qianyuan Weekly Profit Opened Guaranteed
Wealth Management Product

China Minsheng Bank
QOutstanding Asset Management Prosperous

Increasing Income Weatth Management Product

Huarong Securities Company Limited

Huarong Stable Growth No. 2 Combined Selected Stock

Asset Management Plan

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China Limited
Corporation “Tian Li Bao” Net Value
Wealth Management Products

Shanghai Pudong Development Bank
Weekly Profit Growth No. 1

Total

Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Entrusted loans to related parties

—Xinhua Investment Group

—Xinhua Holdings Group
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R2020F12831H » AEBEFEEMER
BEEMNARKEOEE L BT

W
Fair value Realised gains ~ Unrealised gains % of total assets
asat fortheyearended forthe yearended  of the Group as at
31 December 2020 31 December 2020 31 December 2020 31 December 2020
BE2020E BE2020E
2020 12A31A 125318
128318 LEEESR LEEREE  H2020F12A31A
ZAREE il Mg EAEESEELH
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
NEETT) UREFT) AREFT)
BARBETEAREHT ABEL
SREE
g
[THEIEBERN 20,016 - 16 0.2%
PERRRTRAERAT
B - BRNREICRE
BHER 377,085 - % 38%
HERERLT
FNEERIBIGEA HhmiRs
BhER 10175 - 175 0.1%
ERRSRAERAR
EREENRNRERERA
EEEEHE 30,506 - 506 0.3%
PEIBRTRAERAT
EARHEFERESER
10,636 - 136 0.1%
LERRRRES
FRZREMNS 60,805 - 5 06%
B 509,178 - 873 51%
REMAAHE SHER
mERARANZTER
-HEREEE 130,000 - - 1.3%
-HEEREE 260,000 - - 26%
390,000 - - 3.9%
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Investment Strategy and Future Prospects

The Group’s investments in other financial assets have been
conducted on the premise that such investments would not affect
our business operation or capital expenditures so as to generate a
relatively higher return from such investments than fixed-term bank
deposits.

The Group has implemented a set of internal control and risk
management measures to manage our risks related to investments
in other financial assets.

Regarding the investment in financial assets measured at FVTPL,
the measures include, among other things, the followings:

o the term of such financial investments must not exceed 12
months;

° we analyze such financial assets regularly and keep track of
their performance and redemption status;

° such financial assets should be issued by a reputable bank or
financial institution; and

° the investment portfolio of such financial assets should
generally bear relatively low-risk or principal protected.

Regarding the entrusted loans to related parties under the
investment in financial assets measured at amortised cost, the
measures include among other things, the followings:

° the borrowing company is required to enter into entrusted
loan agreement(s) with reputable PRC bank(s) and the
entrusted bank(s) will assess the financial position of the
borrowing company(s) regularly to ensure the repayment
ability;
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° to secure the loan(s), each of the controlling shareholders of
the borrowing company shall enter into a personal guarantee.
Each of the controlling shareholders of the borrowing
company irrevocably and unconditionally, among others,
guarantees to the Group the punctual performance by his
respective borrowing company for borrowing the loan(s) and
undertakes that whenever the respective borrowing company
does not pay any amount of the loan when due, he shall
immediately on demand pay that amount as if he were the
principal of the loan(s). In addition, each of the controlling
shareholders of the borrowing company made a guarantee
that the Company has the right to postpone the payment
of the Company’s dividends to each of the controlling
shareholders of the borrowing company to the amount of
the loans and interests owed by the respective borrowing
company until the loans and interests are fully paid;

° upon the Group’s request at any time, the borrowing
company shall provide forthwith to the Group any documents
and information relating to the business operations and
financial position of the borrowing company, including but not
limited to financial reports and financial statements;

° if the borrowing company or its controlling shareholder has
any potential risks of financial instability, it shall inform the
Group or the entrusted bank(s) immediately; and

o if the borrowing company or its controlling shareholder has
shown any signs of financial instability, the Group or the
entrusted bank(s) can demand the borrowing company or its
controlling shareholder to repay prior to the repayment date
all or part of outstanding principal and interest accrued by
giving not less than 10 business days prior written notice to
such borrowing company.

In view of the above, we believe that our internal policies
regarding investment in other financial assets and the related risk
management mechanism are adequate. It is expected that the
Group would continue to improve our capital usage efficiency by
investing in such low-risk or principal protected other financial assets
using our temporarily idle funds.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Material Acquisitions and Disposals

The Group did not have any material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries, consolidated affiliated entities or associated
companies during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Foreign Exchange Risk Management

The majority of the Group’s revenue and expenditures are
denominated in RMB, the functional currency of the Company,
except that certain expenditures are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. The Group also has certain bank balances and other
payables denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United State
dollars, which would expose the Group to foreign exchange risk.
The Group did not use any financial instruments for hedging
purposes during the year ended 31 December 2020. However,
the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure when the
need arises.

Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group pledged its rental
deposits to secure outstanding unpaid contractual lease payments.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigations or chains
of material importance, pending or threatened against any member
of the Group.

The Impact of the Covid-19 Pandemic to the Group

In early 2020, due to an outbreak of the Epidemic and the
subsequent quarantine measures imposed by the PRC
government, the physical classes of our schools located in
mainland China had been temporarily suspended during February
to April 2020 according to the instruction of the PRC government.
During the suspension of physical classes caused by the Epidemic,
the Group conducted its marketing business operation through our
online consultation and application systems, etc. and the Group
has also arranged online tuitions to our students of our schools
located in mainland China.
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Since April 2020, the physical classes of our schools of the Group
had been gradually resumed in a normal way. Despite there may
still be risks or uncertainties that the Epidemic will be outbreak
again in 2021, our schools of the Group have already taken
necessary health precaution measures to safeguard the safety of
our employees and students. Moreover, the Group has already
developed a comprehensive online learning programmes to our
students which can offer online tuitions to our students in case
physicals classes were suspended due to the outbreak of the
Epidemic. Furthermore, the total of time deposit and bank balances
and cash of the Group amounted to approximately RMB5,170
million as at 31 December 2020 which were sufficient for the Group
to meet its future commitment and working capital requirements
for future operations and for general business expansion and
development.

In view of the situation of the Epidemic in mainland China has been
under control currently, the Directors expected that the impact by
the Epidemic in year 2021 would not have any material adverse
impact to the operation and financials of the Group. Nevertheless,
the Group will closely monitor to the development of the situation of
the Epidemic and will take necessary precautions to minimize the
negative impact to the Group.

OUTLOOK

Our mission is to provide the best vocational training education in
China. We intend to continue to expand our business, school and
center network and enhance our market position. To achieve these
goals, we plan to pursue the following business strategies:
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Establishment of Regional Centers

We plan to establish five self-owned regional centers in China’s
five major geographical regions (the “Regional Centers”), namely,
Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu and Xi’an. The Regional
Centers are expected to be equipped with advanced teaching and
practical training facilities for all of our seven school/center brands,
namely, New East, Omick, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet,
Wisezone, Wontone as well as On-mind. The Regional Centers will
also house our research and development centers, human resources
and marketing centers and serve as the continuing education
and training centers for our teaching staff, in each case in their
respective designated regions. For the year ended 31 December
2020, a land parcel located at Chengdu had been acquired by the
Group for the development of the regional center. It is expected
that the construction of phase | regional center of Chengdu can be
completed by year 2022.

Expansion of School Network

Our extensive school network covers most of the provincial capital
cities in China. We intend to further expand our school network to
cover all of the provincial capital cities in China. We plan to establish
our presence in cities which have a population of over five million in
densely populated provinces including, among others, Guangdong,
Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Hunan, Hebei, Sichuan, Inner Mongolia and
Heilongjiang, which we believe have significant unmet demand for
skilled workers in culinary arts, information technology and internet
technology, auto services as well as fashion and beauty.

Expansion and Diversification of Course Structures

In the four industry sectors we currently operate in, namely, culinary
arts, information technology and internet technology, auto services
as well as fashion & beauty business, we plan to continue to
expand and diversify our course offerings in response to industry
trends and market demand. We are also conducting research on
potential new industry sectors that we may establish new schools
in, with reference to the developments in market demand and
anticipated future trends. We will continue to explore other markets
for vocational training education in the service industry and new
economy, such as artificial intelligence and healthcare. Based
on our research, we expect market demand for talent in certain
industry sectors to grow in the foreseeable future, we will establish
corresponding programs to capture opportunities presented by the
market developments.
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Actively Applying as the Third-Party Rating Organisation for the
Recognition of Vocational Skills

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group has become
one of the first batch of third-party rating organisations for the
recognition of vocational skills in China, whereby the Group is
allowed to perform the recognition of certain vocational skills for the
public. Vocational skill recognition represents the recognition of the
skill level of labors by the rating organisation filed by the Ministry of
Human Resources and Social Security of the People’s Republic of
China (“Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security”),
which is a way for rating of the skills of talents implemented
together with the occupational qualification rating. The third-party
organisations for the recognition of vocational skills in China are the
unit organisations recognised by the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security, which are unit organisations with leading
positions in the industry with credibility. After procedures such as
self-reporting, selection by experts, credit checks, assessment
by the local human resources and social security departments at
the place where the Group was registered and seeking of views
from the society, the Group became one of the first batch of third-
party rating organisations for the recognition of vocational skills in
China, whereby it is allowed to perform the recognition of certain
vocational skills. This means that the Group is allowed to perform
vocational skill recognition for the public in accordance with the
standards and regulatory requirements, and issue certificates
recognised by the state, which will significantly raise the Group’s
reputation and enhance its brand influence, and further strengthen
the Group’s leading position in the vocational skill training business
in China. By providing corresponding examinations and training
for the public targeting vocational skill certificates, the Group can
enrich its curriculum in the culinary segment to attract customers
who want to obtain such certificates and increase the potential
customers of the Group’s overall culinary segment. By issuing
vocational skill certificates, the Group can further integrate
employment resources to provide better job opportunities to the
students. The Group will have a comprehensive understanding of
the state’s policy and industry standards, which will facilitate our
vocational skill education in accordance with the state’s policy and
standards, and effectively enhance our education quality to provide
high quality vocational education services.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

We believe that with our over 30 years experience in vocational
training industry, we are well-positioned to tailor our service
offerings to capture growth opportunities in industrial upgrades
and to react promptly to the changes in the market. Also, our
highly scalable business model and centralized and standardized
management approach will accelerate the process to establish new
programs and ensure the quality of the future program offerings. It is
believed that the Group will further strengthen its market leadership
and reputation by having the above strategies.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM THE COMPANY’S INITIAL
PUBLIC OFFERING

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has utilised the net
proceeds of approximately RMB771 million and the net proceeds
have been applied in the manner as set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” of the Company’s prospectus
dated 30 May 2019. The unutilised net proceeds are placed in
licensed financial institutions as short-term deposits and time
deposits.

The following table sets forth a summary of the utilisation of the net
proceeds from Company’s initial public offering as at 31 December
2020:
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Percentageto  Net proceeds Utilised Unutilised
Purpose total amount amount * amount amount
ik HAEEAN FEIERE  CBRSE  ABREEE
RMBOOO AWB 000 AMB OO0
NEEFT  ABEFT  ARETT
Acquisition of land and construction faclities to establish 73t ~ L& » B - KBS RAZER 45% 1,900,433 (43.429) 1,857,004
our five geographical regional centers in Beijing, AAREPOMEE L ARER
Shanghai, Guangzhou, Chengdu and Xi'an
Establishment of schools in selected markets EREMHRUER 15% 633478 (203,234) 430244
Establishment of new majors inboth existng andnew BB BMHEAERUHES  THE 15% 633,478 (55,124) 578,354
industry sectors, and conducting research to further - FElRE
innovate our curriculums
Construction of and upgrade our school facilties as wellas  ZXFFHRERRIE - BREEHS 15% 633478 (447,466) 186,012
purchase teaching equipment; and HE R
Funding of our working capital and general corporate AfEEEAe R—HARME 10% 422318 (22,199) 400,119
purposes
100% 4,223,185 (771,452 3,461,733
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*

Net proceeds after deducting underwriting commission and issuing
expenses incurred from the Listing and the exercise of the over-
allotment option.

The Company will utilize the remaining proceeds in accordance with
the progress of the above expansion of our school network and the
business development. It is expected that the proceeds will be fully
utilised in the next 5 to 10 years but there is no detailed schedule
for the utilization of the remaining proceeds. In particular, it is
subject to, among others, negotiations and governmental approvals
for the Group to acquire land parcels or establish schools.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

Employees

As at 31 December 2020, we had a total of 11,976 employees.
The following table sets forth the numbers of our employees,
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categorized by function, as at 31 December 2020: % DHIEB ABBRAD
Number of
Full-Time
Function Employees % of Total
Biae 2HESBAE (HEYEI
Executive directors and core management WITEENROERAR 347 2.9%
Full-time teachers and instructors 22 ClNE L] 5,033 42.0%
Student accommodation staff BEEEEE 94 0.8%
Logistic personnel BEAE 555 4.6%
Administrative staff TAE 3,587 30.0%
Accounting and finance staff S RIBEAE 370 3.1%
Others HA 1,990 16.6%
Totaltet ] 11,976 100%

Note: Among 11,976 employees, we had 15 employees in Hong Kong and
11,961 employees in mainland China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis &g

Remuneration Policies

The remuneration packages of the employees of the Group are
determined with reference to individual qualification, experience,
performance, contribution to the Group and prevailing market rate.

We remunerate our employees with basic salaries as well
as performance-based bonuses. We determine employee
compensation based on each employee’s performance and
qualifications. We plan to hire additional teachers, instructors and
other employees as we expand. Our employee recruiting channels
include word-of-mouth referrals, on-campus recruiting and online
recruiting.

Our full-time employees in China participate in a variety of social
security plans that are administered by PRC local governments,
including but not limited to, pension benefits, medical care,
unemployment insurance, maternity insurance, work injury
insurance and housing provident funds. Chinese labor regulations
require that our PRC subsidiaries make contributions to the
government for these benefits based on a fixed percentage of the
employees’ average salaries of last year.

Our full-time employees in Hong Kong participate in a Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) which the assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of independent trustees. Under the MPF
Scheme, contributions are made based on a percentage of the
participating employees’ relevant income from the Group and the
only obligation of the Group with respect to the MPF Scheme is to
make the required contributions under the MPF Scheme.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wei (R1&), aged 53, a founder of our Group, is an
executive Director and the chairman of the Board. He is in charge
of the overall management and strategic development of our
Group.

Mr. Wu Wei obtained the qualification of senior economist granted
by the Personnel Bureau of Hefei* (BEM AZED) in July 2004.
Mr. Wu Wei has been a director of the board of directors of Beijing
Foreign Studies Universities Since November 2017. He graduated
from Tsinghua University School of Economics and Management (/&
7R B S I8 BT in Beljing, the PRC, with an executive master
of business administration in July 2009. Mr. Wu Wei has been a
doctoral student of Tsinghua University School of Economics and
Management, majoring in global executive management, since
2016. Mr. Wu Wei has over 30 years of experience in education.

Mr. Wu Wei did not hold any directorship in any other listed
companies during the last three years.

Mr. Xiao Guoqing (H ElE), aged 52, is an executive Director
and the deputy chairman of the Board of the Company and is
responsible for business management and providing opinion and
judgement to our Board.

Mr. Xiao obtained the qualification of senior economist granted by
the Personnel Bureau of Hefei City* (8 ET AZEE) in July 2004.
He graduated from Renmin University of China (FFEI AR AE) in
Beijing, the PRC with a degree of master of business administration
in April 2004 and a degree of executive master of business
administration in January 2009, and from Cheung Kong Graduate
School of Business (&)1 &£ Fx) with a degree of executive master
of business administration in October 2012. Mr. Xiao Guoging has
over 20 years of experience in education.

Save as Mr. Xiao has been a director of Xin’an Financial Group Co.,
Ltd.” (ZEF L RERE AR AR, a company whose shares are
listed on the National Equities Exchange and Quotations (stock
code: 834397) since August 2014, Mr. Xiao Guoqing did not hold
any directorship in any other listed companies during the last three
years.

* For identification purpose only
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Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wu Junbao (R 1R), aged 55, a founder of our Group, is
a non-executive Director of our Company and is responsible for
providing opinion and judgment to our Board.

Mr. Wu Junbao obtained the qualification of senior economist
granted by the Personnel Bureau of Hefei City* (BT ASE
/@) in July 2004. He graduated from Anhui Institute of Business
Administration* (Z# TR E k1) in Hefei, Anhui province,
the PRC with a degree of master of business administration in
December 2003. Mr. Wu Junbao has over 30 years of experience
in education.

Save as Mr. Wu Junbao has been the chairman of the board of
directors and non-executive director of China Xinhua Education
Group Limited (stock code: 2779) since October 2017, Mr. Wu
Junbao did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.

Mr. Lu Zhen (BEH), aged 45, is a non-executive Director of the
Company and is responsible for providing opinion and judgment to
our Board.

Mr. Lu graduated from Zhengzhou Institute of Textile Engineering”
(BRI &7 %% T EB7), currently known as Zhongyuan University of
Technology* (F/R TE%), in Zhengzhou, Henan province, the
PRC, with a bachelor degree majoring in mechanical engineering
in July 1999, and from Nanjing University (2R AZ) in Nanjing,
Jiangsu province, the PRC, with a degree of master of business
administration in March 2009. Mr. Lu has over 10 years of
experience in education.

Save as Mr. Lu has been an executive director of China Xinhua
Education Group Limited (stock code: 2779) since October 2017,
Mr. Lu did not hold any directorship in any other listed companies
during the last three years.

* For identification purpose only
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Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement (#£%1€) , aged 65, is an independent
non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Hung obtained a bachelor of arts degree from the University
of Huddersfield, United Kingdom in 1980. Mr. Hung had served
Deloitte China for 31 years where he had assumed various
leadership roles before he took up the chairman role of Deloitte
China from 2014 to 2016. He retired from Deloitte China with effect
from June 2016. When Mr. Hung was working with Deloitte China,
he had assumed various leadership roles, including the managing
partner of Deloitte Shenzhen office and Guangzhou office. He was
also a member of the China management team of Deloitte China.
Mr. Hung had also assumed the role of the southern audit leader
and the deputy managing partner of the southern region of China
(including Hong Kong, Macau, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Xiamen and
Changsha). He was also a board member of Deloitte Global.

Mr. Hung served as the Guangzhou Institute of Certified Public
Accountants consultant from 2004 to 2014. During the period
between 2006 to 2011, he also served as a member of the Political
Consultative Committee of Luohu District, Shenzhen. After his
retirement as the chairman of Deloitte China, he was appointed
as an expert consultant of The Ministry of Finance in the PRC. Mr.
Hung is a life member of The Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales.

Mr. Hung has, in the past three years, served or is serving as a
director of each of the following listed companies whose shares are
listed on the Stock Exchange:

° an independent non-executive director of Gome Finance
Technology Company Limited (formerly known as Sino Credit
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 628) since 31 October 2016;

° an independent non-executive director of Sheng Ye Capital
Limited (stock code: 8469, the listing of the shares of which
has been transferred to the Main Board (stock code: 6069)
from the GEM of the Stock Exchange from 24 October 2019)
since 19 June 2017;
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a non-executive director of High Fashion International Limited
(stock code: 608) since 1 December 2017;

an independent non-executive director of Zhongchang
International Holdings Group Limited (formerly known as
Henry Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 859) on 12
January 2018 and subsequently resigned with effect from 15
June 2020;

an independent non-executive director of Aoyuan Healthy
Life Group Company Limited (stock code: 3662) since 22
February 2019;

an independent non-executive director of Huarong
International Financial Holdings Limited (stock code: 993)
since 13 December 2019;

an independent non-executive director of Tibet Water
Resources Limited (stock code: 1115) since 31 December
2019;

an independent non-executive director of Skyworth Group
Limited (stock code: 751) since 18 March 2020;

an independent non-executive director of Lerthai Group
Limited (formerly known as LT Commercial Real Estate
Limited) (stock code: 112) from 24 February 2017 to 3 March
2017 and a non-executive director of the company from 3
March 2017 to 30 June 2017. He was re-designated as an
independent non-executive director of the company on 30
June 2017 and subsequently resigned with effect from 30
September 2018; and

an independent non-executive director of SMI Holdings
Group Limited (stock code: 198) from 16 January 2017 to 15
March 2017 and re-designated as a non-executive director of
the company on 15 March 2017. He subsequently resigned
with effect from 28 February 2019.

Save as disclosed above, Mr. Hung did not hold any directorship in
any other listed companies during the last three years.
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Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, Thomas (R E), aged 51, is an
independent non-executive Director of the Company.

Mr. Cheung graduated from the University of Wisconsin at Madison,
the U.S., with a bachelor degree of science in May 1991, and from
Cornell University, the U.S., with a master degree of engineering in
operations research and industrial engineering in May 1992.

Mr. Cheung did not hold any directorship in any other listed
companies during the last three years.

Dr. Zhu Guobin (%kEX&), aged 59, is an independent non-
executive Director of the Company.

Dr. Zhu obtained a bachelor’s degree in history, a master’s degree
in history and a master’s degree in law from Renmin University
of China in July 19883, July 1986 and June 2007, a master of
laws from the University of Hong Kong in December 1999, and a
doctorate in law and an accreditation to supervise research (Dipldme
d’Habilitation a Diriger des Recherches) from the University of Aix-
Marseilles in France in June 1994. Dr. Zhu obtained a certificate
in administrative engineering class from the National School of
Administration (Ecole Nationale d’Administration) in France from
June 1989 to March 1990. Dr. Zhu was a visiting scholar of Harvard
Law School, the U.S., from 2007 to 2008 and 2020, and a visiting
scholar of Columbia Law School, the U.S., in 2011.

Dr. Zhu is a guest professor of law in the Shandong University
and Sichuan University in the PRC, an adjunct professor of law at
the school of Law of Zhejiang University, Wuhan University and
Qingdao University in the PRC, respectively. Dr. Zhu is a titular
member of the International Academy of Comparative Law (Paris,
France) a member of International Association of Constitutional
Law, a member of the French Society of Comparative Legislation,
a council member of the Chinese Association of Constitutional Law
(FEFREHZE ), a council member of the Chinese Society
of Judicial Studies (% R])AFTE), a member of the Chinese
Association of the Hong Kong & Macao Studies, and a member of
the Association of Hong Kong Basic Law and Macao Basic Law.

Dr. Zhu is an independent non-executive director of Hybrid Kinetic
Group Limited (stock code: 1188) which shares of this company
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, Dr. Zhu did not hold any other

directorship in any listed companies during the last three years.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Au Yeung Siu Kei (B(f5JKE), aged 45, is the chief financial
officer of the Company and is responsible for financial management
of the Group.

Mr. Au Yeung is a fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a fellow member and Certified Public
Accountant (Practising) of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Au Yeung holds a bachelor degree in
professional accountancy from the Chinese University of Hong
Kong and bachelor degree in laws from the University of London.
Mr. Au Yeung has over 20 years of experience in auditing,
accounting and financial management.

Mr. Au Yeung did not hold any directorship in any listed companies
during the last three years.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Mao Chaosheng (EE), aged 41, is our joint company
secretary of the Company. Mr. Mao has over 17 years of
experience in management of administrative matters and human
resources relating to school operation, and has been working in the
Group since August 2004, where his current position is the head of
administration department and human resources department of the
Group.

Ms. Leung Suet Wing (RZ %) is our joint company secretary
of the Company. Ms. Leung is a manager of the listing services
department of TMF Hong Kong Limited and is responsible for
providing company secretarial and compliance services. Ms. Leung
is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom and holds a degree of master
of science in professional accounting and corporate governance
obtained from City University of Hong Kong in July 2016. She has
over 8 years of experience in company secretarial management
and compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has applied the principles of the code provisions set
out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the
“Listing Rules”). For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Company has complied with all the code provisions set out in the
CG Code.

The Board believes that good corporate governance is essential
to the development of the Group and to safeguard the interests of
the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”), potential
investors and business partners and is consistent with the Board’s
pursuit of value creation for the Shareholders. The Company
is committed to enhancing its corporate governance practices
appropriate to the conduct and the development of the Group
and will review such practices from time to time to ensure that the
Company complies with statutory and professional standards and
aligns with the latest development.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s
affairs. It should act in the best interests of the Company and
its Shareholders at all times. The Board sets strategies for the
Company and monitors the performance and activities of the senior
management.

The Executive Directors of the Company are responsible for the
day-to-day operations of the Company whereas the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company are responsible for
ensuring a high standard of financial and management reporting
to the Board and Shareholders as well as to provide a balanced
composition in the Board so that there is a strong independent
element on the Board.
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, Thomas

Dr. Zhu Guobin

The composition of the Board is reviewed regularly to ensure that it
has a good balance of expertise, skills and experience, which can
meet the requirements of the business of the Group. The Directors’
biographical information is set out on pages 42 to 47 in this annual
report.

There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Board and
the management. The Board is responsible for providing high-level
guidance and effective oversight of the management while day-to-
day management of the Group is delegated to the management
team of each respective subsidiary. Generally speaking, the Board is
responsible for:

° Formulating the Group’s long-term strategy and monitoring
the implementation thereof;

° Approval of dividends;

° Reviewing and approving the interim and annual reports;

° Ensuring good corporate governance and compliance;

° Monitoring the performance of the management;

o Reviewing and approving any material acquisition and
disposal of assets and other material transactions.
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RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN THE BOARD MEMBERS

Except for Mr. Wu Wei, Mr. Xiao Guoqging and Mr. Wu Junbao, who
are cousins of each other, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
there is no financial, business, family relationship among the
other Directors. All of them are free to exercise their independent
judgments.

DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE AND TIME COMMITMENT

The Board authorises the management to carry out the strategy
that have been approved. During the year under review, four Board
meetings were held and the principal business transacted including
but not limited to approving interim results and report, as well as
assessing business development and business performance. The
attendance record of each Director at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and general meeting for the year ended 31
December 2020 is set out as follows:

Corporate Governance Report ¥ &4 &
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g EFELEeRREMRERGHERS
SEATE

Number of Meeting

Attended/Eligible Attended

i L7
BFERHERY

Audit Remuneration = Nomination General™

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

Board Members EEZgRs EEg EnZE® §HMEEE REEES BREAEN

Mr. Wu Wei REXE 4/4 N/A i A N/A i 11 11

Mr. Xiao Guoging HEELE 4/4 N/A TNE A 1/1 N/A TNEFR 1/1

Mr. Wu Junbao RIEREE 44 N/ATER N/A i@ N/A @ 1/1

Mr. Lu Zhen ERLAE 44 NATERA N/A @ N/A @ 1/1

Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement 2% 4E 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung,

Thomas REBLAE 4/4 33  NATEA N/A i@ 1/1

Dr. Zhu Guobin REDEEL 4/4 3/3 1/1 1/1 1/1

All Directors have access to the joint company secretaries who are
responsible for ensuring that the Board procedures are complied
and all applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Apart from the regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
a meeting with Independent Non-executive Directors without the
presence of other Directors.

Note:

(1 Mr. Lu Zhen, Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement, Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung,
Thomas and Dr. Zhu Guobin attended the annual general meeting
held on 27 May 2020 by way of telephone.
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The Board ensures that its members are supplied, in a timely

manner, with all necessary information in a form and of a quality

appropriate to enable the Board to discharge its duties.

The minutes of Board meetings recorded all the details of the

matters considered by the Board and the decisions reached,

including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views

expressed. Minutes of Board meetings are kept by the joint

company secretaries and are available for inspection by any
Director.

A

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the
role of the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer
should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Wu Wei, the chairman of the Board,
provides leadership to the Board in terms of establishing
policies and business directions, and in charge of the overall
management and strategic development of the Group.
The Company has no chief executive officer and the daily
operation and management of the Group has been carried
out by a group of experienced management team members.

Non-executive Directors

Each of the Non-executive Directors has a term of
appointment of three years commencing from the listing
date (i.e. 12 June 2019) of the Company, and each of the
Independent Non-executive Directors has a term of one year
commencing from the listing date of the Company and will be
renewed automatically upon expiry.

During the year under review, the Company had three
Independent Non-executive Directors of whom Mr. Hung
Ka Hai, Clement has appropriate professional qualifications
and experience in financial matters in compliance with Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received, from each of the Independent
Non-executive Directors, an annual confirmation of their
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers all the Independent Non-executive
Directors to be independent.
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Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

All the Directors are appointed for a specific term and
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual
general meeting. Pursuant to the Articles of Association
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) and CG
Code, one-third of the Directors for the time being (or, if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third) shall retire from office
and be eligible for re-election at each annual general meeting,
provided that every Director is subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. In addition, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting and be subject to re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu
Wei, Mr. Wu Junbao and Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement will
be subject to re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

During the year under review, no other Director was
appointed to fill any causal vacancy or otherwise.

Responsibilities of Directors and Company Secretary

All Directors fully appreciate their role and duties as Directors
of the Company.

New Director will be given an introduction to the Group’s
major business activities, induction into their responsibilities
and duties, and other regulatory requirements.

Mr. Mao Chaosheng, the joint company secretary, is
responsible for advising the Board on corporate governance
matters and ensuring that Board policy and procedures, and
applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.

In order to uphold good corporate governance and ensure
compliance with the Listing Rules and applicable Hong Kong
laws, the Company also engages Ms. Leung Suet Wing, a
manager of TMF Hong Kong Limited, as the joint company
secretary to assist Mr. Mao in discharging the duties of a
company secretary of the Company. Ms. Leung’s primary
contact person at the Company is Mr. Mao Chaosheng, the
joint company secretary of the Company.
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The joint company secretaries are also responsible for
keeping all Directors updated on the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements.

Directors’ and Officers’ Liability

Appropriate insurance cover on Directors’ and Officers’
liabilities has been provided by the Company to cover
potential legal actions against Directors and officers.

Training and Support for Directors and Joint Company
Secretaries

Each newly appointed Director has received comprehensive,
formal and tailored induction on the first occasion of his
appointment, so as to ensure that he has appropriate
understanding of the business and operations of the Group
and that he is fully aware of his responsibilities and obligations
under the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements.

There are also arrangements in place for providing continuing
briefing and professional development to Directors at the
Company’s expenses whenever necessary.

The Company provides regular updates relating to the
Group’s business and the legislative and regulatory
environments in which the Group conducts its business to
the Directors.

The Directors are committed to complying with the
Code Provision A.6.5 of the CG Code. All Directors have
participated in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant
for the year ended 31 December 2020. The Company will
arrange internally facilitated briefings for Directors and reading
materials on relevant topics will be issued to Directors where
appropriate. All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant
training courses at the Company’s expenses.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has provided reading materials on corporate governance
matters and update on the Listing Rules to all Directors for
their reference and studying. Besides, all the Directors has
also read online training/briefing on regulatory development,
directors’ duties or other relevant topics. Record of training
of each Director for the year ended 31 December 2020 were
kept by the Company.
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REENEE2020F 12431 B ILFE
FE P 21530 2 (BRI Ee st aian T -

The individual training record of each Director received for the
year ended 31 December 2020 is summarised as below:

Participation in Continuous Professional Development RO020F L HfF B E R Z)

Programme in 2020
Reading online training/
briefing on regulatory
development, directors’
Reading regulatory duties or other
Directors updates relevant topics
MEN - EREEEE -
= BEEEREN ExEARHEM
BHEN EEEMAEY EHRE
Executive Directors HIES
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman) REFE(FRE) 4 v/
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy Chairman) & BB L4 (812 /&) v v/
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Wu Junbao RIEREE v v
Mr. Lu Zhen BEELY
Independent Non-executive BYEHITES
Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement HEEEEE v v
Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, Thomas REBLE
Dr. Zhu Guobin REDRE L v v

REBFER  ARRBEARWE
EBELEERRERLLTEZ2 N D
PA1BME N IR - SR E R
KNG - WA AR RIS 32016 ™
HIE °

During the year under review, Mr. Mao Chaosheng and
Ms. Leung Suet Wing, our joint company secretaries of the
Company, took not less than 15 hours of professional training
to update their skills and knowledge in compliance with Rule
3.29 of the Listing Rules.
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Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as
the Group’s code of conduct to regulate the securities
transactions of the Directors and the relevant employees.
Having made specific enquiries, all Directors confirmed that
they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2020.

Board Committees

As an integral part of sound corporate governance, the Board
has established the following committees whose authorities
and functions, compositions and duties are set out below:

(1) Audit Committee

The audit committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) has been established with specific
written terms of reference. The terms of reference
of the Audit Committee (which were available on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company)
have included those specific duties as set out in the
Code Provision C.3.3 of the CG Code, with appropriate
modifications when necessary. Pursuant to its terms of
reference, the Audit Committee is required, amongst
other things, to consider and recommend to the Board
the appointment, re-appointment and removal of the
external auditors and to approve their remuneration, to
review the interim and annual financial statements, to
review the Group’s financial controls, internal controls
and risk management system including the adequacy
of resources, qualification and experience of staff of the
accounting and financial reporting function and their
training programmes and budget, and to consider any
findings of major investigation of internal control matters
as delegated by the Board or on its own initiative and
management’s response. The Audit Committee should
meet at least twice each year and when the need
arises.
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During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Audit
Committee comprised three Independent Non-
executive Directors. Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement as the
Chairman of the Audit Committee during the year under
review and Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, Thomas and Dr.
Zhu Guobin as the members of the Audit Committee, in
compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, three meetings
of Audit Committee were held.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the Group’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2020 and has also discussed the
internal control, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group. The Audit Committee is of
the opinion that the consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the applicable
accounting standard, the Listing Rules and the statutory
requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in this annual report.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company
(‘Remuneration Committee”) has been established
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Remuneration Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the Code Provision B.1.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.
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Pursuant to its terms of reference, the Remuneration
Committee is required, amongst other things, (i) to
determine, with delegated responsibility from the Board,
the remuneration packages of individual Executive
Directors and senior management; (ii) to make
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of Non-executive Directors; (iii) to review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to
corporate goals and objectives resolved by the Board
from time to time; (iv) to review and approve the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors,
Non-executive Directors and senior management in
connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment to ensure that such compensation is
determined in accordance with relevant contractual
terms and that such compensation is otherwise fair
and not excessive for the Company; and (v) to ensure
that no Director is involved in deciding his/her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee should
meet at least once a year and when the need arises.

During the year under review, the Remuneration
Committee comprised an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company, namely Dr. Zhu Guobin,
as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, an
Executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Xiao
Guoging and an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company namely, Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement
as the members of the Remuneration Committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting
of Remuneration Committee was held. During the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed
the performance-based remuneration and the
compensation payable to the Executive Directors and
assessed performance of Executive Directors.
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Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements.

None of the Directors waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration and there were no emoluments paid by
the Group to any of the Directors as an inducement to
join, or upon joining the Group, or as compensation for
loss of office.

The biographies of members of the senior management
team at the date of this annual report are disclosed
in the section headed “Directors’ and Senior
Management’s Biographical Information” in this annual
report. Pursuant to the Code Provision B.1.5 of the
CG Code, the emoluments of the senior management
(excluding Directors) for the year ended 31 December
2020 are within the following bands:

Nil to HK$1,000,000 T 21,000,000/ 7T

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000

1,500,001/8 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 22,500,000/ 7T

Nomination Committees

The nomination committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) has been established
with specific written terms of reference. The terms of
reference of the Nomination Committee (which were
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company) have included the duties which are set
out in the Code Provision A.5.2 of the CG Code, with
appropriate modifications when necessary.
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The duties of the Nomination Committee are mainly to (i)
review the structure, size, composition and diversity of
the Board at least annually and make recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board; (i) identify
individuals suitably qualified to become Board members
and select or make recommendations to the Board; (jii)
assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors; (iv) make recommendations to the Board on
the appointment or re-appointment of directors and
succession planning for directors; (v) formulate a policy
concerning diversity of members of the Board (the
“Board Diversity Policy”), as appropriate; and (vi) to
review the measurable objectives that the Board has
set for implementing the Board Diversity Policy and the
progress on achieving the objectives.

The Nomination Committee will take into consideration
a candidate’s qualification, experience, expertise
and knowledge, the requirements applicable to the
Company and the structure and composition of the
Board, identify, review and nominate with diligence and
care candidates suitably qualified as Board members
before making recommendations to the Board for their
final appointment.

During the year under review, the Nomination
Committee comprised the chairman of the Board and
Executive Director of the Company, namely Mr. Wu
Wei, as the chairman of the Nomination Committee
and the Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company namely, Dr. Zhu Guobin and Mr. Hung Ka
Hai, Clement, as the members of the Nomination
Committee in compliance with Code Provision A.5.1 of
the CG Code.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, one meeting of
Nomination Committee was held.
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BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with a
view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of the
Group. The Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level
as an essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited
to gender, age, cultural and educational background, ethnicity,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. All
Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates
will be considered against objective criteria, having due regard for
the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Measurable Objectives

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.

Monitoring and Reporting

The Nomination Committee will review the Board’s composition
under diversified perspectives and monitor the implementation of
the Board Diversity Policy annually. During the year under review,
the Nomination Committee has reviewed the Board’s composition
(including the gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service) which has been disclosed on pages 42 to 47 in this
annual report and considered the current Board’s composition is
appropriate.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is dedicated to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and the Board is responsible for performing
the corporate governance duties as stipulated in the Listing Rules.

During the year under review, the Board had developed and
reviewed the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and review the compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Financial Reporting

The Board acknowledges that it is its responsibility to prepare
financial statements of the Company for each financial period which
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and
ensure that financial statements are prepared in accordance with
statutory and regulatory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Board also ensures the timely publication of the
financial statements of the Company.

The Board confirms that, to the best of its knowledge and, having
made appropriate enquires, it considers that the Company has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future and has prepared the financial statements on a
going concern basis accordingly.

Risk Management and Internal Controls

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board conducted an
annual review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems based on the confirmation made by
the senior management and inputs from the Audit Committee. The
Board considered that the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group, including the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting
functions, are effective and adequate during the year.
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The Board has an overall and ongoing responsibility for the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems, and reviewing their
effectiveness. It is acknowledged that risk management and internal
control systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the
risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material adverse
change or damage.

The Board, through its risk oversight role, ensures that the senior
management establishes an effective risk management, consistent
with the Group’s strategy and risk appetite. The senior management
establishes risk management policies and internal control processes
to identify, evaluate and manage risks. Each subsidiary implements
such policies and processes in the daily operations and reports
significant risks identified to the senior management regularly.
The senior management assesses and evaluates these significant
risks reported then allocates sufficient resources to address these
risks and monitors the risk management status reported from the
relevant subsidiary from time to time. The senior management will
communicate the risk management and internal control findings to
the Board for its assessment of the effectiveness of the relevant risk
management and internal control systems of the Group.

Pursuant to code provision C.2.5 of the CG Code and the related
notes of the CG Code, the Company shall have an internal audit
function which generally carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems.

The internal audit department of the Group shall review material
internal control aspects of the Group, including financial,
operational and compliance controls as well as risk management
function, duties which include (i) reviewing and reporting on internal
and operational controls; (ii) following-up on the suggestions
made by external auditors; (i) ongoing monitoring and reviews
on different operating cycles; and (iv) special review of areas of
concern identified by senior management. It reports to the Board
from time to time, and also reports the findings to the Audit
Committee at least twice a year and on ad-hoc basis. The findings
are communicated with the senior management and actions are
taken to resolve defects as and when identified. No material internal
control defects were identified during the year.
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The Group has a policy for handling and dissemination of inside
information including relevant control processes and safeguards.
The processes and safeguards are implemented as needed by
the relevant department heads and management involved in the
handling and dissemination of inside information.

External Auditor

The Directors are responsible for preparing the financial statements
for the financial year ended 31 December 2020 to reflect a true and
fair view of the Company’s and the Group’s financial position and
financial performance and cash flows for the year.

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020, the generally accepted accounting principles in
Hong Kong, Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and Hong
Kong Accounting Standards are adopted, with consistent use
of appropriate accounting policies, for making reasonable and
prudent judgments and estimates. The financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2020 were prepared on a going concern
basis.

The reporting responsibilities of the auditor are set out in the
Independent Auditor’s Report in this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this report, the external auditor of the Group is Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu. Fees of auditing services and non-auditing services
provided by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its member firms of
the same international network for the year ended 31 December
2020 were approximately RMB3.6 million and RMB1.2 million
respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
report, Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu and its member firms of the
same international network provided non-audit services mainly on
interim review, taxation services and other reporting services. These
non-audit services are engaged only as they are more effective
or economical than those available from other service providers
and will not constitute adverse impact on the independence of the
external auditor. The nature and ratio of annual fees to external
auditor for non-audit services and for audit services in 2020 have
been scrutinised by the Audit Committee.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual Directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.

Convening of extraordinary general meeting and putting forward
proposals

Shareholders may put forward proposals for consideration at
a general meeting of the Company according to the Articles of
Association. Any one or more members holding as at date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the joint company secretary
of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting of
the Company to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be
held within two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition.

If within 21 days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may at any time send their
enquiries and concerns to the Board by addressing them to the
joint company secretary by post to the Hong Kong principal office
of the Company at Suite 3207, 32/F, Central Plaza, 18 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
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CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company has adopted the amended and restated
memorandum of association on 21 May 2019 with effect from
the listing date of the Company. There was no change in the
memorandum and articles of association of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of this
annual report.

INDUSTRY POLICY DIRECTION

In December 2019, the Ministry of Education of the PRC
published the discussion draft of the Proposed Amendments to
the Vocational Education Law of the PRC (P ZE A R - FnE0 B
EHBERETER (HBOKERT))). The proposed amendments
recognized that vocational education shall have an equal position as
general education in the PRC and provided guidance to vocational
education in various aspects including government supervision
and support, teacher’s qualification, private capital in vocational
education, etc. Since the proposed amendments are still under
discussion and remain in draft format, there is no impact of the
proposed amendments to the business or operation of the Group.
The Company will closely monitor the legislative development and
make further announcement(s) on any update, if necessary.

IMPACT ON NEW LEGISLATION, POLICY AND
PROCEDURES

Over 90% of the operations of the Group are carried in the Mainland
China. Any change in the policy and procedure in the Mainland
China may have adverse effects on the Group’s operation and
results. Save as disclosed above, there was no material change in
the policy and procedure for vocational training education industry
in the Mainland China for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Also, the introduction of new legislation and rules by the Stock
Exchange, the Securities and Futures Commission and other
regulatory bodies in Hong Kong and overseas may induce changes
in market conditions that in turn adversely affect the operating
results of the Group.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of good communication with
the Shareholders of the Company. A Shareholders Communication
Policy was adopted to ensure that Shareholders are provided with
ready, equal and timely access to balanced and understandable
information about the Company. The Company has established
various channels of communications with its Shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a
timely manner. To promote effective communications, the Company
also maintains a website at www.chinaeastedu.com, where
updated information on the Company’s business developments
and operations and other information are posted, including all the
regulatory announcements relating to the Company and the poll
results on the business day following the general meeting (if any).

The general meeting of the Company provides a forum for
exchange of views between the Shareholders and the Board.
The Chairman of the Board, the Directors (including Independent
Non-executive Directors), chairman or members of the Board
committees and senior management of the Group and where
applicable are available to answer questions at the general meeting
of the Company.

The rights of the Shareholders of the Company and the procedures
for demanding a poll on resolution at general meeting are contained
in the Articles of Association. Details of such right to demand
a poll and the poll procedure are included in all circulars to the
Shareholders of the Company which will call for a general meeting
and will be explained during the proceedings of the meeting.

All resolutions proposed at general meeting will be voted by
poll. The poll voting results will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.
chinaeastedu.com) on the same date of the relevant general
meetings.
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Under the Code Provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the Chairman
of the Board should attend the annual general meeting of the
Company.

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings for
separate issues, including re-election of retiring Directors. The
Company’s notice to Shareholders for the forthcoming annual
general meeting will be sent to Shareholders at least 20 clear
business days before the meeting and notices of other general
meetings will be sent to Shareholders at least 10 clear business
days before the meetings. The Chairman, the chairmen of the
Board Committees and the external auditor will be available at the
forthcoming annual general meeting to answer questions from the
Shareholders.

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on 26 May
2021.

The Company will continue to enhance communication and
relationship with its Shareholders. Enquiries from the Shareholders
of the Company are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

REPORTING PERIOD

The time span of this Environmental, Social and Governance Report
(the “ESG Report”) is from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020,
some of which may exceed the above time range.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

This ESG Report is compiled in accordance with the requirements
of the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide
(“ESG Reporting Guide”) contained in Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) and its major amendments.

IN-SCOPE ENTITIES

This is the second environmental, social and governance report
released by the Company. Unless otherwise stated, the content
of this ESG Report mainly covers the ESG performance and
related information of the Group and its seven major industrial
brands, including New East Culinary Education, Omick Education
of Western Cuisine and Pastry, Cuisine Academy, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wisezone Data Technology Education,
Wontone Automotive Education and On-mind Fashion & Beauty
Education.

SOURCES OF INFORMATION

All information and cases contained in the ESG Report comes from
the public information, internal documents, and relevant statistics of
the Group.

REPORT APPROVAL AND ACCESS

This ESG Report follows the principle of materiality of the ESG
Reporting Guide. The board of directors of the Company confirmed
that it bears full responsibility for the Company’s environmental,
social and governance strategies and reporting, and has reviewed
and approved this ESG Report.
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I. ABOUTUS

The Group is founded and grown during the reform and opening up
of China, and developed and prospered in the rejuvenation of the
Chinese nation. Looking back at the history of the Group, we had
to fight against the extremely adverse circumstances, facing all kind
of challenges while staying true to our original mission in education.
It was also a process of building up our foundation, seizing
opportunities and ultimately gaining fruitful results. After more than
30 years of unremitting efforts, we were successfully listed in Hong
Kong in 2019, gaining access to the international capital market
and became the first stock in the vocational education sector
in Hong Kong, setting a glamorous path of development in the
history of the Group. Our listing is not the destination itself but a
new starting point for the Group. Looking back on the year since
listing, we have made remarkable achievements by adhering to
our strategic positioning of vocational education, further improving
our corporate governance capabilities, and enhancing our
comprehensive competitive strength.

The year 2020 was an extraordinary year in the history of the
Group’s development, and a year in which the Group achieved
comprehensive success in its transformation and upgrading, reform
and development, and meeting major challenges. In the face
of the sudden outbreak of COVID-19 and the complex external
environment, the Group remained steadfastly, calm, rational and
decisive, and successfully completed the strategic objectives set
for the year with the most thorough work and the most effective
measures, and made a great progress in all significant aspects.

Looking back to 2020, we kept a close eye on China’s talent
needs, upheld the vision of “providing the best vocational education
in the world”, devoted ourselves to cultivating national craftsmen
with equal emphasis on moral and technical skills, strived to make
vocational education with Chinese characteristics to go abroad and
towards the world, and build a leading and world-renowned brand
of vocational education in China. We kept up with the development
of the times, continued to explore new modes of vocational
education, closely integrate our vision with needs of the society and
the direction of the government so as to implement and promote
the state policy of vocational education. Moreover, we gave full play
to the main function of vocational education in maintaining a stable
workforce and protecting people’s livelihood. With this mission in
mind, we are more our confident in our future.
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During this year, thanks to the hard work of all employees, the
Group has expanded in scale with number of school, overall
revenue, number of long-term course students and other major
operating indicators all reaching new record highs. We continued
our investment input in teaching and improved the quality of
education services. The Group has been listed among the first
batch of third-party evaluation certification institutions for vocational
skill levels and the first batch issuing certification certificates in April
2020 in China.

Social commitment is the responsibility and mission that the Group
must undertake. In particular, faced with the COVID-19 outbreak,
we insisted on not cutting wages or laying off employees, and
paying all employees full salary on time, ensuring that more than
10,000 employees have secured jobs and income to maintain their
living. We contributed RMB31 million to support the health care
workers to fight against the epidemic. We are dedicated to building
the “Xinhua Cloud Classroom”, which has become a recommended
online platform for vocational skills training during the period
of epidemic prevention and control in the country, promoting
social employment and maintaining social stability with high-level
vocational skills education. We always keep up with time on the
way to fulfilling our social responsibility.

The Group firmly believes that the achievements of the Group are
closely tied with the great times that we live in. A stable society,
enlightened policy-making, market development and strength of
the country have all provided us with ample room for development,
forming favourable conditions for business operation and creating
rare opportunities for our development. We would like to thank
the country for this turbulent and ever-changing new era of reform
and opening up; we would like to thank all levels of government
and investors from all walks of life for their support, backing and
love during the growth and development of the Group; and we
also thank our colleagues in the Group who have worked hard and
shared the weal and woe with each other.
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We will continue to cultivate vocational education, nurture
craftsmen for the country, and insist on following the direction of
the market-oriented, serve our society and facilitate the labour
force. We will continue to vigorously promote “integration of
industry and education” and “school-enterprise cooperation”, and
actively participate in major national strategies such as “Made in
China 2025, “Poverty Relief” and “Belt and Road”, etc. We will
spare no efforts in repaying our country and society with more
brand-new ideas, strengthening status, more solid operation and
better results performance, and contribute to the rapid and healthy
development of vocational education in China, offering the best
vocational education to the world and building a comprehensively
well-off society.

MANAGEMENT IDEAS

Enterprise Mission

o Exploring the road to innovation and development of
education, and running the best vocational education in the
world.

Enterprise Spirit

o United, Practical, Pioneering, Dedicated.

Educational Concept

o Focus on practical skills training, combining theory with
practice.
° Love and responsibility.

Employment Concept

° Talents are our guarantee.

° Build up a person: To gain the opportunities to develop
simultaneously with the cause of education and achieve
respect from the organization and colleagues with
contributions to the cause of education.

° Build self-value: To gain trust of the organization and others
by virtue.

° Build a career: To gain a career by talent and performance.
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We established Anhui Xinhua Education to consolidate all
our schools under a single eneity.

RILT REHERE - BROFERREARE—HE -

The number of our schools in operation reached 27. Anhui
Xinhua Computer institute obtained the ISO 9001: 2000
quality management system certification. Langjie
Technology was recognizad as a high and new technology
enterprise by the Beijing Municipal Science & Technology
Commission for a period of two years.
EERARRYEET 27 f - ZEEEHEERRERE
i 1SO 9001: 2000 & /E & H§8 Ri2E - BAGRHEEMF
LR BRI E R ERERBHRIMDE -

The number of our schools in operation reached 40. Anhui
Xinhua Computer Institute was appointed by the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security to organize the
“Developing Talent with New Skills for China New Project”
and “Four New Talent Development Plan”.

B ERY BT 40 BT - TR ETHEERRR
NHBEEALE [BRFEEAS BRIER | R [
A EE R -

The number of our schools in operation reached 71, and
we expanded our business to Hong Kong.

EEPHRRBEBEE 717 - THEBRRERE -

‘The number of our schools in operation reached 126. We
founded Cuisine Academy to provide customized
catering experience to customers who are interested in
cooking or plan to establish their own businesses in the
catering industry.

BERORRBBED 126 T o RUEKRB R - BER
HREREB LA BIEERITEBITAIEN R PRI

As of 31 December 2020, we operate 206 schools in 29
provinces in mainland China and Hong Kong, and have
successfully issued the first batch of certificates of
third-party evaluation certification institutions for
vocational skill levels in China.

HE 2020 F 12 A 31 B * #MBEFEABEEHH
#) 20 EE R EBEE 206 TR - WK AR 2 E
ERE =D EREBE RS RER -
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We were established in Hetei, Anhui Province.
FMERRTRE AT

We started to offer automobile repair and
maintenance training programs under our newly
established Wontone Automotive Education
brand.

BRIOFIAENE MERTEHE R TRE
EBEEIRIZ

Wontone Automotive Education was awarded
“National Model Vocational Training Group in
Automobile Industry” by China Association of
Automobile Culture and China Auto Talent
Training Project Committee.

BRAESRERDEAELREGTT
BEAABRIBRESG TR [2ENETER

A EM]

New East Culinary Institute was elected as a
standing council member of the China
Hospitality Association in the first election of the
fourth council meeting of the China Hospitality
Association.
HRAZAEEBRETEREREENRE
BEEHRE —NRBDET AP ARREHE
BEHEEGKRE -

The number of our schools in operation reached
90. We founded Omick Education of Western
Cusine and Pastry to offer high-quality
western-style catering education.
BEPNBRMEET 90 AT o RIUBUKF AL
TEHE  RUBEEEHE -

In June 2019, the was listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. As of 31 December
2019, the number of our schools in operation
reached 177.

2019 F 6 A " ADAEBRZAER LT - BE
2019;& 12 A31 B - EEPNBRYEEE
177 Fi »
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Our Awards and Recognitions

Award/Accreditation

BPIRRE

Awarding Organization

RERRIE

2020 Reliable Education Brand

2020F ERAENHE mhé

The Best Partner in the Education Industry in 2020
2020 EH B THERIESIERH

Excellent Cases of Writing on “Epidemic Prevention and Labor Innovation”

(B & BB B 81T | BB E =PI

The first batch of third-party evaluation certification

institutions for vocational skill levels

BB RS RGRE 0 R AT B S

Recommended online platform for vocational skills training during the
national COVID-19 epidemic prevention and control period

BRHEHAR ISRk EREREIIR LTS

Anti-epidemic advanced private enterprise

NRAERERE

Executive Vice President Sha Xu was awarded the “2020 China
Education Leaders”

BRI R B T [2020F EFEHAE EEAY
2020 Socially Trusted Vocational Education Brand
2020 S IEREHEHE w2

2020 Leading Technology and Influential Education Brand
2020F ERHEBEX ENHAE @

Medical education and management job ability training
and examination training base

B Ey B MER MO NIEIE R IENIEM

Health talent training base

BERREATEERN

2020 “Fight the epidemic” Enterprises Fighting

the COVID-19 Epidemic

2020 BB ARG R AR E h%

2020 Leading Technology and Influential Education Brand
2020FERHNRARFENHE M

H3C Iicensed recognition centers
H3CT§TE i I?I_\.L /IL\

Py CRNY RN PR

Stk pOE Al

BEA LTRSS
20— n

A

Tencent Education Annual Ceremony
M A FE R

Baidu Marketing Education Industry Summit
BELHEHEITEES

Chinese Labor Association

Sl eSS

Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security

IR A N B IRFAE & (RSP

China Employment Training Technical
Instruction Center
BB E IR e E O
Association of Industry and

Commerce of Anhui Province
LA T g

China Good Eduoation Festival

EP .ﬁ_jrﬁﬁ JIEL/ S

China Good Education Festival

EFI .ﬁ}%&ﬁ ml/ ~

China Good Education Festival
AR B T2 A B

China Medical Education Association

TREEHEHE

China Association of Big Data for Health
Information and Healthcare
PRFEEEEERBRASEE®
Sina.com, Weibo

FORM - 1E

China Internet Information Center

o B B g 4 R P

New H3C University
E=RZ2
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H3C Authorized Qualification Certificate
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Il. SUSTAINABILITY MANAGEMENT

Sustainability Strategy

The vision and mission of the Group is exploring the road to
innovation and development of education, and running the best
vocational education in the world. To undertake the vision and
mission of the Company, we have formulated the sustainability
strategy, integrated the sustainable development into the overall
development strategy of the Company, and made the sustainable
development as a priority criterion. Combining the United Nations
Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and starting from the three
sustainable development dimensions of economic development,
social inclusion and environmental protection, we have sorted out
four main directions that the Group should focus on as a pioneer of
China’s vocational training education: solid innovation, equality and
mutual benefit, green environmental protection and harmonious
society.

- UREBREE
AIRHE R B

REBHBESMED S  RRHUBEHOEIH
HER K W RSTOBRERE - &
BERARMBESMNED - BRIMFIE T JHE
BRER  SUREEREZEMAIDGE
MEBEEEETR  UEHFELERIER
—IHELEMER - HFABARAIFEEE
E1Z(SDGs) * M HEER - tERAMR

SRE—ERSERRER DT - RAR
BHARBERPREBEREHE LERE
ERENIEEELR - LEEH - FF
BH -~ AREIRIR - Mgt

The development of education is the fundamental plan of sustainability. As the key to enhance the

Innovation

HEAIH

i awareness and ability of social sustainability, the Group provides high-quality education that meets the
Solid needs of students by strengthening investment and innovation, improving and expanding the development
of teaching and training on the basis of consolidating the original education concept.

We adhere to the corporate culture of openness, transparency, integrity and compliance; actively
promote mutual communication with students and parents; pay attention to the professional
development and the realization of self-value of employees; reach a consensus with all partners in

FE£ER

the |ndustry chain to build a healthy and mutually benef\aal sustainable partnership.

We are constantly committed to improving the efficiency of resource usage to reduce the emissions of

Green greenhouse gases and waste in the process of teaching and operations. Meanwhile, we are promoting

(SRTee g el solutions through our own brand advantages, leading all parties in the industry to actively promote energy

Protection

BRERR

oonservahon and emission reduct|on and the construction of green environmental protect|on society.

“Dedicated” is one of the Group’s enterprise spirits. In order to give back to the society, we actively

Harmonious corporate responsibility, and build a harmonious society.

Society | AR EEA LI —  BEELE
fne 2 = DR AR ERE - REREAE -

contribute to the country and society, promote all parties to invest in social charity activities, undertake

MIRRARRREEERMECHNNE  EERTR
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ESG Management

As a prerequisite for sustainable development of the enterprise,
a sound corporate governance structure can help realize the
effectiveness of the company’s internal resource allocation, and
at the same time ensure the long-term coordinated development
between stakeholders and the enterprise.

Since our listing in 2019, the Group has gradually improved the
strategic operating system of sustainability by combining the
environmental, social and governance requirements with the group’s
operation and management. The Investor Relations Department,
the Administration and Human Resources Department, the
Finance Department, the Audit and Supervision Department, the
Legal Department, the Procurement Department, the Engineering
Department, the Project Construction Department, all brand
divisions and schools have been cooperating to promote the
implementation and documentation of environmental, social and
governance work. The senior management is responsible for the
regular guidance and monitoring of ESG governance and timely
reporting to the Board.

As the Group’s operating decision-making body, the Board
establishes Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
the Nomination Committee and corresponding implementation
rules. The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
review and supervise the Group’s financial reporting procedures,
internal control system, supervision and audit procedures, risk
management procedures and external audit functions. In terms
of ESG governance, the Board is responsible for determining
ESG governance risks and establishing an effective management
system. The ESG Report for the current year has been approved
by the Board before it is issued.

In the future, we will further improve the ESG supervision
responsibilities of the Board, gradually establish an ESG evaluation
system, highlight the importance of identifying ESG risks and
opportunities to the Company’s development strategy, establish an
internal mechanism to monitor and supervise the management of
ESG matters, and ensure appropriate disclosure of the ESG risks
faced by the Company, the measures taken and the progress of
achieving the goals. When necessary, we will review, enhance and
improve the management and control measures for ESG matters,
and carry out long-term supervision on ESG matters according to
the strategy and with the purpose of establishing long-term value.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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Sustainability Communication

The Group focuses on listening to and responding to the demands
of various stakeholders. Based on the characteristics of our
business and operation, we have established diversified and
continuous communication channels with investors/shareholders,
teachers/employees, suppliers/partners, students, parents,
government and regulatory authorities, industry/industry
associations, communities and media to ensure the effectiveness
and transparency of mutual communication.

Stakeholder Material Issue of Concern

N8BS EXMBTEE

Teachers/employees Employment
/BT Employee compensation and benefits
Employee development and training
Employee health and safety
Labour standards
(=2
8 THr iR ta A
8 T 3R By
BTRENEEZS
LT AR

CHERER

AREERAR

AR BT BRI [ &S N 2 48 B 07 B9 R
Ko REBERXGLELNEH - HAIHE

KREE /PR #0 BT - HER 4
EEH  BE  RE - BRAREE#E -

TE/EEHE  FELE  KBEYT
;EM%EE@E CRER R ER B
BIGER o

Major Communication Channels

FERBERE

Communication on employees’
performance appraisal

Employee feedback

Internal publication

Team building activities

BTHEMERZN

BT MOERAE

AT

LIt
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Stakeholder Material Issue of Concern Major Communication Channels
MBS EXNRTERE FEBERE
Students Students’ safety and health Satisfaction survey
B4 Teaching mode Online/offline teaching platform
Teaching quality Community activities
Employment support Job placement and entrepreneurship
B R ERER guidance and support
HER Employment return visit
HEmE mEERT
eSS BE/ETHETA
HEEE
BB R 158 LK
MEEED

Government and Compliance operation Policy consultation
regulatory authorities Taxation Site visit
BT R BE Bt Emissions management Meetings and discussions
Use of resources with government authorities
Employment Report disclosure
Anti-corruption Daily communication
AR RKE R H A
BRI RISER
HEER R M & ok B
EIREF WEMRE
&R HE&ER
REE
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Stakeholder Material Issue of Concern

Major Communication Channels

IREBEBRE

FzEEE S EXNATERE

Media Compliance operation

iHEg Teaching quality
Employment

Labour standards
Environment and natural resources

EREE
HERE

E2fE

BT

R R BARIR

Materiality Assessment of Sustainability Issues

In 2020, the Group invited stakeholders to complete the
questionnaire on the materiality of sustainability issues to collect
opinions from various parties of the impact of sustainability issues
on the Company and the society. Based on the results of the
questionnaire, the Group conducted a comprehensive evaluation
and prepared the following matrix of materiality assessment.

= greenhouse gas emissions
BERBHER

=  Community Investment
HEBRE

= Electricity consumption
AE

= Water consumption
JiikIS

= Indoor air quality
ENEREE

= Non-hazardous Wastes
EEBEUHR

= Noise
I &

= Packaging materials

BEMEHER

Materiality to stakeholders
e BN SR O 2

Social media

Press conference

Press release/announcements
Interviews

FERR A

mEEnE

Al PN

5

AR EERAEERILNE

AL BN 2020%F B F s i8R 5 F R
TCAHBERZEEZMNEES) A
B BMEETHRAKEZRZEE QA
EitangERENERY  SERERS
HAEGRETHEANE  BETUTEER
MRS AR o

Employee development and training
BT #REEI
Product Responsibility
mEfE
Human rights
AR
Anti-Corruption
RB®
Hazardous %;s emissions
BEERH

Employment of child labor and labor
exploitation

EABEIMNLHHN

Employee Benefits
BTEA

Employee health and safety
ETREEZS

Supply chain management
frEEEE

Hazardous Wastes
BEBRUHR

Materiality to the Group

HEEBMHES
Very important important slightly important
REE 5= —RREE
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On the basis of the materiality assessment and its conclusions, we
determine the focus of this year’s disclosure. Among them, we will
focus on reporting areas that stakeholders consider to be “very
important” and “important”. We understand that due to the different
backgrounds and perspectives of various stakeholders, there are
different ideas on various topics, and we try to expand the scope and
number of samples to obtain more accurate data in the coming years.

lll. CRAFTSMAN WITH THE SPIRIT OF
CRAFTSMANSHIP, ESTABLISHING A BENCHMARK
FOR THE GLOBAL VOCATIONAL EDUCATION

1. Implementing Advanced Concepts of Vocational Education

The Group always upholds the educational tenet of “exploring the
road to innovation and development of education, and running
the best vocational education in the world”. We cultivate the
vocational education market and explore the best education model
through continuous innovation. The Group’s educational concept
accumulated by over 30 years of running schools is being handed

down from generations to generations of “eastern craftsmen”.

Education Research
& Development
System

HEMEER

Five systems
set a benchmark
for vocational education

AARER
S BEHE T

Entrepreneurship
and Employment
Guarantee System

RIBL R RIS A

Teaching
Supervision
System

HELERR T
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Integration of industry and education, and integration of political
and teaching

The 2020 Report on the Work of the Government clearly states:
this year and next, more than 35 million vocational skills training
opportunities will be provided, and enroliment in vocational colleges
will grow by 2 million. This will help more people improve their
skills and secure jobs. The Group actively responds to the call of
the state to deepen the construction of “integration of industry
and education” in vocational education. We integrate industry
and teaching closely to support and promote each other. The
school brands operated by the Group have cooperated with many
enterprises with leading management and technology in the society.
By rationally using the resources of schools and enterprises, and
jointly formulating the teaching and production plan combining
production and education, teachers can learn technology, students
can join in production, production can produce benefits, and
eventually achieving the goal of win-win between school and
enterprise.

Case sharing: The signing ceremony of technology strategic
cooperation between the Group and Lenovo and the unveiling
ceremony of Lecoo smart retail professional training base were
successfully held in Hefei, Anhui Province in 2020
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A

EH - BHHE
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The cooperation between the Group and Lecoo is based on
the long-standing friendly cooperative relationship between
the two parties. Relying on Lecoo’s smart life outlets, Xinhua
Internet Technology jointly built a high-level smart new retail
training base for the integration of industry and education, which
integrates “education and teaching, talent cultivation, training
and employment”, reflects the organic connection of education,
talents, industry and innovation, facilitates the transformation and
upgrading of the brick-and-mortar retailer to digital and intelligent,
and enhances the function of vocational education to serve local
economy and social development and promotes the high-quality
development of regional modern service industry.

Case sharing: The signing ceremony of strategic cooperation
between the Company and Yiwu Transportation Bureau of Zhejiang

Province was successfully held

Benefiting from the vigorous development of vocational education
in China, vocational education has ushered in the best era and
has a bright future. The signing of the contract has initiated the
development mode of the Group with the linage among the
government, enterprises and schools, and explored a new way for
the development of vocational education and the cultivation of high
skilled talents. The Group has always emphasized that “vocational
education” is “employment education”. This cooperation has
opened a green channel for the export of our skilled talents. In
recent years, the local government attaches great importance to
the introduction of talents. Taking this strategic cooperation as
an opportunity, the government and our schools actively built a
platform and established a talent export channel to lay a foundation
for closer, deeper and wider cooperation between the two sides in
the next step.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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All-round development of morality, intelligence physique and
aesthetic

Most of our students are in the critical period of personality
building. We believe that skills-oriented education and professional
accomplishment education are complementary and indispensable.
Through the implementation of “three teachings, three trainings
and one practice” in the schools of the Group, we aim to conform
to the law of students’ physical and mental health development,
establish the goal of vocational education and training according to
the actual needs, help students correctly deal with the problems of
puberty development, cultivate students’ ability to bear setbacks,
and provide students with learning guidance and sound personality
education. The specific objectives of “three teachings, three
trainings and one practice” are as follows:

1. Carry out morality health education to cultivate students’
moral sentiment.

2. Carry out legal safety education to enhance students’ self-
safety protection awareness.

3. Strengthen the promotion of school disciplines and rules to
raise students’ sense of discipline.

4. Carry out military training to improve students’ self-discipline
consciousness and cultivate their spirit of hard work.

5. Carry out internal affairs training to cultivate students’ habits
of paying attention to hygiene and acting in an orderly way.

6.  Carry out morning training to cultivate students’ ability of
communication, organization and oral expression.

7. Organise lectures on professional development planning to
enhance students’ understanding of majors and industries.

8.  Organise professional skills certification lectures to enhance
students’ understanding of the importance of certification.

9.  Organise lectures on entrepreneurship and employment to
help students integrate into society.

10. Carry out aesthetic appreciation exercises to focus on
cultivating students’ interest and aesthetic edification.
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“Three teachings, three trainings and one practice” guides
students to understand themselves, explore careers, and learn to
scientifically and rationally plan their studies and careers. It guides
students to establish a correct world outlook, outlook on life, values,
career, employment, entrepreneurship, and further enhance their
consciousness of career, integrity, team and innovation. Through
focusing on fostering hard-working, solidarity and cooperation,
mutual assistance, selfless dedication, good professional ethics and
civilized behaviours and habits, we will improve the overall quality
of students and effectively shorten the time for their transformation
from “school people” to “professionals” and build a solid foundation
for the realization of students’ sustainable development for life.

With the increasingly severe employment environment in recent
years, we believe that our students with high-level skills and quality
are able to have stronger competitiveness in the ever-changing
employment market.

Unique teaching mode of “116+vocational education”

“Any theory is not as concrete as reality.” The Group knows that
practice is the criterion to test students’ practical operation. The
brands and schools of the Group all adopt the mode of “work-study
combination”, which combines practical operations with theory.
We adopt new teaching mode to carry out reform for the traditional
classroom teaching and study in secondary vocational schools.
The classroom teaching mode focuses on cultivating students’
employability, aims to cultivate students’ comprehensive quality and
features a new teaching mode to achieve students’ autonomous
learning, cooperative learning, and inquiry learning through one
study plan, one classroom design, and six teaching links in the
classroom (referred to as “one-one-six teaching mode”).

° Our “learning plan” is different from the previous “teaching
plan”. The learning plan is based on “learning” as the starting
point, guiding the overall teaching design, reflecting the idea
of student-oriented, setting out clear learning objectives and
learning methods, training learning strategies, mastering
basic knowledge and using basic skills. Once students read
the learning plan, they will know what to learn and how to
learn. According to the different knowledge points, plans for
self-study, mutual learning and operating by hands, mouth
and brain are designed. Each knowledge point is operable,
specific and clear. The learning plan not only reflects the
learning results, but also the learning process.
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° “Classroom design” and “classroom teaching” are two
important aspects in teaching. In order to effectively teach a
lesson, our teachers carefully design the classroom according
to the teaching objectives and course content. Classroom
design is specific to every class from the perspective of
teachers’ teaching and guidance. On the basis of fully
understanding the teaching syllabus, teaching materials,
students and professional market, teachers design teaching
procedures, including the allocation of teaching time, the
determination of teaching objectives, knowledge points, skill
operation and matters needing attention. Through excellent
classroom design, the problems of boring classroom
teaching, lack of vitality, and difficulty in arousing students’
learning enthusiasm and practical enthusiasm are solved,
which greatly stimulates students’ creativity and the spirit of
continuous exploration.

° The “six teaching links” are determined in accordance with
students’ learning rules and the logical order of knowledge
deepening and skill development. The entire teaching process
is divided into six links:
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1. Scenario creation and new course
introduction

BIRIER - Bl AFTR

4. Clear division of work and
communication and discussion

RS T ~ R

2. Goal setting and tasks definition

HRBIE - AREES

The one-one-six teaching mode we created is based on the “work-

@

3. Guiding the learning according to the
learning plan and self-study
2RE2 . ATEY

study combination”, which creates a relaxed learning environment
for students, allows all students to participate in the whole learning
process. Through communications and sharing to generate new
inspiration, it can help students learn professional knowledge more
efficiently, and improve students’ interest and confidence in learning
at the same time.

5. Summarizing, evaluation and class
presentation
MEAARHE - 2R

6. Feedback monitoring and
summarizing to expand
EISEER - MBAEHRR
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2. High Quality Education Investment

Establishment of Educational Research and Development Institute

The development of vocational education must keep pace with the
times and evolve with the continuous advancement of the society.
In order to maintain our leading position in the industry and market
acumen, the Group established our own educational research
and development institution, the Group Research Institute. The
Research Institute consists of Research and Development (R&D)
Center, Certification Center and Teaching Material Center to carry
out research and development of various professional modules and
teaching materials, implementation and expansion of certification
business, cooperative development of academic qualifications, and
research on the development of vocational education.

The R&D Center is responsible for the research and development
of business modules with implementation of specialized,
systematic, standardized and practical research and development
management mechanism. We have built a complete closed-
loop system for R&D promotion and application, including project
research and development, achievement promotion, and training
and assessment of teachers, which lays a solid foundation for
our education quality construction. The Certification Center is
responsible for the implementation and business development
of the vocational skill level identification of third parties, and we
establish various identification centers. We carry out professional
skill level identification service nationwide to provide professional
skill identification and issue certificates for practitioners. The Group
always adheres to the principle of quality first, and strictly follows
the standards of professional skill appraisal to ensure the fairness
and justice of certification process. The Teaching Material Center
is responsible for the development, compilation, publication and
promotion of textbooks under each brand. Publishing the courses
independently developed by the Group into a series of teaching
materials not only provides learning tools for students on campus,
but also provides learning reference materials for practitioners.
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In addition to the three centers, the Research Institute actively
develops the service of academic upgrading which provides
academic upgrading services for the students on campus and
graduates and social practitioners who need to upgrade their
academic level. Meanwhile, the Research Institute also carries out
in-depth research on the development of vocational education on
a regular basis to provide effective case references for the Group’s
development.

This year, we continued to follow the pace of the Ministry of Human
Resources and Social Security, actively conducted research and
deployment for the new occupations released by the state, and
strove to cultivate urgently-needed industrial talents for the state.

Cultivating top teachers through cooperation with enterprises

As the core of teaching work, teachers have always been the focus
of our training. This year, our schools actively cooperated with well-
known enterprises to explore the development path of “integration
of industry and education, joint construction of teacher resources”.
For example, Wontone Automotive Education and domestic well-
known automobile manufacturers jointly launched the “ integration
of industry and education, joint construction of teacher resources”
to train 100 teachers. The joint construction of teachers and the
signing ceremony of specially-invited experts not only marks the
deepening of the integration of industry and education between
Wontone and enterprises, but also greatly enhanced the strength
of Wontone in the cultivation of talents in new energy sector. We
believe that under the close cooperation of sharing achievements,
complementing with each other and creating mutual benefits, we
will practically benefit more teachers and students in the future, and
achieve a win-win situation for schools, enterprises, teachers and

students.
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Online education contributing to the resumption of work and
production

Affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, the offline teaching time
for the current year has shrunk dramatically. In order to ensure
the teaching progress, we vigorously promoted online teaching,
so that students can enjoy quality education at home. “Xinhua
Cloud Classroom”, as an online learning platform independently
developed by Xinhua Internet Technology under the Company, was
launched in 2018. At present, the platform has more than 60,000
registered students, 1,500 registered teachers and more than 3,000
courses with a total of 50,899 class hours and 18,760 learning
hours. It provides courses covering all aspects of IT technology and
meets the needs of learning in multi terminals. In early 2020, Xinhua
Cloud Classroom was recommended by the state as an online
training platform for vocational skills.

At first, Xinhua Cloud Classroom focuses internal auxiliary teaching
to meet the learning needs of offline students and ensure the
teaching quality. Therefore, compared with other online education
platforms, Xinhua Cloud Classroom can not only meet the learning
needs of online open class and live class, but also provide students
with teaching services followed by class teachers matched with
offline class teachers and lecturers, so as to ensure the learning
quality and effect of students.

Introducing high-quality teaching resources

The Group attaches great importance to the investment in teaching
resources. As the leader in the field of vocational education in
China, it is our mission to provide first-class teaching environment
for students. During the year, we actively introduced high-quality
resources in society to join forces with domestic well-known
Internet enterprises and high-tech enterprises.

° Al Professional College-the Group cooperated with Baidu to
establish Al Professional College (hereinafter referred to as
“Al College”) to promote the deep integration of teaching by
taking the application of Al technology as a breakthrough. The
establishment of Al college will give full play to the advantages
of both parties in scientific research and technology, teaching
resources, education programs, talents training and other
various aspects, and create a national leading, regional and
connotative benchmarking project.
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o Smart campus demonstration school: the Group carried
out comprehensive information cooperation with Huawei in
teaching, management and service. Through Huawei’s global
leading smart campus concept and solutions, it provides
support for our schools in the network training room, campus
information center, 5G training room, artificial intelligence and
other platforms and infrastructure construction.

° Alibaba Cloud university laboratory and Alibaba Cloud
ecological talent training base-the Group cooperated
with Alibaba to jointly formulate new professional training
programs, develop teaching materials and explore vocational
education modes.

3. Support and Guarantee of Graduate Placement and
Entrepreneurship

The Group has always taken helping every student gain a foothold
in the society as its responsibility and adhered to fostering
students’ various skills with the orientation of employment. The
Group has established Graduate Entrepreneurship and Job
Placement Guidance Centers in more than 30 cities in the country,
and each school has set up Graduate Entrepreneurship and
Placement Office, which is equipped with professional graduate
entrepreneurship and placement advisors to provide students with
entrepreneurship and job placement platforms and assistance. For
the year ended 31 December 2020, the average recommended
employment rate of our long-term program graduates in 2020/21
academic year of New East Culinary Education, Xinhua Internet
Technology Education, Wontone Data Technology Education and
Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry reached over
90%.
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2020 Recommended Employment and Entrepreneurship Rate
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In order to provide a comprehensive entrepreneurial and
employment guarantee system for all students, we have always
insisted on building the “fivefold employment guarantees”:

° Systematic employment network covering the whole country

In 1993, China’s vocational education ushered in the opportunity
of rapid development, and the “China Education Reform and
Development Outline” was introduced this year. For the first time, it
was proposed that the country should actively develop vocational
and technical education, adult education and higher education, and
put the improvement of the quality of labourers and the cultivation
of junior and intermediate talents into a prominent position. The
Group seized the opportunity to start a national strategic layout and
set up Graduate Entrepreneurship and Job Placement Guidance
Centers in more than 30 major cities including Beijing, Shanghai,
Hangzhou, Guangzhou, Shenzhen and Suzhou. The intimate
service of the graduate entrepreneurship and job placement
advisors and the employment network radiating the whole country
ensure successful employment of the graduates.
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° Convenient and fast interactive employment platform

The Group organized the construction of the “National School
Website Employment Special Section” to create an interactive
online employment platform. Students have more choices as well
as a wide range of employment by utilizing the convenient platform.
This platform truly realizes the goals of “higher, faster, better, and
economical” employment for our students.

o Diverse employment channels without barriers

The Group is in close contact with government employment
guidance agencies and talent markets across the country to
open up employment channels and register student graduation
information in a timely manner. We regularly hold large-scale talent
exchange meetings and special campus recruitment fairs, and
students can easily find employment opportunities without leaving
campus, and no worry afterwards.

° Order-based school-enterprise cooperation enabling
employment upon graduation

School-enterprise customization establishes a communication
platform between enterprises and graduates, promotes in-depth
understanding between two parties, and broadens effective
channels for graduates’ employment. The Group has established
cooperative relations with more than 28,000 enterprises. In order
to ensure the successful employment of graduates, we cultivate
composite talents in need in industry, which means that they can
get employed after graduation and start to work after taking up
their posts.

° Association of national alumni enabling unlimited
communication

The Group graduates spontaneously set up alumni associations
throughout the country, which has become a close link between
students and established a communication channel between the
school and society. At the same time, we integrate various social
resources to build “bridges” among graduated alumni. It helps
students to achieve their career and repay the society.
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Systematic employment network
covering the whole country
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Convenient and fast interactive
employment platform

 EERREFE, SERE

Order-based school-enterprise
cooperation enabling employment
upon graduation
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In terms of entrepreneurship, we have established an
entrepreneurship training system, which aims to awaken students’
entrepreneurship awareness and teach entrepreneurship practice
through two modules of entrepreneurship awareness training
and entrepreneurship analogy training, so that students are able
to as well as being capable of starting businesses. At the same
time, the entrepreneurial support system is also the key to our
work. For students who have entrepreneurial aspirations, we help
them succeed in entrepreneurship by means of financial support,
technical support, resource support, personnel support, business
opening support and business operation support.

Before graduation, schools issue questionnaires to understand
students’ intention of job placement and entrepreneurship. After
careful communication with students and their parents, schools
communicate with cooperative enterprises to make two-way
choices and build links. Also, after the students are employed,
the Graduate Entrepreneurship and Placement Guidance Centers
will pay return visits to students and enterprises to ensure that
students’ following problems can be communicated and solved.

This year, led by the Group’s Graduate Entrepreneurship and
Placement Department and various business departments, 14
large-scale graduate entrepreneurship and placement department
activities were held jointly with our subsidiary schools, covering
various types of recruitment activities, cooperation and signing
contracts with famous enterprise, and the discussion about future
employment mode.
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Activity date

Activity subject
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EBEHE
2020 Spring Online Job Fair of Xinhua Internet Technology
FTEE G B R 2020F AR L REE

Signing Ceremony of Strategic Cooperation between the Group and Yiwu
Transportation Bureau of Zhejiang Province

AEBEINTE RSN BREBA FROEN

“Online visiting the famous company and wining the future by technology”(I 3£ | #2

A F A K) 2020 Online Signing Ceremony of Cooperation between Wontone
Automotive Education and a Famous Company

[E] R REmAR2020&E B TEHE R LB RELNER

Signing Ceremony of Technology Strategic Cooperation between the Group and
Lenovo and the Unveiling Ceremony of Lecoo Smart Retail Professional Training Base
REEEBAREEBEAERNERARREETEEXTIIA ISR EN

The Group joins hands with JD.com 618 e-commerce festival

AREBEF R R618E RN

Integration of schools and enterprise, winning the future by employment-a series of
graduate entrepreneurship and placement activities of Thousands of Enterprises and
Ten Thousand Positions in campus (19th large Internet + talent recruitment fair of
Changsha Xinhua)

REFEBEART LS EERBEIRERIEE (RAOFES19ERE FBE+A
THES

Release of New Major by Wontone Automotive Education in 2020 and the Signing
Ceremony of Ten Thousands Talents Training Program by Famous Enterprises
BRTEHE2020F MEERMBELZRES BABIFEENER

Youngster, the power to rejuvenate the country (5 4 5 & 3%E] 1 =) Release of New
Major by Xinhua Internet Technology in 2020 and the Launching Ceremony of IT
Youngsters Training Plan

SERERE N EMELRBERR2020MEXEMSBETEFREAERBER

Focus on famous enterprises and future employment (2 BLE 7 2K) Mutual
Selection Job Fair of Xuzhou New East in 2020 Summer and Autumn and Signing
Ceremony between Xuzhou New East and Enterprises
RELPRBERKRNARFT2020FEMERELEZSERLELNER
Deepening the integration of industry and education, cultivating craftsmen for a great
power-Signing Ceremony of Strategic Cooperation between the Group and Chery
Automobile Co., Ltd.

MMEEHRE /\ﬁklﬁfﬁs‘%%ﬁi AR RGD AR A FEE A ERLQOER

Awarding and Car Donation Ceremony by Chery Automobile for Provincial High-skilled
Talents Training Base

BRBHEEAT FI R R BT ImPERER

Strategic Cooperation Seminar among Top 100 Famous Enterprises by Tyreplus
(Shanghai) and the Group

SN (58) AR E AR B S Ff g

“Integration of industry and education, joint construction of teacher resources”
Launching Ceremony of 100 Teachers Training Plan and Recruitment of Technical
Experts

EHRE R E R AU AME R EMBERMERBEED

Strengthening skills in work and study and promoting development through school-
enterprise cooperation-Strategic Cooperation between the Group and Chang’an
Automobile
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Case sharing 1: on 28 February 2020, the Graduate
Entrepreneurship and Placement Department and Computer
Business Department of the Group organized Xinhua Internet
schools across the country to carry out a number of online talent
recruitment activities. The online recruitment campaign is an
innovative attempt made by the Group under the influence of
COVID-19 to ensure students’ employment. The recruitment fair
was held in a variety of conference modes, including talent reserve
meeting, talent negotiation meeting, preliminary selection meeting
and online mutual selection meeting. Through online introduction
the students actively obtain the recruitment information of various
enterprises, and have a detailed understanding of salary, working
environment and personal development space, so as to look
forward to the future employment direction and secure enterprises
suitable to themselves.

4  HEAT 4 AsR
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Case sharing 2: In the face of the future, Wontone Automotive
Education has taken action as a pioneer. On 8 July 2020, Wontone
Automotive Education held the signing ceremony of the 2020
new major release and the training plan for ten thousand talents
of famous enterprises. On the same day, Wontone Automotive
Education released six new majors in 2020, including major in the
application of intelligent networked vehicle technology, major in
the application of unmanned aerial vehicle technology, major in the
application and maintenance of service robot, automobile finance
and service major, new energy commercial vehicle technology
and service major, automobile intelligent technology and service
major. With the release of new majors, Wontone Automotive
Education held a signing ceremony with representatives of
national cooperative enterprises for talent training. The enterprise
representatives of Hangying UAV Technical Service Co., Ltd. (i
[& = A M TR FS AR A B]), Chery Automobile Co., Ltd., Chiata
Foton Co., Ltd., Dongfeng Commercial Vehicle Co., Ltd., Zhongxin
Zhibao Automobile Service Co.,Ltd. (F&Z 7 BREMREER R
@), Tmall Station Technology Co., Ltd. (KEEFE R AR A F),
Baozhijia Automobile Sales Co., Ltd. (B ZfEREHEAR AT
and Xugong Group Construction Machinery Co., Ltd. signed the
2020 ten thousand talents training plan with Wontone Automotive
Education to set up major oriented classes in our schools all over
the country and train ten thousand students.
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IV. METICULOUSNESS, BEING DEDICATED TO CARING
FOR THE GROWTH OF STUDENTS

“It is better to teach people to fish than to give them fish”. The
Group always regards teaching vocational skills and accumulating
knowledge for students to gain a foothold in society as its highest
mission. In terms of teaching, we provide students with a lot of
training opportunities and enrich their experience by participating
in competitions and other foreign exchange activities, and strictly
controls the teaching quality supervision system, promote the
improvement of education standards. In the pursuit of excellence in
teaching, we also pay attention to pour into love and responsibility
for every student to create a safe and healthy growth environment.
Each school of the Group actively organize colorful after-school
activities, and pay attention to the communication and interaction
between teachers and students and students’ mental health
education.

1. Protection of Students’ Rights and Interests

Since our students include adults and minors, we strictly comply
with the Tort Law of the People’s Republic of China, the Law of the
People’s Republic of China on the Protection of Minors and other
relevant laws and regulations, and also implement the protection of
the rights and interests of students and parents.

Safeguarding Students’ Fundamental Personal Rights

We fully protect the fundamental rights of every student, so
that they can grow up in a healthy and happy environment. The
right to health is one of the most basic rights of students. We
conduct complete inspections on campus, dormitories and other
educational facilities to prevent incidents that endanger personal
safety and also ensure a safe and healthy learning environment. At
the same time, we strive to build a respectful campus. The process
of students’ education is a process of gradually establishing “self-
personality”. We teach by words and by example, and respect the
dignity, honor and privacy of students.
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We establish independent files for students and parents, and
make strict regulations on the protection of personal information
and confidential management of files. We have established post
confidentiality agreement and the “Information Confidentiality
System”, and employees must sign the post confidentiality
agreement when they are onboard. After the information of student
and parent is collected and processed into the management
system, it can only be viewed with the authorization of the school
management personnel.

Safeguarding Students’ Rights and Interests in Receiving Education

Students are groups with diversity, and each student has his/her
own unique personality. We insist on the idea of student-oriented,
and create a stage for their growth and development. We respect
the differences of students, pay great attention to each individual,
and do not treat them differently because of their gender, race,
religion or cultural background.

Safeguarding Students’ Rights to Know and Appeal

Students are both production participants and consumers of the
school. We can play an active role in promoting education by
maintaining a good communication among the school, students
and parents. Students can exercise their right to know through
the following channels such as school website, publications,
broadcasts, publicity boards, bulletin boards and other public
resources to learn about the school’s news, regulations and
academic trends. The relevant departments of the school and
the class teachers are responsible for the communication and
transmission of information to students and parents. We have
professional counsellors and teachers to answer questions about
students’ concern. In addition, students and parents can learn
about the situation through field visits. All schools have established
corresponding procedures for the transmission and acquisition of
information to ensure the timeliness and accuracy of information
transmission.
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The right of appeal is also a basic legal right of students and
parents. Based on the actual situation of the school, we implement
the “Complaint Handling Measures” to regulate the institutions,
responsibilities and procedures for handling complaints. The
schools also set up principal’s mailbox, and students can directly
report to the principal if they encounter any problems. In response
to complaints, the student’s class teacher first records the
complainant’s relevant situation, including name, contact phone
number, complaint reason, etc., and establishes a complaint file.
We will follow up and conduct joint investigations with relevant
departments to understand the real situation of the problem, handle
it carefully, and report it to the management team. At the same
time, we actively communicate with student and parents until the
complaint is resolved. We will also conduct regular follow-up visits
to complaints to confirm that the problems have been properly
resolved.

2. Campus Health and Safety

In order to fully implement the policy of “safety first, prevention first,
comprehensive governance” and ensure the safety and stability on
campus and, the Group established a Safety Production Committee
at the headquarter. The members of the committee include the
Company’s senior management personnel. The responsibility of
the Safety Production Committee is to study, manage, coordinate
and guide the Company’s major safety production issues and
organize important safety production activities. Furthermore, the
Group has set up a Safety Production Guidance Office, which is a
subordinate organization of the Safety Production Committee, and
is responsible for the overall planning, inspection and summary of
safety management in terms of implementation. The principal is
the first person responsible for the safety production work of each
school. Each school has a Safety Work Leadership Team and a
safety specialist. In order to implement the responsibility of safety
management departments at all levels of the Group and make
practical efforts in safety management, we require all schools and
departments to sign the three-level Safety Responsibility Agreement
under the principle of “the person who takes charge shall be
responsible” to further clarify the primary responsibility of safety
management.
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In terms of systems, in accordance with the Group’s School Safety
Management System, Fire Safety Management System, Food
Safety Management System, Environmental Safety Management
System, Group Emergency Response Plan and in light of the actual
condition, each school formulates relevant safety management
system. In 2020, the death rate of the Group liability accidents was
zero, and no major safety accidents occurred.
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Gain experience and learn from profound lessons to firmly establish the concept of safe school running
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Standardize the accident information reporting to constantly improve the safety monitoring system
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Carefully carry out the investigation of potential safety hazards to consolidate the accident prevention mechanism

BREZEEERMKS  BAREEEKE

Build a long-term mechanism of safety management to improve the level of safety management

Firmly promote safety education and strengthen the sense of safety responsibility
RERELEEHIE  RELEEEES

Campus Security Management

Some of the brands of main business operated by the Group,
including New East Culinary Education, Xinhua Internet Technology
Education and Wontone Automotive Education, mainly focus on
longer academic system from half-year to three-year vocational
education. Most of the students live on campus, so the schools
mainly adopt semi-closed management. In order to ensure the
life and property safety of teachers, students and employees,
the campus sets up strict security system and personnel, and
students are not allowed to go out on weekdays without special
circumstances. The campus is equipped with a 24-hour full-
coverage monitoring system, and school security staff patrol the
key areas of the school at night. Several full-time teachers are on
duty day and night on campus everyday (including holidays). In
the evening, the school leaders, teachers and security personnel
conduct patrols and checks on the dormitory, and will report any
abnormalities in time.
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Regular daily and special safety education can play an effective
preventive role, so we require schools to regularly carry out relevant
safety education activities. In the professional accomplishment
education, our “three teachings and three trainings” includes the
safety and legal education course. In the professional courses, we
also educate students on standardized operation and emergency
response in fire prevention, gas, electricity and tools. In addition,
each class holds regular safety themed class meetings to enhance
students’ safety awareness.
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Epidemic prevention and control

During the year, in order to effectively respond to the prevention
and control of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Group has made
strict arrangements at the principle of social responsibility from
the following five aspects to ensure the safety of all teachers and
students.

1. We require all schools to strictly conform to the epidemic
prevention and control requirements of the local government,
closely follow the Group’s various work arrangement, play
the role of special epidemic prevention agencies, strictly
implement the responsibility system of the person-in-charge
and the class teacher, carry out the emergency prevention
and control plan, and make reserve of masks, disinfectants
and other epidemic prevention materials.

2. Keep close communication with teaching staff, students and
parents, fully understand the personnel situation, implement
health registration and grid management, and strengthen
personnel access control.
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3. Strictly implement the daily cleaning, disinfection, ventilation
and health report systems, especially strengthen the
management of dormitory, classroom, canteen, supermarket
and other densely populated places; the canteen should
implement peak shifting dining, and the personnel should
keep a safe distance.

4, Teachers and students should be encouraged to wear masks,
wash hands frequently and keep proper social distance.

5. Once a case or suspected case is found, it should be
reported to the relevant government departments and the
Groups at the first time for proper disposal, so as to achieve
early prevention, early detection, early isolation and early
treatment.

Fire safety management

In terms of fire safety, the Group and the schools strictly abide
by the “Fire Prevention Law of The People’s Republic of China”,
the local “Fire Control Regulations”, and the provisions of the
local government and fire department. We formulate the Fire
Safety Management System and the Fire Emergency Plan.
We require the fire management work to be implemented and
inspected from the following aspects: self-inspection of fire safety
facilities, improvement of fire safety systems, reinforcement of
fire safety education, implementation of fire safety measures, and
establishment of fire safety normal working mechanism. We also
cooperate with the regular inspections of local fire department. Our
Group designates 9 November of each year as “Fire Safety Day”.
During the week of “Fire Safety Day”, each of the schools carries out
annual fire safety special work. Every year, each school organizes
regular fire drills under the guidance of the fire department. During
the reporting period, the Group has not occurred any fire safety
incidents or inappropriate fire safety violations.
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Mental health management

In addition to physical health, students’ mental health is also
an area of our great concern. The schools set up mental health
assistance mechanism. The Student Office, the Academic
Affairs Office and the Counseling Center are responsible for daily
psychological guidance and facilitation. After obtaining student’s
consent, a specialist will be arranged to provide psychological
counseling. The schools of the Group have set up mental quality
training rooms, “Fun Time”, as special rooms for psychological
consultation. The schools also establish a database of psychological
assistance files for tracking and invites professional teachers to give
lectures on mental health from time to time.
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Health and Food Safety

In order to ensure the effective implementation of campus health
work, we formulate the School Health Supervision System.
In accordance with the requirements of the national health
department, the management of teaching hygiene, sports hygiene,
food hygiene and school environmental hygiene has been clarified.
We urge the improvement of all courses, environment and diet that
do not meet the health requirements.

Food safety is a serious matter, which is the bottom line we have
always stuck to. The Logistics Business Department of the Group
is responsible for the overall supervision and management of
the canteen, supermarket and student life services on campus,
and the Group establishes a specialized company for effective
regional management. The Group has relevant regulations on the
purchase, processing, sale and storage of food samples, and has
formulated the Food Hygiene Management System. On the basis
of the requirements of the Group, schools formulate management
systems such as Canteen Health Management System, Dietary
Management System, Dishware Disinfection System, Restaurant
Health Management System, and Food Sample System. We
comply with the national “Food Hygiene Law”, and establish stricter
standards on the basis of national standards. We also revise the
systems in time according to the updated laws.

We have strict control over the purchase of food. The suppliers
of raw materials and food must have the certificate of quality
assurance system. The ingredients must be fresh and high-quality,
and corresponding certificates and inspection certificates must
be provided. Every day, we have specially assigned personnel
to check and accept the raw and cooked food, establish the
acceptance book and make corresponding records. The canteen
staff are required to have physical examination in designated
hospitals before taking the post, and only the qualified staff can
take the post. The physical health examination must be carried out
once a year. In the process of cooking, the food must be cooked
thoroughly and it is also required to separate the cooked food from
the raw food. Tableware and utensils must be disinfected in strict
accordance with the standard of “first wash, second brush, third
flush and fourth disinfection” to meet the relevant national health
standards. The food produced by the canteen and sold by the
supermarket must be kept for 48 hours for inspection and test by
the superior food safety department and educational authorities.
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The Group and schools carry out regular on-site inspection of food
hygiene in canteens and supermarkets. The Audit and Supervision
Department of the Group conducts the inspection once a year,
and the Logistics Business Department inspects twice a year.
Schools usually conduct random inspections and give feedbacks to
relevant departments. There are suggestion boxes on campus, and
the Logistics Business Department communicates with students
during student conferences and enrollment, listens to students’
feedback on the canteens, and conducts safety education on food
safety for students. The Logistics Business Department organizes
regular activities and invites students to visit the kitchen to let
students understand the whole process of food processing and
manufacturing, so that they can eat with more assurance.

We have also established a sound “Food Hygiene and Safety
Emergency Plan”, which clarifies the accident emergency handling
process from the aspects of reporting system, rescue measures,
medical rescue, source of disease protection, personnel scheduling
and information disclosure. At the same time, we also regularly
carry out food poisoning emergency plan drills to ensure the
effectiveness and enforceability of the plan.
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Case sharing: In the kitchen opening day, students can have
a full and comprehensive understanding of the environmental
hygiene, raw material procurement, food storage, production
and processing, food sample retention, cleaning and disinfection,
kitchen waste disposal, staff management and other aspects of
the restaurant. In such manner, students’ doubts in daily dining
are removed in the form of questions and answers, which further
improves students’ consumption satisfaction.

3.  Strict Teaching Quality Assurance

Teaching Quality Evaluation Systerm

We adhere to the principle of “quality of education is the lifeline
of running a school”. The business departments at the Group,
schools and teachers establish our three-level quality supervision
system. We can understand and master the dynamic situation in a
purposeful and planned manner in teaching through daily teaching
inspection, normal assessment of teaching process, feedback of
teachers, regular assessment of students, and regular satisfaction
survey to students and parents. We also communicate, provide
feedbacks and adjust the teaching in a timely manner.
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In order to improve the quality of teaching, schools establish
a mechanism of teaching inspection and supervision. Schools
conduct regular or random checks on teachers’ teaching plan,
teaching satisfaction, assessment and evaluation, and evaluation of
their professional titles. Any innovative idea or deficiency found will
be timely summarized. Moreover, we pay attention to listening to
the opinions of all parties. Every quarter, school management team
and teachers hold seminars to collect teachers’ suggestions and
opinions on various aspects of teaching and propose corrective
measures. Student symposium are also organized by the school
management team every two months. We listen to the questions
raised by students and effectively implement them into practical
actions to provide students with teaching methods and content
that can meet their needs. At the end of each course, we will
organize students to complete a satisfaction survey on the situation
of teaching on the online satisfaction system. Meanwhile, in the
monthly special inspection of integration construction, we will
also conduct telephone interviews with students who have been
employed for 3 to 6 months to understand their employment
stability rate, salary standard rate and employment satisfaction.
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In 2020, the Audit Supervision Department of the Group 2020%F F  SEBEAT BRI 19207
investigated 192 schools, and received a total of 20,507 student Pk - HERSEARMEHEE20,65071 @ &

questionnaires, results of which are as follows: BRHENT :

Evaluation indicators Average points/Recommended rate
%‘:FE?EE_E SFi/]/EI /\/*&%z

Practical teaching 96.13 points

ERHE IS 96.13%

Dormitory management 91.54 points

BRESEE 91.54%)

Employment activities held by the school 91.64 points

BERARMNBESE 91.64%

Whether to recommend the school 90.22%

A EHBARR 90.22%

Colorful Exchange Activities EE R G E)

In order to broaden students’ horizons and train their abilities, REMBERR - BRBLEREN  AKE

the Group actively organizes various institutions to participate in RSB S MR AL T -
vocational skills competitions.

On 10 December 2020, the first National Skills Competition was 202012 8108 * £—E2 R AEE
opened in Guangzhou. With the theme of “New Skills, New Era BEMNEEE - EEAZAHES A TR
and New Dreams”, the first competition lasted for three days, with BlAXTE  BHI=X HBeeFELER
86 projects and more than 2,500 contestants and 2,300 judges =, ﬁﬁg 500% BIEFE - 2,300% & H ¥

participating. It is a comprehensive national professional skills B8 EFhBRRTURERES -
competition with the highest specifications, the most projects, IEE 2% - HESA  KESSHNGAE

the largest scale and the highest level since the founding of New GEEE R T b
China. The students of Xinhua Internet Technology Education have HEF - REBRR - RIEFHZERN |
performed well in the competition, demonstrating Xinhua'’s style!
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V. INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN HANDS WITH
EXCELLENT EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS
TOGETHER

The Group always regards its employees as our most valuable
wealth, whether the person in the management position that drives
the Group to forge ahead, teachers that work in the front line of
teaching, or the person in the logistics position that silently commit
himself/herself to, and every employee contributes his/her own
value to the vigorous development of the Group. We believe, on
the road of “promoting education and serving the country”, making
good use of talents is the primary productive force for enterprise
development while being kind to talents is the foundation for the
long-term development of the enterprise.

1. Employee Profile

The headquarter of the Group has 20 functional departments,
9 business divisions, and 206 operating schools under it, with a
total of 11,976 employees and the total employee turnover rate of

21.8%.

By gender

31 ABEH

w
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By personnel category

RE-#HERER

h - #ERE G BFEFETIHERES
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1 BI#HR

NEBEEBHABEEEFI20ME - EE 209
i - AR NBEEER206FT - LA BIE
E11,976 A » ETHEEERAE £21.8% °

By management level

EEER

TS

= Male = Female = Management = Teacher = Logistics = Mid-to-high = Middle = Basic
BHET 4LMET position position level level level
[ liva E2Gillals hEE tE £E
By age By working years Employment category
FERERM TERs EREAR

= Under 30 = 30-45 =« Over45
3000 30-45 450 I —FUT —FEE
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2. Employee Rights Protection

We abide by the national and regional laws and regulations such
as the “Labour Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Provisions on
the Prohibition of the Use of Child Labour”, and “Special Provisions
on the Labour Protection of Female Workers”, etc. Based on the
laws and regulations, we have established internal management
procedures to regulate the Group’s policies and measures on
recruitment, hiring, promotion, dismissal, compensation and
benefits, attendance and vacation, equal employment, and anti-
discrimination.

The Group is committed to creating a fair and harmonious working
environment and rejects any form of insult and discrimination.
We do not give different treatments to employees based on their
ethnicity, race, age, gender, marital status, and religious belief. We
firmly prohibit forced and exploitative labour practices and promise
not to use child labour under the legal age. Our “Employment
Management System” clarifies that the Human Resources
Department conducts strict inspections on employee identification
information and other documents during the recruitment process,
and confirms the authenticity of age and other information before
hiring. If our employees discover related issues, they can report to
the upper management through real name or anonymous methods.
Audit and Supervision Department and other relevant departments
will promptly investigate and give feedback. In 2020, the Group did
not use child labour or forced labour.

During the year, the Group experienced an incidence of work injury
where one employee was injured. There were a total of 253 lost
days due to work injury. Since the listing of the Company up to
31 December 2020, the Group only experienced one incidence of
work injury.
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The Group provides a competitive salary and welfare system for all
employees, adopts a combination of fixed and variable salary, and
increases a diversified welfare system. According to the regulations,
we pay “insurances and housing fund” to all employees, as well
as provide promotion training, working lunch, high-temperature
subsidies, paid annual leave, health examinations, team building
activities, year-end bonuses, holiday benefits, development training,
employee shuttle, employee dormitory, employee family care and
other welfare measures.

Environmental, Social And Governance Report 1% « H 2R ERRE

AEEAMBEIREAEHRFESNE
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3. Employee promotion

The Group has established a sound employee promotion
mechanism and adopted the dual-track promotion channel of
position rank and title system, which provides an upward ladder for
employees of the Group, business divisions and subordinate units.

w
0

Business divisions
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Subordinate units

Level 1
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Level 2
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Level 3
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Level 4
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Level 7
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Chairman
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President
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Executive vice president
BiREIEE

Vice president/

Chief Financial Officer /
BB BEIBE

Board secretary/director/

Assistant to Chairman/
General manager
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President Assistant
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manager (chair)/Senior
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Department head
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School principal/(Regional)
general manager/Executive
deputy general manager (chair)
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(Regional) deputy general
manager-chair/Executive deputy
school principal-chair/(Regional)
executive deputy general
manager-chair
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Business divisions Subordinate units

B TESEMN

School principal assistant/
(Regional) executive general
: manager assistant-chair/
Assistant to department ~ General manager ) : )
Level 9 : : (Regional) director-chair/
&R head-chair assistan (Regional) agency director-chair
: BN — g2 BhIe o
: Be B2 (B i) 44T I28)
B-x5(EE)BE—F
B/ (RE)RIBEE 5

(Regional) deputy director/
Head/Manager/Supermarket

Middle level Level 11 Manager Manager manager
= A "_} “_ () & &
il T e = (BE)EIRE L1852/
s R

Supervisor/Head chef/
Supermarket foreman

TE BRBHER

Basic level Level 13 Supervisor Supervisor
AE T=& == FE
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4, Staff Training and Development 4. BIF|HEER

We believe that the progress of employees and the development HMRBELIMELHEENZEREZAE
of the Group are complementary and indispensable, so we attach ERH - B EM T2 ERE TEBE

great importance to the improvement of employees’ professional HREREMIRES  c SETBAFTH TR
ability and comprehensive quality. A special training center is set up FPIMEIIF L - BEEEHIEE B
under the administration and personnel department of the Group, FRUEFSEXIABERE - HMAT

which is responsible for leading the formulation of staff training Bl - TRIBHRM TR EKBENE T

programs and organizing the implementation together with each REXEEIIRE  2EeE S -
business unit. We set up various training courses for employees HEME X - miEE - @ARELEI
of different positions, different levels and different business areas, % - BIERE - AEIIFRLOTEEIR

including corporate culture training, professional training for BEAESER  MBEIEEMNRIELE R
teachers, market training, network operation training, etc. After L ERSEIIR MR RRER - BEE
the training, the training center will issue a training satisfaction THEIIFEK -

questionnaire and get corresponding feedback in time, so that it
can be strengthened and improved in the future training to meet
the training needs of employees.

Category Course classification
Yl RESE
Company development and culture Business culture
NEIER KL Rules and regulations
Integrity training, etc.
hEXE
REHIE

Comprehensive quality Leadership

RERHE Communication
Professional etiquette, etc.
EEN
B
BERES
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Hours per
Schools Training times capita/Year
5% IR E AR F
New East Culinary Education
R REHE 1,555 30

Xinhua Internet Technology Education
MEBKHE 1,007 55

Wontone Automotive Education
BiBAEHE 1,166 73

China East Education Holdings Limited ® FEEH#FIERERAF]
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5. Humanistic Care

For the selfless dedication and ingenuity of employees, the Group
also provides a safe, healthy, harmonious and friendly working
environment for this large family, and strengthens the spiritual
care of employees. Our schools often organize various cultural
construction activities for employees, including Teachers’ Day
tug-of-war competition, sports games, Women’s Day activities,
teacher-student basketball games, etc., which greatly enriches
employees’ spiritual and cultural life and enhances corporate
cohesion.

10 September 2020 is the 36th National Teachers’ Day. “To learn is
better than a teacher” is the fine tradition of the Chinese nation. In
order to thank all staff members for their contributions to education,
the Group held the theme activity of “Remain True to Our Original
Aspiration and Cast the Spirit of Teachers” for Teachers’ Day 2020.

During the event, the leaders of the Group presented flowers
and blessings to the representatives of outstanding teachers,
appreciating their determination and dedication for their work and
to educate people, and their love and responsibility to light up the
dreams of life for the students. After the thanking ceremony, the
Group also organized the Teachers’ Day Fun Games to enrich the
teachers’ extra-curricular activities.
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V. ENERGY CONSERVATION AND EMISSION
REDUCTION, MAKING EFFORTS TO ACHIEVE THE
ENTERPRISE GREEN TRANSFORMATION

The Group is the pioneer in vocational education in China. We
believe that environmental protection and green development are
the fundamental responsibilities of the Group. We abide by the
relevant laws and regulations such as the PRC Environmental
Protection Law and relevant requirements of the Stock Exchange,
continue to implement the green work requirements of the Group,
enhance the environmental protection management, build the green
work atmosphere and green campus. The school leading group for
energy conservation and emission reduction constantly monitors
the implementation of environmental protection in all schools,
implements all kinds of environmental protection regulations
and requirements, and promotes the publicity and education of
environmental protection in all schools.

In 2020, the Group has not experienced incidents that have
a serious impact on the environment, nor has there been any
environmental protection related complaints. The Group’s
environmental protection presents the below highlights:

Onling live streaming: the courses are near at hand, reducing the commuting emission and paper waste

REERE  RIEET A N BABEEER R ERRE

Environmental, Social And Governance Report

RE-#HERER
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MRS BRERENGEEREEENE
AEAE - BFET (P EARLMBEIRRR
#)X) SHARER MR PTARER -
BEFTRENZE TEER - MERRF
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RETRERBERE/ NMAH XA IRIFR#E
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RERTERER » WHBSREETRE
RENTEHE

2020F €  EEARBLEKEBEREFE
BEH - IARBEETAERRABEAEER
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Rz M ETREE - BATHAR - [REREIRIBRE

Variable frequency air conditioner and energy-saving lamps: hardware is upgraded drastically, reducing the energy consumption

RKREAZE : TREERSLZEERN - BAMEIRE

Prefabricated construction: factory production site installation mode, reducing material waste

BREI%  ETREERE - ERMEFRE

Template approach: construction quality is guaranteed and the air quality is improved

New energy vehicle: green energy, creating the green travel mode

HBLIREE AR ERER - TEZEHTES

ololelols
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1. Energy Conservation

Diligent and thrifty are traditional virtues. We not only publicize the
saving concept at the staff level of the company, but also promote
the green concept to students during the daily teaching.

We require the headquarter and all schools to fulfil the obligation of
energy conservation, and broadcast the environmental protection
idea to more staffs and students. In terms of hardware equipment,
we use energy-saving and variable frequency air conditioner in
new renovation school projects, promote the use of energy-saving
lamp in decoration and reduce the electricity consumption. All
schools also encourage the use of natural light for lighting and
the habit of turning off lamps when going out. In addition, we
require that the temperature setting of the air conditioner shall
not be lower than 26 degrees Celsius in summer, and shall not
be higher than 20 degrees Celsius in winter. During the course of
cooking, we reduce the consumption of natural gas and electricity
through environmental protection and energy conservation kitchen
equipment and high-performance oil fume purifier.

In respect of the use and saving of water resource, by continuing
the previous system, we set quotas for water consumption
restrictions in student apartments and canteens, and restrict and
reduce the usage of water through quota. We will also adjust the
water supply according to the season and post the tips on water
conservation. In order to improve the utilization rate of water
resource, we use the reusable water resource such as rain to
irrigate the school plants. During the daily work, we encourage the
electronic and paperless office and share through screen while
teaching to minimize the use and waste of papers. Certain schools
launch the online live courses and on-demand courses, so as to
reduce the paper printing while providing convenience for students
to arrange their own times.
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CHERE

2020 Data

\
N

B/A

Indicator Unit

i STEEN

Total comprehensive energy consumption tonnes of standard coal
FERERAS MEAR B

Total water consumption tonnes

AkEE e

Total electricity consumption kWh
RE#E T R

Total natural gas consumption m?
KRR HFERE ST K

Total gas consumption m?

RRHEFERE SR

2020 B8

5,309.98

4,658,5636.05

72,724,343.85

3,121,657.00

419,606.00
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Indicator Unit 2020 Data
it FTREN 2020F HiE
Total LPG consumption kg

RICAMREFEAE TR 367,742.9

Total gasoline consumption litre
FURHAE RS nF 632,792.11

Total gasoline consumption litre
SRHRERE D 7,059.73

Total consumption of packaging materials tonnes

BEMEDHEERE ] 66.43

Note: The comprehensive energy consumption is calculated according to 2 RARREREREFREARLRN
the conversion factors in the “General Principles of Comprehensive FRIZHE SR G REFERT B M AI(GB/T 2589-
Energy Consumption Calculation (GB/T 2589-2008)”, a national 2008) P E ZHETHE -

standard of the People’s Republic of China.
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Case sharing 1:

As the cradle of Chinese professional cooks, New East Culinary
Education introduces and uses the integrated cookers. Through
the instant smoke sucking in range hood and inductive ignition
and extinguishment in cooking range, while cleaning the smoke
produced during cooking, it minimizes the waste of natural gas.

Environmental, Social And Governance Report &5 » # 2R ERRE
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Case sharing 2:

The Group’s new school located in Chengdu will use the
prefabricated building technique. Through the mode of combining
the batch production and processing in factories with on-site
assembly, it minimizes the uncontrollable factors of the projects,
S0 as to achieve the goal of saving of water, energy, electricity and
materials. At the same time, prefabricated buildings minimize the
on-site waste and milling dust, which further improve the air quality
in the construction site.
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2. Emissions Reduction

We attach great importance to the health of students, staffs and
community populace as well as the natural environment. We
establish strict regulation on the waste emission and garbage
disposal in all schools, manage and reduce the emission through
continuous technological innovation.

The Group revises the project management system, in which the
regulation on template approach is put forward, which requires
that template construction and acceptance procedures shall
be conducted before large area construction in all projects, to
guarantee the construction quality, thus reducing the material waste
and air pollution caused by the substandard quality of large area
construction. In addition, the drainage system of rain and sewage
diversion in schools can avoid the sewage from flowing to rivers to
the great extent, and reduce the sewage treatment volume. The
collected rain will be reused and the sewage will be discharged
after the secondary filtration.

The training rooms in automobile schools are equipped with
exhaust emission purification devices, which discharges the tail
gas directly through the point-to-point rubber tube connecting the
car with the outdoor, without polluting the indoor air. In respect
of the automobile paint coated and used in train teaching in
automobile schools, we have uniformly purchased and used water
paint. Compared with automobile paint, the usage of water paint
is reduced by two-thirds, and the heat required for paint baking
is reduced by 40%. The automobile schools use dust dry mill and
centrally integrated dry mill, which inhale rapidly the dust produced
from the paint repair and centrally proceed. Hazardous wastes
are proceeded by third-party manufacturers, to avoid secondary
pollution.
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Meanwhile, all schools promote waste classification and treatment, R SEARRETELNFE DI - SR
the kitchen waste, hazardous wastes, recyclables and other wastes % - BELNR - AU FE s 5 B
are cleaned up and processed by relevant municipal departments H¥ETE - BTHEGERERFT R i RS A A
and third-party manufacturers after being classified. EITBERRE -

In 2020, after being statistically reported by various affiliated M20205F[E - &% T B R AT IE I A
schools and verified by the Group, the Group has not experienced SEETES  AEEEFRFEAHIRE
pollution incidents or illegal incidents that have a serious impact EXBREXENTRAEWSEEZEMN N
on the environment throughout the year, nor has there been any REFHRBREEBTHEEFERY
environmental protection related issues or complaints that have had EHEOHRER B I EMEAF -
significant impact on the Group.

Indicator Unit 2020 Data
BE FTREM 2020F EiE
Nitrogen oxides (NOx) emission kg

REALY) (NOX) BER 2 TR 2,782.13

Particle emissions kg
FERLIEIR T 191.14

Scope 1 greenhouse gas emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
HEAEREHNE ME—_ S tiE 2 4,238.20

Scope 3 greenhouse gas emissions tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent
HE=RERBEHRE W_ffbirE = 1,068.75

Total discharge of hazardous wastes tonnes

BEREEYENEE i 9.27

Total recycled harmless waste tonnes

B HEEEEYRE I 31,816.32

China East Education Holdings Limited ® fFEHE FHEEBRER AR
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Case sharing 1:

Each of our vehicle training rooms is equipped with a vehicle
exhaust treatment device. The device mainly includes alloy rail,
sliding trolley, rubber exhaust gas recovery tube, rubber exhaust
gas recovery nozzle, etc., in order to achieve the purpose of
processing exhaust gas emissions.

Case sharing 2:

In 2020, we vigorously promote the teaching content in relation
to the new energy vehicles during the automobile repair teaching.
During the teaching process, the schools promote the use of new
energy vehicles, and open the automobile repair courses on new
energy vehicles, following the green steps of the times.

3.  Climate Change

The main business of the Group is vocational education, generally,
the climate change will not have any major impact on our operation.
In case of extreme natural weather, we will actively respond to
the relevant policies of local government, make contingency
plans, to ensure the safety of students and staffs. In the case
of acute physical risks such as flood and fire, we also make the
corresponding contingency plans ad disaster preparedness plan,
in addition to the various property and life insurances contributed
by the Group, we believe that we have the ability to deal with every
climate crisis.

ESV PR ER
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VIl. WIN-WIN COOPERATION, FULLY PROMOTING THE
COMPLIANT INTEGRITY ESTABLISHMENT

1. Supplier Management

The Group adheres to the attitude of mutual benefit and win-
win cooperation, and maintains the long-term cooperation with
a number of excellent suppliers. We establish a sound supplier
management mechanism to promote the favorable development
of the cooperative relationship. We have formulated the
“Group Procurement Work Management Measures”, "Supplier
Management Measures”, “Integrity Establishment Responsibility
Management Rules”, “Bidding Process”, and the “Implementation
Measures For Group Procurement Material Management” issued
during the year, which clarifies the organizational division and
responsibilities of procurement, the definition of procurement
methods, material classification and approval authority, procurement
procedures, document filing and contract management, as well
as the detailed rules of supplier management. The Group has
established a cooperative relationship with 119 suppliers, including
80 suppliers selected through bidding, 39 suppliers selected
through competitive negotiation.

1 supplier in Shanxi

W HERL1R

2 suppliers in Henan

2R

1 supplier in Slchuan (

BB LR

7 suppliers in Guangdong

BREEETR

1 supplier in Hainan

EEEEEIR
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1 supplier in Tianjin
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The procurement management department clarifies the supplier
admission mechanism, establishes a supplier database, and
registers supplier information by category. The supplier must fill in
the “Supplier Registration Form” and provide the basic information
and qualification materials of the enterprise. We will check and
verify the above information. During the review, we will pay attention
to the potential risk factors including the social reputation of the
supplier, the compliance with the laws and whether the products
supplied meet the relevant national environment regulations,
in addition to checking that whether the products provided by
suppliers meet our needs, and we will give priority to the suppliers
with low-risk value to conduct cooperation.

Every year, we will evaluate the annual overall performance of
suppliers from six aspects including qualification, quality, price,
supply, service and other advantageous items. Suppliers scoring
more than 95 are deemed as excellent suppliers, suppliers whose
score ranging from 86 to 95 are deemed as good suppliers,
suppliers whose score ranging from 76 to 85 are deemed as
qualified suppliers, suppliers whose score ranging from 66 to 75 will
be included in the observation list, and the Company will cooperate
selectively with such suppliers based on the observation. Suppliers
scoring less than 66 or being included in the blacklist by the
president committee of the Group will be included in the blacklist
directly and will not be considered for cooperation.

We also conduct on-site inspections of suppliers to understand in
depth whether the enterprise scale and production management
system meet our requirements on products and environmental
protection, and review the product inspection report provided by
suppliers. Our procurement team deeply searches the key points
including the supplier’s production scale and staff composition,
main operation results, after-sale and value-added services, from
two aspects namely on-site investigation and business negotiation,
to ensure that the products supplied meet the high standards which
is consistently adhered to by the Group. Meanwhile, group schools
regularly send the purchased materials to the local inspection
agency for sampling inspection. Regarding materials related to
environmental protection and energy use, we generally choose the
first-line environmental protection brands in the market, which can
meet our goals of energy conservation and emission reduction.
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In order to ensure the fairness, openness, justice and
standardization of procedures of the procurement activities, our
subordinate schools, procurement personnel, and suppliers all shall
sign the “Integrity Commitment Letter” which, based on the relevant
laws and regulations and relevant documents of the Group, restricts
the behaviors of all parties, prevents the occurrence of illegal acts
that violate the law and discipline and protects the legitimate rights
and interests of our suppliers.

2. Compliance Management and Integrity Establishment

The Group attaches importance to the compliance operation,
in order to improve the integrity establishment of the Company
and promote the openness and transparency of each aspect of
the Company, the Group establishes the integrity establishment
leadership team and organize a strong audit supervision team,
clarifies the compliance supervision mechanism, and the Audit and
Supervision Department is responsible for the management and
supervision of the Group’s compliant operation. Strengthening
compliance management is not only to meet the requirements
of external supervision, but also to meet the needs of our own
business development. Therefore, we are committed to cultivating
corporate compliance culture, regularly carrying out corporate
compliance training, establishing the idea of governing enterprises
according to law, and cultivating corporate culture based on legal
culture.
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Determine suppliers by public bidding, price bidding, direct designation
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Suppliers provide qualified materials, and the procurement management department

The procurement management department conducts field visits to suppliers when necessary

Procurement team and business center carry out regular
post-assessment of cooperative companies
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Strengthen cooperation with excellent suppliers after the
evaluation results are announced
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Anti-fraud, Anti Bribery, Anti-Corruption

We strictly abide by the laws and regulations including “The Anti-
Corruption and Bribery Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “The
Anti-Money Laundering Law of the People’s Republic of China”. We
take a “zero tolerance” attitude toward corruption, bribery and other
corrupt practices, designate the Audit and Supervision Department
as the Company’s permanent institution of integrity. In order to
prevent fraud, enhance the group governance and internal control,
reduce the company risk, regulate the operation, maintain the legal
interests of the Company and shareholders, pursuant to the laws
and regulations on listed companies and requirements of security
markets and regulators, based on the actual condition of the
Company, we establish the “Group Anti-fraud, Anti-bribery, Anti-
corruption, and Reporting and Complaint Management Measures”.
The measures specifies that the Board and Audit Committee are
responsible for the guidance works on anti-fraud, anti-bribery and
anti-corruption; the managements of the Company are responsible
for establishing, improving and implementing the procedures and
control mechanism for anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption
with fraud risk assessment and prevention included; the Audit
and Supervision Department are responsible for establishing and
improving the mechanism for anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-
corruption, and pay reasonable attention to and check the potential
fraud during the internal audit; all branches and departments are
responsible for their own anti-fraud, anti-bribery and anti-corruption
works.

We post system propaganda posters on every office of the Group
and publicize the importance of anti-corruption to all staffs through
group meetings such as staff meeting. The supervisor of Audit
and Supervision Department of the Group will also conduct anti-
corruption training on school leaders and all department heads
during the tour visit in each school.
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Sound Complaint and Reporting Channels

The Company also establishes the Group Complaint and Reporting
Management Rules, which specifies that the Audit and Supervision
Department is responsible for investigating and handling complaint
and reporting made directly or passed on by group leaders as the
acceptance department of complaint and reporting. The complaint
and reporting involving the audit and supervision personnel of the
Group will be investigated and handled by the person designated
by the Group leaders. The Audit and Supervision Department sets
up reporting telephone, email and mailbox and other reporting
channels to supervise and report to the public. Employees at all
levels and all social parties with direct or indirect financial interests
with the Company can report relevant violations of professional
ethics through these channels, or report and expose actual or
suspected fraud cases. During the reporting period, the Group did
not have any commercial bribery lawsuits, nor did it violate relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
operation.
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Intellectual Property Protection

The Group also implements solid control and management of
intellectual property rights, and strictly abides by the “Trademark
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Patent Law of the
People’s Republic of China”, “Copyright Law of the People’s
Republic of China”, “Anti-Unfair Competition Law of the People’s
Republic of China” and other relevant laws during our production
and operation activities. We formulate and implement intellectual
property management systems within the Company, and clarify
compliance management requirements for the creation, registration,
protection, and use of intellectual property.
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In 2020, the Group obtained 44 new patents and 82 software
copyrights. As of 31 December 2020, the Group still has 37 patents
pending approval. In terms of trademark protection, the Group
added 17 new trademarks this year and registered 181 trademarks
in total.

VIIl. WITH ONE MIND, MAKING PYGMY EFFORTS IN
FULFILLING SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

With remembering the support and trust of the community while
developing the enterprise, the Group consistently and actively
dedicates to public welfare and contributes to the society, with
the aim to undertaking the corporate responsibility for the society.
Especially, in the face of the unexpected epidemic in 2020, we
worked hard with our staffs and the community to overcome the
difficulties, which demonstrating our social responsibility.

Working Hard Together to Forge Ahead: Active Participation in
Anti-Epidemic Works

Faced with the sudden COVID-19 epidemic in 2020, we sticked
to the original aspiration for love and responsibility, worked hard
together to forge ahead. On 23 January 2020, the Wuhan city was
locked, which was an unprecedented challenge for each Chinese.
In the face of the epidemic, although being on holiday, we took the
responsibility resolutely and acted quickly to actively participated in
the anti-epidemic activities.

On 30 January 2020, we promptly formulated the epidemic
prevention and control plan, established the prevention and control
working group, and immediately organized all kinds of epidemic
prevention and control works. We prepared relatively sufficient
prevention and control materials such as masks, disinfectant,
medical alcohol and body temperature apparatus through multiple
procurement; sterilized to every corner of office areas thoroughly
and professionally every two hours, and sterilized to key areas or
detail areas every one hour; every personnel on duty for epidemic
prevention and control were distributed two masks every day
after temperature measurement and disinfection with alcohol were
conducted by specially-assigned person, so as to protect the staff
office safety.
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We helped each other to work as a group. We donated RMB1 FERY - BFEB - RPIAREEA T+

million to Anhui Red Cross Society as the education subsidy for FTERBARKI008ET - ARZRIZESE
medical team supporting Hebei from Anhui. BHEEARHSHE

Mllem

. hESAEBRA
31005 cisssss
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Under the influence of epidemic, certain domestic enterprises were TREEBEZE BANBILEEERLER

faced with the business distress, but we presented the hardcore RERMEREZEE  AFEEZBE
responsibility, even if the work resumption was disrupted by the FET  DARENREAZEE THNRT
epidemic, we still paid wages to all staffs with full amount timely. & o

We also continued to summarize the experience on epidemic EMEEBRPHETEHAENZ UL
prevention and control during the practice. Epidemic Trains the B HMRENEBBRRTHPREFHE
Resilience and Innovation of China East Education complied by us WESEAIF)  WHHRHLEHESTEAR
was awarded as the excellent case of essay solicitation in “Anti- [Bry& B B BT | BB F RS -
epidemic and Labor Innovation” by China Labor Association.
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Spread Energy with Warm Action: Free Online Class and “National
Recruitment”

During the period of the epidemic, we fully opened the Cloud
classroom to provide online teaching, to ensure that the learning
continues although the on-site classes were stopped. While
teaching skills and knowledge, it also spread positive energy.
Xinhua Cloud classroom has also become the online skill training
platform recommended nationally by China Employment Training
Technology Instruction Center of Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security. At the same time, vocational education brands of
the Group successively entered the CCTV comprehensive audio-
visual new media flagship platform “Yangshipin” to provide free live
skill course for vast number of students.
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During the period of the epidemic, in order to actively respond to
the government’ call on “Anti-epidemic and Stabilize Employment”
with actual actions, on 30 March 2020, we participated in the
large online live recruitment activities “Spring Blossoms, National
Recruitment Actions” jointly launched by CCTV, State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission of the State Council
and State Development & Investment Corp., Ltd. as the leading
enterprise of vocational education. At the session, we provided
nearly 2,000 jobs due to the needs of new business development
and overseas market expansion. Alimost 40,000 people watched
our special session, and more than 4,000 people participated in the

live interaction, with overwhelming response.
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Change the World with Love: Joint Launch of “New Starting Point e
Dream Building Public Welfare Action”

From 7 to 9 September 2020, “New Starting Point e Dream
Building Public Welfare Action” made a heart-warming start
again, our schools also participated in the donation, to give love
to students and make contribution to youth with dreams. “New
Starting Point e Dream Building Public Welfare Action” program
was launched in the first time in 2017 as the vocational education
assist welfare project jointly launched by China Social Welfare
Foundation, the Group and Tencent Chaity Foundation, receiving
extensive attention and support of good-hearted people from all
sections of society.
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“New Starting Point e Dream Building Public Welfare Action”
raised donation with the total of RMB6,359,217 in this year, the
program totally received caring donation in more than 228,000
times during the last four years, raised more than RMB11.52 million
of caring donation, as of June 2020, the program has subsidized
2,950 students. After years of practise and constant optimization,
2020-2021 program will continue to provide cooking skill training
and computer skill training, provide more professional choice for
unemployed youth to make them better. Meanwhile, in order to
respond to the government’s call for supporting the army and
supporting the armyman’s family, the program will continue to give
priority to veterans as sponsoring target. We believe that “Education
Brings Hope and Love Makes the Future”. We will continue to work
with all caring people of the community to light the lamp of hope for
ambitious youth and rejuvenate the dream of unemployed youth.
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Caring for the community and Social Responsibilities: Skill Training
for Veterans

DIEHE  EEET ARREARER

On 17 December 2020, we held the first provincial veterans skill
training institution licensing ceremony in Anhui. After half a year of
application, research and evaluation, Anhui Department of Veterans
Affairs approved eight enterprises including the Group as the first
batch of provincial veterans skill training bases in Anhui, officially
launched the vocational skill training works for demobilized military
cadres and veterans who chooses jobs by themselves in the whole
province.

While strengthening the quality of teaching, we consistently
adhere to the enterprise mission of “Xinhua Education, Revitalize
Education and Serve Country”, actively participate in the vocational
skill improvement action with ex-soldiers, laid-off workers and
unemployed college students as the key groups, by now, we have
trained and arranged nearly 100,000 veterans in the whole country.
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; (such as full-time or part-time), age group and HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
Béii’%a' B gﬁggem geographical region. | EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS
B1.1 MR ERED (n2Bsk®E) - FhelR | TOGETHER
K@ E 5 r)E S AR ERRE  BFESETARES
B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
and geographical region. HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
B1.2 MR - Fhei Rl iR EIHHER KL EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS

TOGETHER
EuRE  BTEABTIHARES
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ESG Guide

Content
ESGIESIRE

B. Social
BME

B2 Health and
Safety
B2 2% e

General disclosure
—M =

Chapters/Statement
HEM/BH

INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
EMPLOYEES TO MAKE
PROGRESS TOGETHER/
METICULOUSNESS, BEING
DEDICATED TO CARING FOR THE
GROWTH OF STUDENTS
SRR - BTEARTHRE
&/ BEAN - BLRHWMERE
&

B2.1

Number and rate of work-related fatalities in the
past three years (including the reporting years).

INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
HANDS WITH EXCELLENT

B2 BEA=F(BEERFE)AITHMAZKL | EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS
i TOGETHER
ERRE  BFEFEIHARES
B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
B22 EIGEAIERE - HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS
TOGETHER
ERRE BFEASETARES
B2.3 Description of occupational health and INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
safety measures adopted, and how they are HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
implemented and monitored. EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS
B2.3 FRlFTHRMMEEREAT 2N  UKEE | TOGETHER/METICULOUSNESS,
MITRERE - BEING DEDICATED TO CARING

FOR THE GROWTH OF STUDENTS
ERRE BFEFETARE
B/ BN BORNWESE
8=

B3 Development
and Training
B3 /& K&iE3

General disclosure
—MH

INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS
TOGETHER

EaiRE - BTEABTHRES

B3.1

The percentage of employees trained by
gender and employee category (e.g. senior
management and middle management).

INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS

B3.1 RUFIREEER(WSAEEE - FREE | TOGETHER
EZ)ENNXIIEERDL - BaRE  BFESETHARES

B3.2 The average training hours completed per INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
employee by gender and employee category. HANDS WITH EXCELLENT

B3.2 &ZMURIKEEERIZES - BRESTKZIIE EMPLOYEES TO MAKE PROGRESS

T

TOGETHER
EaiRE - BFEABTIARES
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ESG Guide Chapters/Statement
Content REEG /B
ESGESIAR

INTEREST PROTECTION, JOIN
HANDS WITH EXCELLENT
EMPLOYEES TO MAKE
PROGRESS TOGETHER
EaERE  BTEABIARES

Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.

B4.1 HHitiRa IS E Gl HEAR R E T K& IS
I o

B. Social
BiE

WIN-WIN COOPERATION, FULLY
PROMOTING THE COMPLIANT
INTEGRITY ESTABLISHMENT
BIEAR  ENHEESRRBER

General disclosure

—REE

B5 Supply Chain
Management
BS AIEER | B5o Description of practices relating to engaging | WIN-WIN COOPERATION, FULLY
suppliers, number of suppliers where the PROMOTING THE COMPLIANT
practices are being implemented, and how they | INTEGRITY ESTABLISHMENT
are implemented and monitored. BIERR 2 NHEESRRBER

B5.2 HERAEAHEENED  MANTARE
PIEEREE - ARBEAEANSNTRER
& °
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ESG Guide Chapters/Statement
Content REEG B
ESGESIAR

Percentage of total products sold or shipped

subject to recalls for safety and health reasons
B6.1 EEHERERERLHTRLZEEFEZHM
ARIRE B AL °

B. Social
BAE

WIN-WIN COOPERATION, FULLY
PROMOTING THE COMPLIANT
INTEGRITY ESTABLISHMENT
AfERE - 2 IEESRRIER

Description of practices related to observing
and protecting intellectual property rights.

B6.3 i EME RREAEEREWOED -

METICULOUSNESS, BEING
DEDICATED TO CARING FOR THE
GROWTH OF STUDENTS

ABAN > BOBNWEBLEK R

Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented
and monitored.
B6.5 HHEEBBRERILBIE - URAEBH
TREENE -
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ESG Guide Chapters/Statement
Content REEG B
ESGESIAR

B7.1  Number of concluded legal cases regarding During the reporting period, the
corrupt practices brought against the issuer or Group had no cases regarding
its employees during the reporting period and corrupt practices.
the outcomes of the cases. WEHA - AEBREGEERGH
B7.1 RESRBMAHZITAFEEESRLWEELN |ARHEH-
BAHARMNER KFDER

B7 Anticorruption
B7 R&S

B. Social
BHE

WITH ONE MIND, MAKING PYGMY
EFFORTS IN FULFILLING SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

FIORE - g2 NBTHE R

General disclosure

—REE

WITH ONE MIND, MAKING PYGMY
EFFORTS IN FULFILLING SOCIAL
RESPONSIBILITY

FIORE - g2 NBTHERT

B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money and time)
to the focus area.

B82 HEEIHEMBAER(NEELER)
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The Board is pleased to present its report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020.

INCORPORATION AND LISTING OF THE COMPANY

The Company was incorporated in Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability on 4 October 2018 under
the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the shares of the
Company (the “Shares”) were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 12 June 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group is
principally engaged in the operation of vocational training education
services. Details of the activities of the principal subsidiaries are
set out in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

RESULTS AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 180 in this annual report.

A fair review of the business of the Group during the year and its
likely future development and outlook, important events affecting
the Company that have occurred since the end of the financial
year, an analysis of the Group’s performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators, details regarding the Group’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group, and the Group’s key relationships
with stakeholders as required under Schedule 5 of the Companies
Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) are set out in
the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report and which also
constitute part of this report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The following list is a summary of certain principal risks and
uncertainties facing by the Group:

o our business and results of operations depend on the level of
tuition fees we are able to charge and our ability to maintain
and raise the level of tuition fees.

o our business is heavily dependent on the market recognition
of our brand and reputation and any damage to our
reputation would materially and adversely affect our business.
Negative publicity concerning our schools or our Group may
adversely affect our reputation, business, growth prospect
and our ability to recruit qualified teachers and staff.

° we face intense competition from existing players and
industry consolidation in the PRC, which could lead to
adverse pricing pressure, reduced operating margins, loss
of market share, departures of qualified employees and
increased capital expenditures.

o we may expand our school network through acquisitions or
cooperation with third party partners and may not be able to
successfully execute such expansion strategy.

The above is not an exhaustive list. Investors are advised to make
their own judgment or consult their own investment advisors before
making any investment in the Shares.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to fulfilling social responsibility, promoting
employee benefits and development, protecting the environment
and giving back to community and achieving sustainable growth.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The revenue attributable to the five largest customers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
revenue for the year.

The purchases attributable to the five largest suppliers of the Group
accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s consolidated total
purchases for the year.

None of the Directors nor any of their close associates (as defined
in the Listing Rules) nor any Shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, owns more than 5% of the number of
issued Shares) had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and/or five largest suppliers during the year.

DIVIDEND

At the Board meeting held on 25 March 2021, the Board proposed
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.135 (approximately
RMBO0.113) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020. In addition, as a reward to the Shareholders for
their continuous support, having considered the business, financial
and cash flow position of the Group, the Board also proposed
the payment of a special dividend of HK$0.135 (approximately
RMBO0.113) per ordinary share in respect of the year ended 31
December 2020. The aforesaid proposed payment of final and
special dividends are subject to approval of the Shareholders at the
annual general meeting to be held on Wednesday, 26 May 2021.
Subject to the approval of Shareholders at the annual general
meeting, the aforesaid proposed final and special dividends are
expected to be paid on or around Thursday, 17 June 2021.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available
to the Shareholders by the reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holdings, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of
any rights in relation to the Company’s Shares, they are advised to
consult an expert.
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DONATIONS

The Group made donations of RMB1 million during the year ended
31 December 2020 (year ended 31 December 2019: RMBO0.9
million). Meanwhile, the Group established an education fund with
RMB30 million for reducing the tuition of national medical staffs
who participated in the epidemic prevention and control and their
children in any of our school throughout mainland China.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in property and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 15 to
the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of changes in the share capital of the Company during
the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Movements in reserves of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in the note 34 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

Our reserves available for distribution to the Shareholders consist
of share premium and retained profits. Under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands and subject to compliance with the Articles
of Association, the share premium account may be applied by the
Company for paying distributions or dividends to the Shareholders
if immediately following the date on which the distribution or
dividend is proposed to be paid, we will be able to pay off our
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business. As of 31
December 2020, the Company’s reserve available for distribution to
equity holders amounted to approximately RMB3,721 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has approved and adopted a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may declare
and distribute dividends to the Shareholders to allow Shareholders
to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to retain
adequate reserves for future growth.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® Bl 5 #H & B R A

EHZE2020F12831BILFE - REBEEH
BRARB1BE T (HZE2019412 A31
HIEEE : AR¥0.9BETT) ° RIFFRL
30008 THEHRHAEES - ARREEEHZ
MEBHENEFABRETL  BRER
SEERPBEAREE TN EMRRHEE -

L EE Y

AEEYE RRERE E2020F12 A31H
IEFENEBFIBHNAF RIEE T B R
REIFE15 -

R

ARATIRANEZE20206E12 A31 B ILEE
ME B FFRNANFREGEE T B RERM
25 o

KRB AHE DK

AABREZE2020F 12 A31BIEFERN
RBEEBHRAFRNGA I HRERM T
34 o

BMAIESETFRENEERERGRZE
MBFEHNE - RIEFASES QA NMAE
ERME) - HEEEFET N D IR SRR
BHBHE  BMBEEEESEKARE
PEIEIER - BIAQR A EARDRE
AR M AR B S A 5 IR SR A AR B, o 7420204F
12A3818 » AR HOIR TREZFEA
HEEELBARBI7T21IHEETT

REBUER

ARBEHAERRBBEBER ([REE
®]) - Bk ARB A RBERE IR SR
B ERREDFARFZAE - A
EARRIRE /AR ARIB RIRE FE R ©



Directors’ Report EEg® %

The declaration, distribution and amount of dividend is subject to
the absolute discretion of the Board, after taking into account, inter
alia, the Group’s operations, business and future development
plans, liquidity position, our future operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, financial condition, working capital
requirements and other factors that the Board consider relevant.
The distribution of final dividend of a financial year will be subject to
the approval of the Shareholders, but the amount of dividend shall
not exceed the recommendation of the Board.

Subject to the aforesaid factors, the Board plans to maintain
distributing not less than 30% of the distributable profit of the
relevant financial year of the Group as dividend.

Declaration, recommendation or distribution of any dividend is
subject to all relevant applicable laws and regulation of Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company. The Board
will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve the right in
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or modify
the Dividend Policy at any time. The Dividend Policy shall in no
way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company that
dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from
time to time.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to
the date of this report are:

Executive Directors
Mr. Wu Wei (Chairman)
Mr. Xiao Guoqing (Deputy chairman)

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wu Junbao
Mr. Lu Zhen

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement

Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, Thomas

Dr. Zhu Guobin
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Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Wu Wei,
Mr. Wu Junbao and Mr. Hung Ka Hai, Clement, shall retire by
rotation and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-election
at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The Company has received from each of the Independent Non-
executive Directors an annual written confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers
all the Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service contract
and each of the Non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a term commencing from
the date of his/her appointment/re-designation as an Executive
Director/Non-executive Director which shall be for a period of three
years since the listing date, and shall be automatically renewed for
successive periods of three years (always subject to re-election
as and when required under the Articles of Association). The term
of each of the service contracts/letter of appointments shall end
when the service contract/letter of appointment is terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions thereof or by either party
giving to the other party not less than three months’ prior notice in
writing.

Each of our Independent Non-executive Director has entered into
a letter of appointment with the Company for an initial period of
one year since the listing date, and shall automatically renewed for
successive period of one year (subject to re-election as and when
required under the Article of Association) which may be terminated
in accordance with the terms and conditions of thereof or by either
party serving on the other party a prior written notice of not less
than one month.

Save as aforesaid, no Director proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than normal statutory
compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company in
the shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) were required, pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to
therein; or (iii) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, and adopted by the Company
were as follows:

Interest in the Shares and underlying Shares of the Company:

EERNEZNERRAR

M2020%F12H31H * AREIMESE - 2
THAB REBE ARAKRRA B S EERAE
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Interests in Shares Interests in Percentage of

RipER underlying Shares the Company’s
Corporate Personal pursuant to issued Long/
interest interest share options share capital Short position

REBBREL EARRERT
ARER BARE  HERGOER BRANBE AL /%R
Mr. Wu Junbao (Note 7) 743,743,602 - - 33.882% Long position
RIERFEEH21) HE
Mr. Wu Wei (Note 2) 509,386,109 - - 23.206% Long position
RERE W22 HE
Mr. Xiao Guoging (Note 3) 490,017,995 - - 22.323% Long position
BB (H523) HE
Mr. Lu Zhen (Note 4) - - 872,510 0.040% Long position

BB (W)

e
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Notes:

Mr. Wu Junbao holds the entire issued share capital of Wu Junbao
Education Company Limited (“Wu Junbao Education”) and is
therefore deemed to be interested in the 743,743,602 Shares held
by Wu Junbao Education under the SFO.

Mr. Wu Wei holds the entire issued share capital of Wu Wei
Education Company Limited (“Wu Wei Education”) and is therefore
deemed to be interested in the 509,386,109 Shares held by Wu Wei
Education under the SFO.

Mr. Xiao Guoging holds the entire issued share capital of Xiao
Guoging Education Company Limited (“Xiao Guoging Education”)
and is therefore deemed to be interested in the 490,017,995 Shares
held by Xiao Guoqing Education under the SFO.

Mr. Lu Zhen holds share options of 872,510 Shares. Details of the
share options are set out in the section titled “Equity-settled Share
Option Schemes” below.

ESNESNESRAR (B
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B /9490,017,995 B I (n P #E B #E2s ©

PE A S 4455 872,510R A 15 (B AR -
BRZSRRENF SN T X AR
BENIBAER S & -

Interests of the Company’s Directors and chief executives in

associated corporations of the Company:

Name

e

Mr. Wu Junbao

RERTE

Mr. Wu Wei

RERE

Mr. Xiao Guoqging

BEEXLE

Name of associated
corporation

HBEE &

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

ZHEFEHE KE
AR

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

TR EHE SR
BRAT]

Anhui Xinhua Education
Group Co., Ltd.

TR EHE LR
BRAT]

AAREERESTRABRARR AAE
SEE RS

Approximate

Capacity/ Registered capital percentage of

Nature of interest (RMB) shareholding (%)
ZEMER HERA

B BREME (AR¥ ) B2 (%)

Beneficial owner 42,666,700 42.67

EnEEA

Beneficial owner 29,222,200 29.22

EnBEEA

Beneficial owner 28,111,100 28.11

EDEAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SECURITIES (continued)

Save as disclosed above and in the section of “Equity-settled Share
Option Schemes” below, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors, chief executives and their associates of the Company
had any interest and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning part XV of SFO) as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352
of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted two share option schemes on 7 December
2018 (“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and 21 May 2019
(“2019 Share Option Scheme”) respectively (collectively referred
to as “Share Option Schemes”) for the purpose of giving
eligible participants an opportunity to have a personal stake in
our Company and help motivate them to optimise their future
performance and efficiency to our Group and/or to reward them for
their past contributions, to attract and retain or otherwise maintain
on-going relationships with such eligible participants who are
significant to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to
the performance, growth or success of our Group.

The Share Option Schemes do not specify any minimum holding
period and/or performance targets as a condition for the exercise
of an option but subject to the rules of the Share Options Schemes.
The Board is empowered with the authority to determine granting
of an option on a case by case basis taking into account of the
relevant factors as the Board in its sole discretion considers
appropriate.

The consideration payable on acceptance of the option granted
to an grantee under the respective Share Option Schemes is
HK$1.00.

ESRNESNESERAR (B

B ESCRI TN [ ARG A 45 B ) RE AR AT
BT RSN - 7M2020F12A31H -
BMEANAES  FTBTRABREBRE
ARERBISHAE TR EE (ERRES
K EREEBIEXVER) BIBR (D « AR EIH)E
B REHF A BREESRKBE KRG
FEIL2EF BN AR T T EMREAM
AR FIZ AT R ZAME AR F) KRB ATH)
FfI S AR o

URESENBREE

RAR B AR M EERETE - 5585
2018512 A7 A 1THIR R K& LA R
HEERESS ((BRAHEREABR
FESTEI]) X2019F5 A21 HRTHREAS
LR ERT 2 ([2019F B IR
e (BRABREE]) - BENER
MAEBRS2HEERHNARREESEAR
EHKE  WEBRESRABREAEER
MEBRIE R/ EERENER
4T H2E) - ARG Rt R S A fh 5 = 4
B EEAEENES  BRIKIM
ENBEZR/KEBBEFNNKBEF
RAEBMES  WERIRDZEEKS
HEMRPEEBRE -

BRSBTS EARENREH
Rk ST EBRRERERNRRER
HERIEBARETEINGR XTEFES
BB EEE BB E BB AY IR BB A A 1
RIELERSEENABRE -

EEBRESET  BARTARANE
PR ZA S AN BV SHE /31.0078 7T

Annual Report 2020 ¢ —Z - ZF 3R




Directors’ Report EEg&#® 4%

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, the Company has
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme are 135,244,720 Shares, representing
approximately 6.2% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2020.

Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, our
Board shall be entitled to offer the grant of any option to subscribe
for Shares granted pursuant to the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme for the time being subsisting to any persons who satisfy
the following eligibility criteria as our Board may in its absolute
discretion select:

(@ any current or former executive director of, manager of,
headmaster of, dean of, or other employee holding an
executive, managerial, supervisory or similar position in any
member of our Group, any current or former full-time or part-
time employee, or a person for the time being seconded to
work full-time or part-time for any member of our Group;

(b)  a current or former director or proposed director (including
an independent non-executive director) or current or former
manager of any member of our Group; and

(c) an associate (which shall have the same meaning ascribed to
it under the Listing Rules) of any of the persons referred to in
(a) to (b) above.

The basis of eligibility shall be determined by our Board from time
to time.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders of our Company and
the termination provisions in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date of adoption, provided
that no option shall be granted on or after the listing date of the
Company. The period during which an option may be exercised will
be determined by our Board in its absolute discretion, except no
option may be exercised more than 10 years after the date it was
offered, being the date of our Board resolution approving the grant
of such option, which must be a business day.

Subject to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, our
Board shall be entitled at any time between (a) the adoption date
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and (b) the listing date
(including the former but excluding the latter) to offer the grant of
an option to any eligible person as the Board may in its absolute
discretion select to subscribe at the subscription price which shall
be determined by the Board of the Company for such number
of Shares as our Board may (subject to the maximum number of
Shares available for subscription) determine.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Details of the share options outstanding under Pre-IPO Share BIR A ERIEARERT &I T MR TR
Option Scheme were as follows: ARBEEFIBELAT -
Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options exercised/ No.of the underlying
granted cancelled/ options shares for
No. of duringthe  lapsed during outstanding the options
options yearended  the year ended at in the share
Exercisable Exercise  outstandingat ~ 31December 31 December 31 December capital of
Date of grant period price 1 January 2020 2020 2020 2020  the Company
HKD
REZE  REZ00E
B 20208 12A31AL A2020 FREEE
020%1A1A 1281AL  EEREAE/ 128318 RAERAR
RTEH EEART /XM ATEH el
RTH AfTREE i BhREHA MEREHA BREHR BREHE G
iy
2019/712
to
2029/6/11
201957 /128
Mr. LuZhen 20181217 z
BERE M18F12R7H 2029567 11H 225 981,510 - (109,000) 872,510 0.040%
2019712
to
2029/6/11
201957 /128
Other employees 2018/12/7 Y
AftES W18F12078 202967118 225 127,085,776 - (3.902,602) 123,183,174 5612%
Total
At 128,067,286 - (4011,602) 124,055,684 5652%

Note 1: During the year ended 31 December 2020, 4,011,602 options
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were exercised. The weighted average closing price of the Shares

immediately before the dates on which the options were exercised

was HK$16.27 per Share.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Pursuant to the 2019 Share Option Scheme, the Company can
issue options so that the total number of Shares that may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the 2019
Share Option Scheme are 217,900,000 Shares, representing
10% of the issued share capital of the Company upon listing and
approximately 9.9% of the issued share capital of the Company as
at 31 December 2020.

Our Board may, at its absolute discretion, offer options to subscribe
for such number of Shares in accordance with the terms set out in
the 2019 Share Option Scheme to:

(i) any executive director of, manager of, headmaster of, dean
of, or other employee holding an executive, managerial,
supervisory or similar position in any member of our Group,
any proposed employee, any full-time or part-time employee,
or a person for the time being seconded to work full-time or
part-time for any member of our Group;

(i) a director or proposed director (including an independent
non-executive director) of any member of our Group;

(i) adirect or indirect shareholder of any member of our Group;
(iv)  asupplier of goods or services to any member of our Group;

(v)  a customer, consultant, business or joint venture partner,
franchisee, contractor, agent or representative of any member
of our Group;

(vij a person or entity that provides design, research,

development or other support or any advisory, consultancy,
professional or other services to any member of our Group;
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

(vii) an associate of any of the persons referred to in paragraphs (i)
to (vi) above; and

(vii) any person involved in the business affairs of the Company
whom our Board determines to be appropriate to participate
in the 2019 Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of Shares issuable under the 2019 Share
Option Scheme to each eligible participant within any 12-month
period is limited to 1% of the Shares in issue at any time. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is subject to
Shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

Subject to earlier termination by the Company in general meeting
or by the Board, the 2019 Share Option Scheme shall be valid and
effective for a period of ten years from the date of adoption.

The subscription price shall be such price determined by the Board
at its absolute discretion and shall be no less than the highest of: (a)
the closing price of Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet
of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing
price of the Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet of the
Stock Exchange for the 5 business days immediately preceding the
date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a Share on the date of
grant.
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EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continuead)

Details of the share options outstanding under 2019 Share Option

Scheme were as follows:

Date of grant

RFA

Employes 2019/6/12
€2 2019564128

Total

Az
AR

Exercisable
period

7R

2019/612

to

2029/6/11
201956128

pay
==}

2009564118

Exercise
price
HKD

Closing
price

per share
immediately
before

the date

of grant
HKD

B
RTRAN
ShYmR

AT

NA

TR

LA RE A5 S MY B AR M AT 8 (2

20194F BB A AT &I T 14 R AT (R A0 RB A ¥
B

Approximate
No. of shareholding
No. of options percentage of
options  exercised/ No.of the underlying
granted  cancelled/ options shares for
No.of  duringthe lapsedduring outstanding the options
options  yearended the year ended at  inthe share
outstandingat 31 December 31 December 31 December capital of
1 January 2020 2020 2020 2020  the Company
REE
20205
REZ 1283181
B 20205 EER R00F  BRERE
N0F1A18  12A31AL B/ 12838 RAERLR
RORH  EERRT EE/ RN RTEH  RANRE
BREHE NEREHE  BRERR  BREHER  BOREMM
219,090 - - 219,090 0.010%
219,090 - - 219,090 0.010%

Note 1:  During the year ended 31 December 2020, no options were

exercised.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of the
persons, other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, in
the shares and underlying shares as recorded in the register required
to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO are as

Directors’ Report EEg® %

EFERR

2020512 A31H - REBEA R AIRIEES
MHAE 5B 33615 F B R R BT
8 A TAL(RRARESEREBITHAER
BRON AR Bl 7 S AB R AR (0 ¥ B BV A

follows: SOABMT ¢
Percentage of
the Company’s
Capacity and Number of issued Long/Short
Name nature of interest shares held share capital position
HAERABRE BT
=t B RkEREE iR EE RAB DL 3873
Wu Junbao Education (Note 1) Beneficial interest 743,743,602 33.882% Long position
RERBE (Hit1) kol o S0y
Wu Wei Education (Note 2) Beneficial interest 509,386,109 23.206% Long position
REHE Wit2) Btk e
Xiao Guoqging Education (Note 3)  Beneficial interest 490,017,995 22.323% Long position
HBIEHE (K513 B S0y
Ms. Zhou Jiaju (Note 1) Spousal interest 743,743,602 33.882% Long position
AR% 2+ (H1iF1) [ h e e
Ms. Cheng Jing (Note 2) Spousal interest 509,386,109 23.206% Long position
BE T (Wit2) BB g e
Ms. Wei Zhiling (Note 3) Spousal interest 490,017,995 22.323% Long position
EER LT (W3 [ h e e
Notes: Wiz -
1. Wu Junbao Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Junbao, is 1. RERHUE (AREREEZEER) AR

the beneficial owner of approximately 33.882% of the shareholding
in our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Junbao and Ms. Zhou
Jiaju (spouse of Mr. Wu Junbao) are deemed to be interested in all of

the shares held by Wu Junbao Education.

2. Wu Wei Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wu Wei, is the 2.
beneficial owner of approximately 23.206% of the shareholdings in
our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Wu Wei and Ms. Cheng
Jing (spouse of Mr. Wu Wei) are deemed to be interested in all of the
shares held by Wu Wei Education.

NAAIZ3.882%RIENEmBEA A © RIR
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

3. Xiao Guogqing Education, which is wholly-owned by Mr. Xiao
Guoging, is the beneficial owner of approximately 22.323% of
the shareholdings in our Company. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Xiao
Guoging and Ms. Wei Zhiling (spouse of Mr. Xiao Guoging) are
deemed to be interested in all of the Shares held by Xiao Guoging
Education.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, had
interests or short positions in the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

As notified by Haitong International Capital Limited, compliance
adviser of our Company, neither Haitong International Capital
Limited nor any of its close associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) and none of the directors or employees of Haitong
International Capital Limited had any interest in the share capital
of the Company or any member of our Group (including options or
rights to subscribe for such securities, if any) which is required to
be notified to our Company pursuant to the Listing Rules as at 31
December 2020.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING OF THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Wu Junbao, Wu Junbao Education (“Controlling
Shareholders”), Mr. Wu Wei, Wu Wei Education, Mr. Xiao Guoging
and Xiao Guoging Education (collectively as the “Undertaking
Parties” and each as a “Undertaking Party”), have entered into
the Deed of Non-competition on 21 May 2019 in favour of our
Company, pursuant to which the Undertaking Parties have jointly
and severally and irrevocably undertaken with our Company (for
itself and for the benefit of its subsidiaries) that it or he would not,
and would procure that its or his controlled entities (except any
members of our Group) would not, during the restricted period set
out below, directly or indirectly, either on its or his own account
or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, company
(enterprise or corporate entity), partnership or associate (whether
of an economic nature), among other things, carry on, participate
or be interested or engaged in or hold (in each case whether as a
shareholder, partner, agent, employee or otherwise) any business
which is or may be in competition with the business of any member
of our Group (the “Restricted Business”) to the extent such
competition would materially and adversely impact the operations
and financial position or prospects of our Group.

The “restricted period” stated in the Deed of Non-competition
refers to the period during which (i) the Shares remain listed on
the Stock Exchange; (i) in relation to each Undertaking Party, the
relevant Undertaking Party or any of its/his associates still holds
directly or indirectly an equity interest in our Company; and (iii) the
Undertaking Parties and/or their respective associates jointly or
severally are entitled to exercise or control the exercise of not less
than 30% in aggregate of the voting power at general meetings of
our Company.

Under the Structured Contracts (as defined in the Company’s
prospectus dated 30 May 2019 (the “Prospectus”)), Mr. Wu
Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging, as registered
Shareholders, and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang, as a school sponsor of Nanjing
Culinary Technical School (F 7 Z 6L T 24%) ("Nanjing School"),
also provided certain non-competition undertakings in favour of our
Company.

The Company has received and the Independent Non-executive
Directors have reviewed the confirmation from the Undertaking
Parties in respect of their compliance with the terms of non-
competition undertaking for the year.
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STRUCTURED CONTRACTS

Please refer to the section headed “Structured Contracts” in
the Prospectus for the major terms of and reasons to enter into
Structured Contracts and other details. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Board had reviewed the overall performance
of the structured contracts and believes that the Group had
complied with the structured contracts in all material respects.

Qualification Requirement

Pursuant to the Regulation on Sino-Foreign Cooperation in
Operating Schools ((FF#E A REFE R INE EREKA)), the
Implementing Measures on the Regulation on Sino-Foreign
Cooperation in Operating Schools ({FR oM 1EIF GBI B M E))
and the Management Measures on the Sino-Foreign Cooperative
School Running regarding Vocational Skills Training ({F 94 1E
BRI EE IR IEXL)), the foreign investor in Sino-foreign
joint venture schools offering training on vocational skills must be
a foreign educational institution with relevant qualification and that
provides high quality education (the “Qualification Requirement”).

None of the implementation regulations related to the Qualification
Requirement was updated for the year ended 31 December
2020. For details of the efforts and actions made by the Group in
accordance with the Qualification Requirement, please refer to the
section headed “Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.

Foreign Investment Law (“FIL”)

On 15 March 2019, the National People’s Congress approved
the FIL which have come into effect on 1 January 2020. The FIL
has replaced the foreign investment legal foundation in the PRC
consisting of three laws: the Sino-Foreign Equity Joint Venture
Enterprise Law, the Sino-Foreign Cooperative Joint Venture
Enterprise Law and the Wholly Foreign-Invested Enterprise
Law. For details of the FIL, please refer to the section headed
“Regulations” in the Prospectus. For details about the impact and
potential consequences of the FIL, please also refer to the section
headed “Structured Contracts” in the Prospectus.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions

1

Service Agreements

Pursuant to the service agreements (the “Service
Agreements”) dated 8 March 2018 entered into by Anhui
Xinhua University* (Z##72£20t) (“Xinhua University”) with
each of Anhui New East Culinary Education Institute* (ZZ#37
B 2T EEERR) and Anhui Xinhua Computer Institute™ (&
BT EE IS EIEE07) (the “Relevant Institutes”), each of the
Relevant Institutes have agreed to assist Xinhua University in
promoting its adult higher education program to students of
the Relevant Institutes. In connection with such promotional
effort, for those students who enrolled in our adult higher
education program (the “Relevant Students”), each of the
Relevant Institutes have also agreed to provide convenient
teaching locations for the Relevant Students to attend some
of the classes for such program. In consideration of the
foregoing services, Xinhua University shall pay to the Relevant
Institutes a service fee equivalent to 50% of the tuition fees
of the Relevant Students. The Service Agreements are for a
term with effect from 26 March 2018 to 31 December 2020,
renewable for another three years unless terminated by
either party by serving written notice to the other party within
30 days prior to expiry of the Service Agreements (subject
to compliance with the provisions under the Listing Rules
regarding continuing connected transactions).

The annual cap for the Service Agreements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to be RMB2.9 million.

The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB1.8
million. (note 31(ii) to the consolidated financial statements)
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

@

*

Tenancy Agreement

On 30 July 2020, Anhui New East Culinary Institute, our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities (as defined in the Prospectus)
and Anhui Wontone Automobile Maintenance Institute as
the landlord, and the School of Clinical Medicine of Anhui
Medical University* (%8 B X2 ERIK B E267) (the “School
of Clinical Medicine”), as the tenant, entered into tenancy
agreements (the “Tenancy Agreements”), for leasing to the
School of Clinical Medicine two premises (the “Premises”),
as the campus of the School of Clinical Medicine (the
“Connected Lease”). Pursuant to the Tenancy Agreement,
our Group will lease to the School of Clinical Medicine the
Premises for a term from 1 August 2020 to 31 July 2021, The
Tenancy Agreements were entered into by us and the School
of Clinical Medicine after taking into the consideration that (i)
the Premises were not utilized by Anhui New East Culinary
Institute and Anhui Wontone Automobile Maintenance
Institute as of the date of the Tenancy Agreements, (i) leasing
out the Premises is of economic benefit of our Group, and
(iii) the principal business of the School of Clinical Medicine is
also education.

The annual caps for the maximum amount receivable for the
year ended 31 December 2020 under the Connected Lease
amounted to RMB8,294,000.

The total amount of the aforesaid transaction for the year
ended 31 December 2020 was approximately RMB6.8 million
(note 31(ii) to the consolidated financial statements).

Financial assistance

On 4 August 2020, the Company and each of Mr. Wu
Junbao and Mr. Xiao Guoging entered into a loan framework
agreement (the “Loan Framework Agreement”),
respectively, pursuant to which the Company agreed to,
through its designated lending subsidiary(ies), make available
to the receiving companies to be designated by Mr. Wu
Junbao, a non-executive director of the Company, and Mr.
Xiao Guoging, the vice-chairman and an executive director
of the Company, a RMB revolving loan facility in a maximum
daily balance (excluding the accrued interests) of RMB130
million and RMB260 million, respectively, at an interest rate of
7% per annum for the period ended 31 December 2021.

For identification purpose only
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Financial assistance (continued)

The amount of the aforesaid transaction between the Group
and Mr. Wu Junbao for the year ended 31 December 2020
was RMB130 million (excluding the accrued interests) and the
amount of the aforesaid transaction between the Group and
Mr. Xiao Guoqing for the year ended 31 December 2020 was
RMB260 million (excluding the accrued interests). (note 20 to
the consolidated financial statements)

Structured Contracts

As disclosed in the paragraph headed “Structured
Contracts — Background of the Structured Contracts” in
the Prospectus, relevant laws and regulations restrict the
operation of vocational education and vocational training
institutions to Sino-foreign cooperation ownership, in addition
to imposing qualification requirements on the foreign owners.
Further, it is expected that the possibility of government
approval for establishing and operating a vocational education
and vocational training institute in the PRC by way of Sino-
foreign ownership in the foreseeable future is very low. As a
result, the Group, through our wholly-owned subsidiary, Hefei
Xinhua Chuangchi Education Management Co., Ltd. (the
“WFOE”), our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities and other
parties, have entered into the Structured Contracts such
that we can conduct our business operations indirectly in the
PRC through our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities while
complying with applicable PRC law and regulations. The
Structured Contracts, as a whole, are designed to provide our
Group with effective control over the financial and operational
policies of our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities, to the
extent permitted by PRC law and regulations, the right to
acquire the equity interest in and/or the assets of our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities and/or the school sponsors
interest in Nanjing School after the listing through the WFOE.
As we operate our education business through our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, which are controlled by their
respective school sponsors and we do not hold any direct
equity interest in our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities,
the Structured Contracts were entered into on 30 November
2018 pursuant to which all material business activities of
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are instructed
and supervised by our Group, through the WFOE, and the
relevant economic benefits arising from such business of the
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities are transferred to our
Group.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Structured Contracts (continued)

The Structured Contracts consist of a series of agreements,
collectively, the exclusive management consultancy and
business cooperation agreements, the exclusive call option
agreements, the equity pledge agreement, the powers of
attorney, the accounts receivable pledge agreement, the
school sponsors’ or capital contributors’ rights entrustment
agreement and the school sponsors’ or capital contributors’
powers of attorney, each of which is an integral part of the
Structured Contracts. See “Structured Contracts” in the
Prospectus for details of major terms of these agreements.

In view of the Structured Contracts, we have applied to the
Stock Exchange for, and the Stock Exchange has granted,
a waiver from strict compliance with (i) the announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’ approval requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in respect of the
transactions contemplated under the Structured Contracts
pursuant to Rule 14A.105 of the Listing Rules, (ii) the
requirement of setting an annual cap for the transactions
under the Structured Contracts under Rule 14A.53 of the
Listing Rules, and (i) the requirement of limiting the term
of our Structured Contracts to three years or less under
Rule 14A.52 of the Listing Rules, for so long as our Shares
are listed on the Stock Exchange subject however to the
following conditions:

(@ No change without Independent Non-executive
Directors’ approval

No change to the Structured Contracts will be made
without the approval of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

(b)  No change without independent Shareholders’ approval

Save as described in paragraph (d) below, no change
to the agreements governing the Structured Contracts
will be made without the approval of our Company’s
independent Shareholders.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Structured Contracts (continued)

(b)

No change without independent Shareholders’ approval
(continued)

Once independent Shareholders’ approval of any
change has been obtained, no further announcement
or approval of the independent shareholders will
be required under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
unless and until further changes are proposed. The
periodic reporting requirement regarding the Structured
Contracts in the annual reports of our Company will
however continue to be applicable.

Economic benefits flexibility

The Structured Contracts shall continue to enable our
Group to receive the economic benefits derived by
our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities through (i) our
Group’s option, to the extent permitted under PRC
laws and regulations, to acquire all or part of the equity
or school sponsor’s interest held by the registered
Shareholders and/or the school sponsors of Nanjing
School, as the case may be, at the lowest possible
amount permissible under the applicable PRC laws and
regulations, (i) the business structure under which the
net profit generated by our PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities is substantially retained by our Group, such that
no annual cap shall be set on the amount of service
fees payable to WFOE by our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities under the exclusive technical service
and management consultancy agreements, and (jii) our
Group’s right to control the management and operation
of, as well as, in substance, all of the voting rights of our
PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities as appointed by
the registered Shareholders in our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities or by the school sponsors of Nanjing
School, as the case may be.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

)

Structured Contracts (continued)

(@

Renewal and reproduction

On the basis that the Structured Contracts provide an
acceptable framework for the relationship between our
Company and its subsidiaries in which our Company
has direct shareholding, on one hand, and our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities, on the other hand, that
framework may be renewed and/or reproduced upon
the expiry of the existing arrangements or in relation
to any existing or new wholly foreign owned enterprise
or operating company engaging in the same business
as that of our Group which our Group might wish
to establish when justified by business expediency,
without obtaining the approval of the Shareholders,
on substantially the same terms and conditions as
the existing Structured Contracts. The directors, chief
executives or substantial shareholders of any existing
or new wholly foreign owned enterprise or operating
company (including branch company) engaging in the
same business as that of our Group which our Group
may establish will, upon renewal and/or reproduction
of the Structured Contracts, however be treated as
connected persons of our Company and transactions
between these connected persons and our Company
other than those under similar Structured Contracts
shall comply with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. This
condition is subject to relevant PRC laws, regulations
and approvals.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)

©)

Confirmation of Independent Non-executive Directors

The Independent Non-executive Director have reviewed and
confirmed the continuing connected transactions set out

above are:
1. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

2. on normal commercial terms or better; and

3.  entered into in accordance with the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the Shareholders of the Company
as a whole.

Our Independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Structured Contracts and confirmed that (i) the transactions
carried out during the year ended 31 December 2020 have
been entered into in accordance with the relevant provisions
of the Structured Contracts, have been operated so that
the profit generated by our PRC Consolidated Affiliated
Entities has been substantially retained by our Group, (i) no
dividends or other distributions have been made by our PRC
Consolidated Affiliated Entities to the respective holders of
equity or school sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise
subsequently assigned or transferred to our Group, and
(iii) the Structured Contracts and if any, any new contracts
entered into, renewed or reproduced between our Group
and our PRC Consolidated Affiliated Entities during the year
ended 31 December 2020 under paragraph (d) above are
fair and reasonable, or advantageous, so far as our Group
is concerned and in the interests of our Shareholders as a
whole.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)
Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions (continued)
(6)  Confirmation of auditors of the Company

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the
Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than
Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”,
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the HKICPA. The external
auditor issued its unqualified letter containing its findings
and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has been provided to the
Stock Exchange in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

The Company’s auditors also carried out procedures on
the transactions pursuant to the Structured Contracts and
confirmed that the transactions have received the approval
of the Directors, have been entered into in accordance with
the relevant Structured Contracts and that no dividends or
other distributions have been made by our PRC Consolidated
Affiliated Entities to the respective holders of equity or school
sponsor’s interest which are not otherwise subsequently
assigned or transferred to our Group.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related parties transactions undertaken in the
normal course of business are set out in notes 20(ji) and 31 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report. Certain of
which also constitute discloseable connected transactions under
the Listing Rules. These connected transactions have complied
with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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CONFLICT OF INTERESTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020, none of the Directors,
the substantial Shareholders or the management Shareholders of
the Company or any of their respective associates has engaged
in any business that competes or may compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group or has any other conflict
of interests with the Group.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended 31
December 2020 were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares or debentures of the Company or any
other body corporate granted to any director or their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or were the Company or any of its holding
companies, fellow subsidiaries and subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Company’s directors, their respective
spouses or children under 18 years of age to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” in this report, none of the Directors nor
any entity connected with the Directors had a material interest,
either directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements
or contracts of significance to which the Company, its holding
company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was
a party subsisting during or at the end of the year ended 31
December 2020.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions” and the transactions as disclosed in
Notes 20(ii) and 31 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report, no Controlling Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries
have any contract of significance with the Company or its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2020.

No contract of significance, including contracts of significance
for the provision of services, has been entered into among the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and the Controlling Shareholders
or any of their subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December
2020.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code for dealing in securities of
the Company by the Directors. The Company has made specific
enquiry of all Directors and all Directors have confirmed that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model
Code during the year ended 31 December 2020.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing
Shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS
Save for the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the 2019 Share

Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements were entered into by
the Group, or existed during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and subject to the applicable
laws and regulations, the Directors, secretary and other officers and
every auditor of the Company at any time, whether at present or in
the past, and the liquidator or trustees (if any) acting or who have
acted in relation to any of the affairs of the Company and everyone of
them, and everyone of their heirs, executors and administrators, shall
be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their
heirs, executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by or
by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices or
trusts.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year
ended 31 December 2020. The Company has taken out liability
insurance to provide appropriate coverage for the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND REVIEW OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Audit Committee of the Company consists of three
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hung Ka Hai,
Clement, Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, Thomas and Dr. Zhu Guobin.
The main duties of the Audit Committee are to assist the Board in
providing an independent review of the completeness, accuracy
and fairness of the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2020 of the Group, as well as the efficiency
and effectiveness of the Group’s operations and internal controls.
The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2020,
including the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group. The Audit Committee is in the opinion that the consolidated
financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the applicable accounting standards, the Listing Rules and the
statutory requirements and that adequate disclosures have been
made in the annual report.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming annual general meeting will be held on
Wednesday, 26 May 2021. For the details, please refer to the
notice of the annual general meeting which will be published
and dispatched to the shareholders of the Company as soon
as practicable in accordance with the Company’s Articles of
Association and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@)  For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Friday, 21 May 2021 to Wednesday, 26 May 2021 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting. In order to be eligible to
attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting,
all share transfer documents accompanied by the relevant
share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Service Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 20
May 2021.

(b)  For determining the entitlement to the proposed final dividend

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 1 June 2021 to Thursday, 3 June 2021 (both days
inclusive), during which period no transfer of Shares of the
Company may be registered, for the purposes of ascertaining
Shareholders’ entitlement for the proposed final dividend
and special dividend. The record date for the proposed final
dividend and special dividend shall be Thursday, 3 June 2021.
In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend and special
dividend, all share transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday,
31 May 2021.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Pursuant to the waiver obtained from the Stock Exchange, based
on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
public float of at least 20.0024% and 20.1817% of the Company’s
issued Shares from the date of listing to 4 July 2019, being the
date of issue of additional Shares upon exercise of over-allotment
options, and from such date to the date of this report respectively.

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the Company was informed
by (i) Wu Junbao Education, (i) Wu Wei Education; and (iii) Xiao
Guoqing Education, together with Wu Junbao Education and Wu
Wei Education shall be referred to as the “Sellers”), that the Sellers
had made the placement of an aggregate of 60,000,000 shares of
HK$0.0001 each in the Company (the “Placement”) representing
a total of approximately 2.73% of the entire issued and fully paid up
share capital of the Company as at 31 December 2020 at a price
of HK$16.4 per Share.

The Board considered the Placement did not have any
significant impact on its day to day operations or changes to
its key management personnel. This Placement was made for
the purposes of broadening the Company’s investor base and
enhancing liquidity.

The respective shareholdings of the Sellers and other shareholders
in the Company () as at 31 December 2020; and (i) immediately
upon completion of the Placement are as follows:

RHARKFRE

RIFEB RGN E - ERARQFM
BRIz ARER  WRESHAA - AAF
B - BEEE201967 B4 H (BIATTFEER
FERCRR R M B TR AN DM B HR) R BRZ A
BEAREHBERS SR QR EET
A% 17 2= 120.0024% 5 20.1817 % H) B SR
BRI E -

R2020F 12 A31HE  RAFIEE{HR
BIRHE  (VREHE - Kii)E BEHE -
HRERERYERREHELHBAIER)
Mg - FHEREEA £60,000,000 &
EE0.0001 B LM ARABRG(EE)
EARRD TR 2020F 12 A31 B2 82 317
OB R 2.73% « [BI&BERN
16.4787C °

EXeRREETeHERREFELE
ARESLTECHIEERABRLE
¥ AREEEEMEAARANREEE
MR AR A

()y220209F12 8318 M (i) ERE Bt & 585K
% BHMEMBKRERSEARAR G A E
T

Number of Number of

Shares held Shares
asat Approximate % held upon Approximate %
31 December of total completion of of total
2020 issued Shares  the Placement issued Shares
RN20206  {EREPERT HEBERT
12A31H B3 LR THEER 43 LA
Name Eg FERMEE Rl FERAEE BOt

Sellers g5

Wu Junbao Education REIRHUE 743,743,602 33.88% 721,792,602 32.88%
Wu Wei Education REHE 509,386,109 23.21% 490,361,609 22.34%
Xiao Guoging Education HEEHE 490,017,995 22.32% 470,993,495 21.46%
Other shareholders HiE 451,956,000 20.59% 511,956,000 23.32%
Total B 2,195,103,706 100%  2,195,103,706 100%
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SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and of
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five
financial years, is set out on page 300.

AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu shall retire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for their re-appointments as auditor of

the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

By order of the Board
China East Education Holdings Limited

Wu Wei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA EAST EDUCATION
HOLDINGS LIMITED
(FERAHREERBRAF)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 180 to 299, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020 and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

BHERLFHBERERIFAZTRR

(RASEBEMALZ GRAF)

=R

RITEBZTRBRRABEERER A A
([E2a) REWNBAR (HEIEEE])
BN F180A EF299H 2 iR A MISHE -
iR G IS HER B IER2020F 12318 2
RAEMBRARBEEZBIEFEZRE
BakHEM2ERER  SAESZHE
RiGEBEERER  ARGATBHREM
i BREEIEeIEEME -

KIRE - REVBRREBEEEEE
MAg((EAGTMAR]) BHEOEEN
BHREER([EBMBREEAN)EEM
AR ESER2020F12H318H)
RAEMBHRR  REBEZB EFENLRS
AUBRERGERERE WO BRE
BRENEGINHEREZ ARE -
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Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment,
was of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. The matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on matter.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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Key Audit Matters (continued)

Key audit matter

BAREXSE

Revenue recognition of tuition fees
BEWAFER

We identified revenue, referring to note 6 of the
consolidated financial statements, as a key audit matter
due to its significance to the consolidated financial
statements and volume of transactions as at 31
December 2020.

AT AT A REREZ EE RN E S A M HRE
HEEMR2020FE12A31 BN G52 @ B2HEEH

TSR HIEEG ©

Tuition fees are generally collected in advance at
the enrollment or at the beginning of each school
year for courses over one year. Tuition fees received
from students but not earned are initially recorded in
contract liabilities, and then recognised over the relevant
period of the applicable courses. Revenue is one of
the key performance indicators of the Group. Given
the significant balance and volume of transactions
processed, we therefore consider the revenue
recognition as a key audit matter.

BE RN ABR BB —FORESBFRBIIEA
WER - (e BAWEIERRRNEEBY T THEREGHE
& - HERNERRIZEEPREER - AT BE5E#H
REBIERZ — - ERNERERLFTETRHE © K17
E S A TR REREREIR -

The accounting policy of revenue recognition and
analysis of revenue are included in notes 4 and 6 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

WA TR RRA DT G5B D RSN AR & S HRE
BizE4 K6 -

MRERER(E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

RITHERNTEEBRELER

Our procedures in relation to revenue recognition of
tuition fees included:
RTERBEBWABRZ ERIEFEIE

understanding and testing the Group’s key internal
controls relating to revenue recognition process;

- TERRAR BEREBBRAERBIZEAREEAN
P

- on a sample basis, verifying the existence of the
students in the financial year by checking the
attendance records and the student register

system;
-  FERERELYRHEEELFMESRMERERIEK
FEBEELDER

- on a sample basis, checking the existence of
the students in the financial year by interviewing
students;

- BRESBAAKMERENVRFERERSE

7

= on a sample basis, checking the supporting
documents of tuition fees received from students;

- HEREABLWMSBEFRIUE

- performing recalculation of the amount of contract
liabilities and revenue recognised during the year;
and

- EIFERFARRNEHNBERKASE &

- performing analytical procedures to assess the
reasonableness of revenue recognised during the

year.
- WIWmER  UFHERFEARRHBAREE
1 o
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Other Information

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continuead)

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (continueq)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Wong Shun Yu.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

Revenue
Cost of revenue

Gross profit

Other income and expenses

Other gains and losses

Selling expenses

Administrative expenses

Listing expenses

Research and development expenses
Finance costs

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive
income for the year

Earnings per share
— Basic (RMB cents)

— Diluted (RMB cents)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income &4 E&R 2 ElER

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
NOTES 2020 2019
M 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTTT

6 3,648,892 3,905,306
(1,680,059) (1,625,307)
1,968,833 2,279,999
7 190,802 116,774
(127,266) 130,807
(829,039) (698,002)
(569,750) (576,306)
- (21,578)
(43,779) (30,652)
9 (146,053) (131,521)
443,748 1,069,521
10 (186,134) (221,703)
11 257,614 847,818
14
11.75 42.60
11.28 40.84




Consolidated Statement of Financial Position & & B &k R &

As at 31 December 2020
® 2020412 A31H

As at 31 December

M12H31H
NOTES 2020 2019
MIE 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

Non-current assets FkRBEE
Property and equipment LIEYS & 15 1,415,733 1,405,915
Right-of-use assets FREEE 16 1,926,746 1,712,262
Deferred tax assets FRIEF A A B 17 5,360 3,642
Deposits paid for acquisition of WHEEE T e ke
leasehold lands 133,186 21,708
Deposits for rental Heke 25,332 24,022
Deposits for utilities and others KEE N HAM RS 7,991 12,230
3,514,348 3,179,779
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 18 56,250 51,713
Trade and other receivables E 5 K HE bW GRTE 19 180,103 203,236
Other financial assets Hib @& E 20
— measured at fair value through —BAR EBEFTEWE
profit or loss (“FVTPL”) A= (U AAEE
STEYETAER]) 509,173 418,013
— measured at amortised cost — IR AR = 390,000 49,500
Tax recoverable AU B F R 1,079 1,068
Time deposits TEHAITE SR 21 2,198,016 1,891,600
Bank balances and cash IRITEEBRNIRS 21 2,972,325 3,882,953
6,306,946 6,498,083
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables B 5 Kk HALFERFIR 22 577,561 443,134
Tax liabilities HIEAE 126,107 138,142
Lease liabilities HEEE 23 338,510 307,391
Contract liabilities EHEE 24 1,384,697 1,383,298
2,426,875 2,271,965
Net current assets REEETFE 3,880,071 4,226,118
Total assets less current liabilities ZEEAERRBEE 7,394,419 7,405,897
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As at 31 December 2020
R 2020412 A31H

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (continued) =& B AR i & ()

As at 31 December

M12831H
NOTES 2020 2019
M 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETFIT
Non-current liabilities ERBAE
Lease liabilities HEEE 23 1,279,378 1,206,840
Contract liabilities =X =L 24 65,136 72,316
Government grants BT 48 B 9,867 6,339
1,354,381 1,285,495
Net assets EEFE 6,040,038 6,120,402
Capital and reserves ERRf#E
Share capital &N 25 193 193
Reserves ] 6,039,845 6,120,209
Total equity A 6,040,038 6,120,402
The consolidated financial statements on pages 180 to 299 were HNFE180E290H AR & IR KL ES

approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 EH2021F3 A25H R B MR - WH

March 2021 and signed on its behalf of: ITALTRAESE :
Wu Wei Xiao Guoqing
Rig HEE
Director Director
EF EE

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity ZR&EZE B X

At 1 January 2019 1201951 A1H
Profit and total comprehensive ERFERE
income for the year ]
Recognition of equity-settied share-  ERAEREER
Rrt3 et (Hi+E26)

based payments (note 26)
Capitalisation issue (note 25(i) B M3 A7 (E25()
TTBBTHRA
(E% R

Issue of new shares upon Listing

(as defined in note 1) (note 25(i) 25(iif)
Issue of new shares upon HiF R R T
exercise of the over-allotment $R1 (BEE25()

options (note 25(v))

Transaction costs attrioutable to BIMROEENR S

issue of new shares A

Issue of new shares upon TR
exercise of share options AR (ME25() K
(note 25(v)) & (note 26) (Hii26)

Transfer g%

At 31 December 2019 20195124318

Profit and total comprehensive income FAIFIER 2R E
for the year e

Recognition of equity-settied AUAER EE R
share-based payments (note 26) Xf (ffE26)

Issue of new shares upon TR R T
exercise of share options kAR
(note 25() & (note 26) (FisE25() B H3526)

Dividend distribution (note 13) REDK(Hi13)

Transfer g%

At 31 December 2020 120206124318

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

RARER AL
Share-
based  Statutory
Share Share Capital  payments surplus  Retained
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total
URB A
EfN  iEER
Bx  ROEE EFRE  XARE i EENE At
RMB'000O  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARBTRT AREBTT ARETT ARETR
(note a)
(MizFa)
- 533 156,947 8,125 223,848 483,178 872,631
- - - - - 847818 847,818
- - - 115,829 - - 115,829
154 (154) - - - - -
38 4,315,853 - - - - 4315891
- 48,583 - = = = 48,583
- (95,800) - - - - (95,800)
1 37,610 - (22,161) - - 15,450
- - = - (17,065) 17,065 -
193 4,306,625 156,947 101,793 206,783 1,348,061 6,120,402
- - - - - 257614 257,614
- - - 76,166 - - 76,166
- 20,473 - (12,478) - - 7,995
- (422,139) - - - - (422,139)
- - - - 27,224 (27,224) -
193 3,904,959 156,947 165,481 234,007 1,578,451 6,040,038
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Note:

(@)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

Pursuant to the relevant laws in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”), the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC shall make
appropriations from after-tax profit to non-distributable reserve funds
as determined by the management of the relevant PRC subsidiaries.
These reserves include: (i) general reserve of the limited liabilities
companies and (i) the development fund of schools.

For PRC subsidiaries with limited liability, they are required to
make annual appropriations to general reserve of 10% of after-
tax profits as determined under the PRC laws and regulations
at each year-end until the balance reaches 50% of the relevant
PRC entity’s registered capital.

According to the relevant PRC laws and regulations, for
private school that does not require for reasonable return, it is
required to appropriate to development fund of not less than
25% of the net income of the relevant schools as determined
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
in the PRC. The development fund shall be used for the
construction or maintenance of the schools or procurement or
upgrading of educational equipment. When the development
fund is used, the reserve will be transferred back to retained
profits directly.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (continued) 42 & EZ 2 E X (&)

@ REBRPEARLAE((HE])BEEE
N BIFE AR B Y BB A A1 BB 14 F B
RERBEFENBRAREEEE TN A
DIkFEES ZERBERE  (VBEREME
NRK— R EE  RBRERES -

HREREEE AT EKER
A - ZERRARRPBRIERER
IAEFEREENTRMBEO10%
m—REEELFERER  BEE2E
HEZNREPEEREMEARR
50% °

REBGATBEAREER  HRTE
KA BEHRPER - LERR
HERRERAUNEENANER
HEARRFREN25% R ERED
TEH B - ERES AR BN
BRI MEE  IHERBNRER
TR - BRRESHEAR - &
BEERLZBENE -



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows Z&BE&HRER

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
Finance costs

Interest income from bank deposits

Interest income from entrusted loans
Depreciation of property and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Release of asset-related government grants
Gains on disposals of property and

equipment

Losses from termination of lease

agreements

Gains on other financial assets measured

at FVTPL

Equity-settled share-based payments

expense

Covid-19-related rent concessions

Unrealised net foreign exchange losses

(gains)

Operating cash flow before movements in

working capital
Increase in inventories

Increase in trade and other receivables
Decrease (increase) in deposits for utilities

and others

Increase (decrease) in trade and other

payables

(Decrease) increase in contract liabilities

Cash generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash from operating activities

REEY

BZIRAIVE
SR
BERA
RITTFEF B HA
REEFFBIA

MENREIE
EREEENE
BB ERBBFHEE
HEYE M REN YR
R E R

UanBEFELF AREN
Hit e & E RS

At s A B D AT XX
HRX

A ENESERNESE
=

REIRE L E1R (Wat) F 8

LBE S BYAEL
BEne
&

B 5 I EL A R USRI A
IKEEMEMIRER D (B

.5 B E A B OB 20 O
)
A 478 (8 OB ) 3
mEEE GRS
B8Rt

REFHABHSIFR

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

Year ended 31 December

HZEZ12A31HLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBTT

443,748 1,069,521
146,053 131,521
(104,125) (71,600)
(8,323) -
323,862 294,265
279,347 249,058
(2,749) (1,692
(640) (322)
984 -
(39,581) (45,215)
76,166 115,829
(22,622) -
108,563 (61,002)
1,200,683 1,680,363
(4,537) (14,575)
(11,439) (27,253)
4,239 (4,199)
128,624 (12,642)
(5,781) 166,283
1,311,789 1,787,977
(199,898) (191,755)
1,111,891 1,596,222
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received from bank deposits

Interest received from entrusted loans

Proceeds on disposals of property and
equipment

Purchases of property and equipment

Purchases of leasehold lands

Payments for rental deposits

Withdrawal of rental deposits

Purchases of other financial assets

Redemptions of other financial assets

Placement of time deposits

Withdrawal of time deposits

Deposits paid for acquisition of
leasehold lands

Asset-related government grants

Net cash used in investing activities

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from issue of shares
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Dividend paid

Repayments of lease liabilities

Interests paid

Issue costs paid

Net cash (used in) from financing activities

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of

the year
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the

year, representing bank balances and cash

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (continued) ZERE&HRER (@)

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT R ARET T
REEE
WER SR T A7 SR A2 138,697 29,510
WERZ L E R ALE 8,323 =
i E W2 RS FT 1S 508
5,218 11,361
BEMEREE (332,455) (371,434)
BEHELTM (98,988) =
iR AN (7,002) (6,958)
REESZS 2,370 —
BEEMEREE (4,489,310) (4,520,580)
EREMEREE 4,097,231 4,098,282
TE BT RIER (2,198,016) (1,859,400)
RREEZ S 1,923,700 =
WEHEE T B fiES
(133,186) (21,708)
ERE E AR BN B 6,277 4,380
WEREFTAR S F5E (1,077,141) (2,636,547)
Rl ESEE
A& BT AT SIE - 4,364,474
T B AR M P15 508 7,995 15,450
BEfRE (422,139) (34,112
BEHAEaE (244,518) (215,226)
BERAFE (146,053) (131,521)
B BITROAR - (90,882)
BEEE) (FTR) Frig R & 558 (804,715) 3,908,183
Re RESEEDORD) LN
R (769,965) 2,867,858
FHE 2 RREFEY
3,882,953 986,293
EXREHNTE (140,663) 28,802
FRES KRS EEY BNERTT
HERRIRE) 2,972,325 3,882,953

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements &4 B8R R M

GENERAL INFORMATION

China East Education Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and registered
as an exempted company with limited liability under the
Companies Law Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands on 4
October 2018. Its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 12 June 2019 (the “Listing”). Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Wu Junbao, Mr. Wu Wei and Mr.
Xiao Guoging, collectively referred as the “Controlling Equity
Holders”. The registered office of the Company is located
at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and the principal place
of business in PRC is No. 1009 Xuelin Road, Vocational
Education Town, Yaohai District, Hefei City, Anhui Province,
the PRC.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are mainly engaged in the
operation of vocational education institutions. Details of the
subsidiaries are disclosed in note 32. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”), which is the functional currency of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Pursuant to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
as more fully explained in the paragraph under the sections
headed “History and Corporate Structure” and “Structured
Contracts” in the prospectus dated 30 May 2019, the
Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 30 November 2018. Since
the Controlling Equity Holders control all the companies now
comprising the Group before and after the Reorganisation,
the Group comprising the Company and its subsidiaries is
regarded as a continuing entity.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

— R

FRERSHEZERER AR ([ERA
8 1)AR2018F10 A4ARIEFR S S
(RELE) (F22F) EH 2 RS MK
N RAERRBREERAR c HiRH B
201956 H1I2HEEREBHER S
FrER A ([HRA]) =R EM(TE
ml) o HE&Edl A mRERTE -
RIEBEEREBEELE (G A
BEFEE]) - RATRREMRER
1A Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive,
P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands & A B £ Z &
FHURI R B HE S ETE SR
B BB 2 RER 100955 ©

ARAR—RRERRAT - ARA
HBATMEELBEERFELR
£HE R o BB AR R
BRIEE2 « AR REMBL AR
BAIAEE) -

HFEMBREIAARE ([ARE]) 2
5 MARBRARBREKEAR
HITNEEE R -

EAREINEEREA

BEEEEA(EH]) (FEFEH
RBHA2019F5 A30H B ER
[ R ARIEE] RIEBESLO]M
) - NAFR20184F11 B30HK A
REBREFET ARIMZERAF - A
PRI 15 B ATEE B AT R I H] A
SEBRETHRE AR - AAQH
KR EME R AR A S B R AE
jE

5 =2
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188

REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Under the relevant PRC laws and regulations requirement,
the Company is restricted to independently or jointly operate
most of vocational and training business. In preparation for
the Listing, the Group has entered into a series of contractual
arrangements with the Controlling Equity Holders to maintain
and exercise the control over the operation of Anhui Xinhua
Education Group Co., Ltd. (ZRFHZ=HE EEER A7)
(“Anhui Xinhua Education”), and to obtain all of its entire
economic benefits (the “Contractual Arrangements”). The
Contractual Arrangements were entered into by a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, Hefei Xinhua Chuangzhi
Education Management Co., Ltd. (BEFEAIBEHE SRR
RAF]) (“Xinhua Chuangzhi”) with Anhui Xinhua Education,
Nanjing Culinary Technical School (B &R 2 £E 3 T £)
(“Nanjing Culinary”), the Controlling Equity Holders and Mr.
Ge Xiaoliang, which, effective from 30 November 2018,
enable Xinhua Chuangzhi and the Group to:

o exercise effective financial and operational control over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary;

o exercise equity holders’ voting rights of Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary;

o receive substantially all economic returns generated
by Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary in
consideration for the business support, technical and
consulting services provided by the Group;

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

EEREVNEEREH(E

BIEPEBBEEERATE - AAR]
ERRBIUKMEELERSEBER
BIER - BEELT  A5EE S
ERESIZFAE AR L —RIMENR
B AR RITFEERBINERE S
EAERAR([ZHFELE ) ML E
Rl - WESESHEENE (6
NP - BHNRFBRARTNEE
MEBAREEMEASHEEEER
AR ([FERT ) BRI EHRE -
HARAERTER([ERREE]) =
BEZFEAREZREEHRREG
3 B2018%11 AB0B 4K - £
ERIS AR EaES

s HLBHERELRBERRLE
MR R AN B

s TRLBHEHBELBRZEE
BEFAANRRE

s REAKBEREMELE S
AR RS - B T HWG
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

2. REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

o obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase
the entire equity interest in Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary from the Controlling Equity
Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang at nil consideration or a
minimum purchase price permitted under PRC laws
and regulations. The Group may exercise such options
at any time until it has acquired all equity interests and/
or all assets of Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing
Culinary. In addition, Anhui Xinhua Education and
Nanjing Culinary are not allowed to sell, transfer, or
dispose any assets, or make any distributions to its
equity holders without prior consent of the Group; and

° obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of Anhui
Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary from the
Controlling Equity Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang as
collateral security for all of the amounts Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary due to the Group
and to secure performance of the Controlling Equity
Holders’ and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang’s obligations under the
Contractual Arrangements.

Consequently, the Company regards Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary as indirect subsidiaries.

2.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEE

EERENNEEREA (&

AEHERFBERERILE
MREBEEERTRESKA
AREBZRAEEDFBELZR
MEHE RER TR IRA
RENTAHMEREE - A%
BRI EERTERSFRERE B
ERBEEBRAEER, KK
BHERE RERRENEH
BE - I REAKENS
XRE  REEHELER
RETHHE HERERNEEF
MEE  MEERFTAEARE
HERIDIE : &

BEERESRAAREZRE
ERGSE LB EHE LB R
REEERARENIER  F
REBHEHE AR RER
NAKE B RENEIRE
R AREREBERSE AR
EEREEBITEANLHT
AT

it - KRB LZHAERE LER
RERRREENB AR
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

2. REORGANISATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

The following balances and amounts of the Anhui Xinhua
Education and its subsidiaries and Nanjing Culinary were
included in the consolidated financial statements:

Revenue WA

Profit before tax TRIAE
Non-current assets EMBENEE
Current assets MBNEE
Current liabilities mENEIE
Non-current liabilities JEMEIAE

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

EERENNEEREA (&

T RRHAERE REMBRRRE
REANERNSBERAGZSNH

HERA

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARET T
3,560,963 3,841,906
608,921 960,952

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
3,232,275 3,090,834
1,947,921 2,177,273
1,741,225 2,254,792
1,353,830 1,242,572




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the
current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework in HKFRSs and
the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:
Amendments to Hong Definition of Material

Kong Accounting

Standard (“HKAS”) 1

and HKAS 8
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendment to
HKFRS 16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in
HKFRSs and the amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
had no material impact on the Group’s financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

3.1 Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The Group has applied the amendment for the first time
in the current year. The amendment introduces a new
practical expedient for lessees to elect not to assess
whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a lease
modification. The practical expedient only applies to
rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the Covid-19 that meets all of the following conditions:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

o there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 Leases if the changes
were not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver
of lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

3.1 Impacts on early application of Amendment to HKFRS
16 Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions (continued)

The application of the amendment had no impact to
the opening retained profits at 1 January 2020. The
Group has derecognised the part of lease liabilities that
have been extinguished by the forgiveness of lease
payments using the discount rates originally applied
to these leases respectively, resulting in a decrease in
the lease liabilities of RMB22,622,000, which has been
recognised as variable lease payments in profit or loss
for the current year.

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are
not yet effective:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the
related Amendments'

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework?

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate Benchmark

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16

Reform — Phase 2°

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

3. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continuead)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to
Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020)!

Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
— Proceeds before Intended
Use?

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract?

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-20202

Notes:

U Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022.

g Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date

to be determined.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the
application of all new and amendments to HKFRSs will
have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

41

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by
the HKICPA. For the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements, information is
considered material if such information is reasonably
expected to influence decisions made by primary
users. In addition, the consolidated financial statements
include applicable disclosures required by the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Listing Rules”) and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments that are measured at fair values
at the end of each reporting period, as explained in the
accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of
the consideration given in exchange for goods and
services.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

41 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is
directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a
liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics
of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16, and measurements that
have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair
value and a valuation technique that unobservable
inputs is to be used to measure fair value in subsequent
periods, the valuation technique is calibrated so that at
initial recognition the results of the valuation technique
equals the transaction price.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

41

4.2

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair
value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to
the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement
in its entirety, which are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted
prices included within Level 1, that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly;
and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the
asset or liability.

Significant accounting policies

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
(including structured entities) controlled by the
Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved when
the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from
its involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its
returns.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee
when the voting rights are sufficient to give it the
practical ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee unilaterally. The Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether or not
the Group’s voting rights in an investee are sufficient to
give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of
the other vote holders;

o potential voting rights held by the Group, other
vote holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

o any additional facts and circumstances that
indicate that the Group has, or does not have, the
current ability to direct the relevant activities at the
time that decisions need to be made, including
voting patterns at previous shareholders’
meetings.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HBAVBBREANEREEREARD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBUR (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BRGFBKR#E
Basis of consolidation (continued) A A O (4E

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically,
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control
the subsidiary.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service
(or a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a
series of distinct goods or services that are substantially
the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is
recognised over time by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of the relevant
performance obligation if one of the following criteria is
met:

° the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time
when the customer obtains control of the distinct good
or service.

Contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to the students for which the Group
has received tuition fees and fees for ancillary services
from the students.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

Input method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on input
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis
of the Group’s efforts or inputs (mainly representing
teaching staff costs, rental expenses and depreciation
of school premises) to the satisfaction of a performance
obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the
satisfaction of that performance obligation, that best
depict the Group’s performance in transferring control
of goods or services.

Tuition fees are generally paid in advance at the
beginning of each courses, and are initially recorded
as contract liabilities. The portion of tuition payments
received from students but not earned is recorded as
contract liabilities. Amounts which will be earned within
one year is reflected as a current liability and those
which will be earned beyond one year is reflected as a
non-current liability.

Leases
Definition of a lease
A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset
for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4, HEMBBRRNEREEREAS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FHBUR (&

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BBREFBKR#E
Leases (continued) HE (#&)
Definition of a lease (continued) HEWES (&

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract
is or contains a lease based on the definition under
HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or acquisition
date, as appropriate. Such contract will not be
reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and
one or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease component on the basis of the relative
stand-alone price of the lease component and
the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease
component and are accounted for by applying other
applicable standards.

Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of staff apartments that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase
option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or
another systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2

Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located
or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities
and adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities
other than adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from
Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the Group
applied the practical expedient.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HBAVBBRENEREEREARS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBUR (2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BEREFHEE

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and initially
measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair value at
initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at that
date. In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the interest rate implicit in
the lease is not readily determinable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The lease payments include:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group;
and

° payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising the
option to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Lease liabilities (continued)

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modiifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which
the Group applied the practical expedient, the Group
accounts for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect
the circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continueq)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
conseguence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

° the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June
2021; and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4, HEMBBRRNEREEREAS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT FHBUR (&
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
4.2  Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BEREFHEE
Leases (continued) HE (#&)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEFERFRHAA (B)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (continued)

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for
the changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are
not a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of
lease payments are accounted for as variable lease
payments. The related lease liabilities are adjusted
to reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or
loss in the period in which the event occurs.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on
a systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which
the grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets are recognised as deferred income
in the consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants related to income that are
receivable as compensation for expenses or losses
already incurred or for the purpose of giving immediate
financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they become receivable. Such grants are
presented under “other income”.

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit
schemes and Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
are recognised as an expense when employees have
rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

4.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)
Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be
paid as and when employees rendered the services.
All short-term employee benefits are recognised as an

expense unless another HKFRS requires or permits the
inclusion of the benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to
employees (such as wages and salaries and annual
leave) after deducting any amount already paid.
Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees are

measured at the fair value of the equity instruments at
the grant date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payrments (continued)

Equity-settled share-based payments transactions
(continued)

Share options granted to employees (continueq)

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based
payments determined at the grant date without
taking into consideration all non-market vesting
conditions is expensed on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period, based on the Group’s estimate
of equity instruments that will eventually vest, with
a corresponding increase in equity (share-based
payments reserve). At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimate of the number of equity
instruments expected to vest based on assessment
of all relevant non-market vesting conditions. The
impact of the revision of the original estimates, if
any, is recognised in profit or loss such that the
cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
payments reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in share-based payments reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still
not exercised at the expiry date, the amount previously
recognised in share-based payments reserve will be
transferred to retained profits.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax
currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit
for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit before
taxation because of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and items that are never
taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting
profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments
in subsidiaries except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary difference and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not
be reversed in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax
assets arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are
expected to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
in which the liability is settled or the asset is realised,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each
reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from
the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of
each reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities.

4.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Taxation (continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences on initial recognition of the relevant right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.
Temporary differences arising from subsequent revision
to the carrying amounts to right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modification that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date
of remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or
loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equijpment

Property and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the supply of services or for
administrative purposes (other than properties under
construction as described below). Property and
equipment are stated in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for supply
or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include any
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Such properties are classified to the appropriate
categories of property and equipment when completed
and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these
assets, on the same basis as other property assets,
commences when the assets are ready for their
intended use.

When the Group makes payments for ownership
interests of properties which includes both leasehold
land and building elements, the entire consideration is
allocated between the leasehold land and the building
elements in proportion to the relative fair values at
initial recognition. To the extent the allocation of the
relevant payments can be made reliably, interest in
leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use assets” in
the consolidated statement of financial position. When
the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in
the underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are
classified as property and equipment.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Property and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the
cost of items of property and equipment other than
properties under construction less their residual values
over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property and equipment is determined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Research and development expenses

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred.

When no internally-generated intangible asset can be
recognised, development expenditure is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred.

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property and equipment and
right-of-use assets to determine whether there is any
indication that these assets have suffered an impairment
loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable
amount of the relevant asset is estimated in order to
determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HBAVBBREANEREEREARD
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBUR (48)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 42 BREFHEEE

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

The recoverable amount of property and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount
of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) for which the estimates of future cash
flows have not been adjusted.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Impairment on property and equipment and right-of-
use assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount.
For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group
compares the carrying amount of a group of cash-
generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
allocated to that group of cash-generating units, with
the recoverable amount of the group of cash-generating
units. In allocating the impairment loss, the impairment
loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other assets
on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating
units. The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced
below the highest of its fair value less costs of disposal
(if measurable), its value in use (if determinable) and
zero. The amount of the impairment loss that would
otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated
pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the group of
cash-generating units. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash generating unit
or the group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a
cash-generating unit or the group of cash-generating
units) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Costs of inventories are determined
on a weighted average method. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories
less all estimated costs of completion and costs
necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases
or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way
purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time
frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with Customers (“HKFRS 15”). Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
receipts and payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter
period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

o the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash
flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

()  Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and is calculated
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired (see below). For financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of
the financial asset from the next reporting period.
If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no
longer credit-impaired.

(i)  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for

being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair
value at the end of each reporting period, with
any fair value gains or losses recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit
or loss excludes any dividend earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other gains
and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit losses (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade and other receivables, deposits for
rental, deposits for utilities and others, other financial
assets measured at amortised cost, time deposits
and bank balances) which are subject to impairment
assessment under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is
updated at each reporting dates to reflect changes in
credit risk since initial recognition.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of
the relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL
(“12m ECL”) represents the portion of lifetime ECL
that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after each reporting date.
Assessment are done based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions
at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future
conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, in which case the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increases in
the likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

U)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at each reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition. In
making this assessment, the Group considers
both quantitative and qualitative information that
is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit
default swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions
that are expected to cause a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its
debt obligations;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

U

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor
that results in a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the
credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more
than 30 days past due, unless the Group has
reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness
of the criteria used to identify whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk
and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant
increase in credit risk before the amount becomes
past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueqd)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

(i)

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group,
in full (without taking into account any collaterals
held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial
asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Credit-impaired financial assets (continued)

(@)  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
the borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or
past due event;

(c)  the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic
or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, having granted
to the borrower a concession(s) that the
lender(s) would not otherwise consider; or

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings,
whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. A
write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or
loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

W)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an
unbiased and probability-weighted amount that
is determined with the respective risks of default
occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or
loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments
by adjusting their carrying amount, with the
exception of trade and other receivables and
other financial assets measured at amortised
cost, where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

REVBBRRNEREEREAS

TR (F

42 BREGAEKE)

2ET A (&)

EHEE(E)

EHEEBE (E)

W)

B EEB RN ERE

=7
[0

BHMEEBERNERE
MR - BROBKRE
TFHEE DS HEIRRRE
) KB #) R # K 2R
BN ERENBRET;
ERRIBEAEEER R
MBI BURETTRIE - 1B
HEEERNMATRRT
—EE R R IR -
ZERIIAENRBRIES
REMETE -

—RmE - BRMEEER
BRI A RN AREN
FIBERHREREEAE
BB WERNEREERE
(BRI R EE R
BERNEFE) 2ENE
BfbET -

MBWATIZSBEEN
BAREERTE - FRIFSR
BEEZEEERE &
BT B UARIZ S B
BENBIHKRAGE -

AEEBEARMESHE
TAMREERERER
ZES BT AMRERS
HER - HEEBEEEE
ARTE R AR AR B O DA B 8
AT ENE 5 K& EH A E
WO TR LA e Bt 2 B B
BIgh



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

4. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 4., HEVBBRRNGEREERERS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT STBUR (2
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

42 BEAEHBUR(E)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continueq)

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the asset to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definition of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

All financial liabilities including trade and other payables

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity (continueq)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable, is recognised
in profit or loss.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 4, the management of the Group is
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, that the management of the Group
has made in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies and that have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Contractual Arrangements

The Group conducts a substantial portion of the business
through Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary in the
PRC due to regulatory restrictions on foreign ownership in the
Group’s schools in the PRC. The Group does not have any
equity interest in Anhui Xinhua Education or Nanjing Culinary.
The management of the Group assessed whether or not the
Group has control over Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing
Culinary based on whether the Group has the power over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary, has rights
to variable returns from its involvement with Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary, and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over Anhui Xinhua Education
and Nanjing Culinary. After assessment, the management
of the Group concluded that the Group has control over
Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary as a result
of the Contractual Arrangements and other measures and
accordingly, the assets, liabilities and their operating results
of Anhui Xinhua Education and Nanjing Culinary are included
in the consolidated financial statements for both years or
since the respective dates of establishment, whichever is the
shorter period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (continued)

Contractual Arrangements (continued)

Nevertheless, the Contractual Arrangements and other
measures may not be as effective as direct legal ownership
in providing the Group with direct control over Anhui Xinhua
Education, Nanjing Culinary and uncertainties presented by
the PRC legal system could impede the Group’s beneficiary
rights of the results, assets and liabilities of Anhui Xinhua
Education and Nanjing Culinary. The management of the
Group, based on the advice of its legal counsel, considers
that the Contractual Arrangements among Xinhua Chuangzhi,
Anhui Xinhua Education, Nanjing Culinary, the Controlling
Equity Holders and Mr. Ge Xiaoliang are in compliance
with the relevant PRC laws and regulations and are legally
enforceable.

Key sources of estimation uncertainties

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainties at the end
of each reporting period, that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTIES
(continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainties (continued)

Estimated impairment of property and equipment and right-
of-use assets

Property and equipment and right-of-use assets are stated
at costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment,
if any. In determining whether an asset is impaired, the
Group has to exercise judgment and make estimation,
particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event has occurred
or any indicators that may affect the asset value; (2) whether
the carrying value of an asset can be supported by the
recoverable amount, in the case of value in use, the net
present value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3) the
appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections
and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset
(including right-of-use assets), the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the assets belongs, including allocation of corporate assets
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assets have been allocated. Changing the
assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates or
the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of
property and equipment and right-of-use assets were
RMB1,415,733,000 and RMB1,926,746,000 (31 December
2019: RMB1,405,915,000 and RMB1,712,262,000)
respectively, details of which are disclosed in notes 15 and
16 respectively.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is mainly engaged in the provision of vocational
education services in the PRC.

Revenue represents service income from tuition fees and
service fees less sales related tax, and is recognised over
time.

Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligation for contracts with customers

The majority of the contracts for provision of vocational
education services are for periods of one year or less. As
permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to
these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed.

The Group’s operating segments are based on information
prepared and reported to the chief operating decision
makers (“CODM”), the board of directors of the Company,
for the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment. The Group is organised into the following
segments:

(@ New East Culinary Education: providing comprehensive
culinary training programs to students who pursue a
career in becoming professional chefs;

(b) Xinhua Internet Technology Education: providing a
wide range of information technology-related training to
students;

(c) Wontone Automotive Education: providing hands-on
auto repair skill training as well as practical knowledge
of automobile commerce;

(d)  Omick Education of Western Cuisine and Pastry:
offering a variety of courses, including baking, desserts,
western cuisines, bartending and barista training;
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead)

(e) Wisezone Data Technology Education: providing short-
term programs to junior college and university students
who have already had the basic theoretical knowledge
and seek to further develop relevant practical skills;

(f) Cuisine Academy: providing people with culinary skill
training on small-class settings and/or individual classes
that are delivered on an one-on-one basis; and

(@  Other miscellaneous businesses.

These segments are the basis on which the Group reports its
segment information.

The management of the Group assesses the performance of
the operating and reportable segment based on the revenue
and gross profit for the year of the Group as presented
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. The accounting policies of the
reportable segment are the same as the Group’s accounting
policies described in note 4. Segment results represent the
profits earned by each segment and excluding certain other
income and expenses, other gains and losses, corporate
administrative expenses, listing expenses and income tax
expense. No analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities
is regularly provided to the management of the Group
for review. Inter-segment sales are charged at cost plus
approach.

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and
results by operating and reportable segments for the years
ended 31 December 2020 and 2019:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

6.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

Revenue BA
Extemal sales IPiHE
Inter-segment sdes ABEHE
Seqment revenue AR
Results |
Segment resufs %%
Unallocated i)

Other income and expenses  EEMARER
Other gaing and losses AR RER
Comorate admiistratie ~ AFTHER

£XpeNses
Proft befoe tax HAHE
Income tax expense FERRx
Proft for the year EnilE

Other segment information £ 7 &5 4
Deprecatonof property ~~ MIERRENE

and equipment

Deprecation of igft-of-use ~ (EFRIEAENE
assels

Purchases of propertyend ~ EBENERFE
equipment

Additons ofight-of-use assets SEFREAE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

6. WARDBERE
AL ZE20209F 12531 HIFF/Z
Omick
Xinhua Education Wisezone
New East Internet Wontone of Western Data Other
Culinary ~ Technology ~ Automotive  Cuisineand  Technology Cuisine  miscellaneous
Education Education Education Pastry Education Academy  businesses  Elimination Total
ity i3 EE  EARER  EGERDT
ZHYE EkHE AEHE ERHE  AMERIEY FULTI He it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  ARETR  ARWTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR  ARMTR
1,954,301 747,583 483,203 325,295 45819 55,805 36,886 - 3,648,802
- - - - 3,000 - 89,032 (92,032) -
1,954,301 747,583 483,203 325,295 48819 55,805 125,918 (92,032) 3,648,892
565,219 225,685 (54,052) (65,049) (9,456) (17,281) (13,797) - 631,313
115,600
(126,282)
(176,883)
443,748
(186,134)
257,614
127,922 64,056 76,008 38,304 4,246 6,648 6,678 - 323,862
111,566 58,952 58,603 30,480 1424 9,669 2,653 - 219,347
158,240 79,896 67,578 21,445 118 1,750 9,231 - 338,258
163,076 120,708 145,875 15,883 911 2,755 82,487 - 531,695
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

6.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (continuead)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Revenue BA
Extemal sales e
Iner-segment sales ABEHE
Seqment revenue APHA
Results |
Seqment restits Pk
Unallocated AR

Otherincome and expenses A RARRR
Other gains and losses Al RER
Corporate admiistratie ~ ARHTHRR

EXeNSes
Listng expenses Lk
Proft before ax Gilhile
Income tax expense FERRxY
Proft for the year EilE

Other segment information 417 35& 5

Depreciation of propertyand 71 R (ETE
equipment

Deprecifionofight-ofuse ~ FRIEEERE
assets

Puchasesof propertyand ~ EEYIE ik
equipment

Additons ofight-of-use assets FREEERE

Geographical information

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

6. WARDHER (F

B E2019F 12831 H IFF/Z
Omick
Xinhua Education Wisezone

New East Internet Wontone of Westemn Data Other

Culinary ~ Technology Automotive ~ Cuisine and Technology Cuisine  miscellaneous
Education Education Education Pastry Education Academy businesses Elimination Total

2 f2 B BANEY  EGERDT
THHE shHE EHE ERYE AR EUC H3 ait
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETE  ARETT ARETr ARETr ARETr AREfr ARETr ARBTR ARETR
2,138,046 74,465 531,204 338,082 56,860 48,256 16,333 - 3,905,306
= = = - 9434 - 52,136 (62,170) -
2,138,046 TT4.465 531,264 338,082 68,294 48,256 69,069 (62,170) 3,905,306
795,398 294,983 35,93 3,797 (43,281) (23.901) (14878 - 1,048,097
75,984
180,807
(163,789)
(21578
1,069,521
(221,709
847,818
118,609 50,716 65,261 39,791 8,082 7,167 4639 - 294,265
101,208 44475 51,46 29,115 11893 10,008 1118 - 249,058
168,782 57,19 70,659 427 4886 423 4179 - 30,214
76,205 93,096 0,717 12546 1985 - 11,647 - 286,216
i E R

The Group primarily operates in the PRC. Substantially all of
the non-current assets of the Group are located in the PRC.

Information about major customers

No single customer contributes over 10% or more of total

revenue of the Group during the years ended 31 December

2020 and 2019.
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7.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

Asset-related government grants

Unconditional government grants

Interest income from

—bank deposits

—entrusted loans

Covid-19-related rent concessions
(note 16)

Others

OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

Gains on other financial assets
measured at FVTPL

Gains on disposals of property and
equipment

Losses from termination of lease
agreements

Net foreign exchange (losses) gains
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8.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

HA AR B

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFIT

2,749 1,692

49,831 39,098

104,125 71,600

8,323 =

22,622 =

3,152 4,384

190,802 116,774
HiE R EE

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31HLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETFIT
39,581 45215
640 322

(984) =
(166,503) 85,270
(127,266) 130,807




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

9. FINANCE COSTS 9. HIEmHAKR
Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBBEZMNERZ 146,053 131,621
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. FTB#FiFAX
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31RILEE
2020 2019
2020%F 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARET T
PRC Enterprise Income Tax (“EIT”) Bl FTSEE ([ 2EPTERLD)
— Current tax — RNERTHIR 178,576 222,349
— Under provision in prior years —BEFERETRE 9,276 =
Deferred tax credit (note 17) BRI IR S (BFEE17) (1,718) (646)
186,134 221,703

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
China East Education Investment Limited (FR B 5 # B % &
BBR7A7]) was incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the
“BVI”) that are tax exempted as no business carried out in
Cayman lIslands and BVI under the tax laws of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, respectively.

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
of the estimated assessable profit for the year ended 31
December 2020. The subsidiaries of the Company operating
in Hong Kong did not have tax assessable profit during both
years.
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10.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, according to
the Implementation Rules for the Law for Promoting Private
Education, private schools of the Group, which are providing
academic qualification education and the school sponsors
do not require reasonable returns, are eligible to enjoy
income tax exemption treatment as public schools, including
Shijiazhuang New East Secondary Vocational School (%
B R AP EEEER) (“Shijiazhuang Secondary”), Jiangxi
Wontone Automobile Technical School (I 78 &8 /5E8 i
T £4%), Jiangxi Nanchang New East Culinary Secondary
Vocational School (L7ER & #1577 2 EER), Jiangxi
Nanchang Xinhua Computer Secondary Vocational School
(TPhF 2 ¥ E B M P HEL), Nanjing Wontone Automobile
Vocational Technical School (R & @ /SHE R TEK) and
Nanjing Culinary (collectively referred as the “EIT Exempted
Schools”). According to the relevant in-charge tax bureau,
since the relevant tax policy for schools that were not elected
to be for-profit or not-for-profit was not yet announced and
if the school nature was not changed, the schools could
follow previous EIT exemption treatment for the tuition related
income in 2019.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, since the Group
inclines to apply the for-profit business model to the EIT
Exempted Schools. Although the specific taxation policies
applicable to for-profit private schools under the Decision on
Amending the Law for Promoting Private Education of the
PRC are yet to be introduced, the EIT Exempted Schools
elected to be subject to PRC enterprise income tax.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the non-taxable
tuition income of the EIT Exempted Schools amounted to
RMB292,823,000, and the related non-deductible expenses
of the EIT Exempted Schools amounted to RMB142,432,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, pursuant
to the Enterprise Income Tax Law and Implementation
Regulations of the Law of the PRC, the applicable tax rate
of PRC subsidiaries is 25% (2019: 25%), except for certain
subsidiaries entitled to different preferential tax rates.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries were qualified as high-tech companies
and enjoyed the preferential tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%)
during the year. Details are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

o) NG

Langjie Technology

BAEERHS

Beijing Wisezone Education Technology Co., Ltd.
(tREEERHUERMARAA)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below:

Name of subsidiary

o) NG

Chengdu New East Culinary Vocational

Training School Co., Ltd.
BERFT R 77 R A R A IR I B R AR A R
Chengdu Wisezone Technology Co., Ltd.
REBEEE REHAR AT
Chengdu Wontone Automobile Vocational Training

School Co., Ltd.
PRE & BT IR R KB B AR A
Sichuan Xinhua Computer Institute
P9 || a2 A 22 e
Gansu New East Culinary Vocational Training School
HERHTR A TR ISR
Guiyang City New East Culinary Secondary Vocational School
BB TIRA ZEFR EREER
Guiyang City Xinhua Computer Secondary Vocational School
BT EEM D FREER
Guiyang New East Culinary Institute
BRI TSR
Guizhou Xinhua Computer Institute
B INFrE BB

Guizhou Wisezone Technology Co., Ltd.

10.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

FREBmX (&

ETHBRRRFEREERSHEK
T bW ZH15%HEBFE (2019
F 1 15%)  FEIFRSNAT -

Starting date
s B

1 January 2004
200451 H1H
1 January 2016
201651 A18

Expiring date
EH B

31 December 2023
202012 A431H
31 December 2023
202312 A31H

HRARFRNE TH B QSR
FREAESmE  WEEEZF15%
(20194F : 15%) MEEF K - FIEH

P

Starting date
#B2s B

1 January 2011

20111 A1H
1 January 2016
201651 A18
1 January 2011

201141 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A1H
1 January 2015
20151 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A18
1 January 2011
20111 A1H
1 January 2011
201151 A1 H
1 January 2016
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31 December 2030

2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030

203012 A31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030
2030512 H31H
31 December 2030
203012 A31H
31 December 2030
2030412 A31H
31 December 2030
2030%F 12 A31H
31 December 2030




For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out

10.

FREHmX (&

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

AR T8 7E T B A R A
BEFEHE - MEBEZE15%HE
HR K (20194 : 15%) o =FIFH 40

below: (continued) T: (&

Name of subsidiary Starting date Expiring date
M A= EE #B2A H Z|FA R A
EMEEERBERAR 201651 A18B  2030F12A31H
Guiyang Xinhua Internet Technical School 1 January 2017 31 December 2030
EFNETBMARTER 2017F1A1H  2030%F12A31H
Guiyang New East Culinary Technical School 1 January 2016 31 December 2030
BEFRT TERITER 2016F1A1H 20306 12A31H
Hohhot City New East Technical School 1 January 2016 31 December 2030
D AE R TR 5 i L2 201651 A1H 20304 12A31H
Hohhot City New East Culinary Vocational Training School 1 January 2016 31 December 2030
VR SAREE WAl -i0- 5 3251 i 201651 A1EH  2030%F12A31H
Ningxia New East Vocational Training School 1 January 2017 31 December 2030
EB IR BE R 20171818  2030%F12A31H
Shaanxi New East Culinary Training School Co., Ltd. 1 August 2011 31 December 2030
PREGET R 5 AR R B AR A ) 20118A1H  2030%F12H31H
Shaanxi Xinhua Computer Software Training School Co., Ltd. 1 January 2012 31 December 2030
PR 72 28 A BN BE 1 5| 24 R A Bl (formerly known as Shaanxi 201241 818 2030412 A31H

Xinhua Computer Software School Bl Bk 78 37 55 B JS 814 24)

Xi’an Wontone Automobile Vocational Skills Training School Co., Ltd. 1 January 2014 31 December 2030

ARER IBEBEREEINIERERAF 20141818  2030%F12A31H
Xinjiang New East Culinary School 1 January 2016 31 December 2030
FBITR A TR 2016118 20304 12A31H
Yunnan Wontone Automobile Repair Vocational Training School 1 January 2014 31 December 2030
TEEBUSBEEIER 2014%1A18  2030F12A31H
Yunnan New East Culinary School 1 January 2015 31 December 2030
TEMRT THESER 20151 A1  2030F12A31H
Yunnan New East Culinary Vocational Training School 1 January 2015 31 December 2030
ERFRTT TEERCR IR 2R 2015F1A1H 2030 12A31H
Yunnan Xinhua Computer Vocational Training School 1 January 2009 31 December 2030
ERRE BRI IR 2009F1A1H  2030%F12831H
Chongaing City New East Culinary Vocational Training Institute 1 January 2012 31 December 2030
BEMNR Z AR RIE 2k 2012118 20804 12A31H
Chongaing Xinhua Computer Vocational Training School 1 January 2011 31 December 2030
EERNEEMBEEIER 20111818  2030F12A31H
Chongaing City Xinhua Technical School 1 January 2017 31 December 2030
EFTHERTSR 2017%1A18  2030F12A31H

Chengdu New East Culinary
Technical School Co., Ltd.
FER TR B 7 2 TR T 2R AR A 7l(formerly known as chengdu

City Longquanyi District New East Culinary Technical School Co.,

Ltd.
AIRERCER T BE R BB ¥ R0 R AR T 2R AR A F])

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

10.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)

Certain subsidiaries of the Company are entitled to the
preferential tax rate of 15% (2019: 15%) because they are
located in the western region of the PRC. Details are set out
below: (continued)

Name of subsidiary
i NGEE

Chengdu City Shuangliu District Xinhua Technical School Co., Ltd.

ETH &R R ER TERERAF

Chengdu Wontone Weilai Technical School Co., Ltd.

PR ERE AR TERBRA A

Chengdu Omick Western Pastry Vocational Training School
BEBER K 27 PO B BB R BRI ) B4R

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the
profit before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

10. FIBHBEX (&

HRARFRE THE A RN F
EFEi R - R A EZH15%E
BHRIE (20194F : 15%) © 15 F A

T (&)
Starting date Expiring date
#B2A B E|H B

1 January 2018 31 December 2030
201841 H1H 2030F12H31H
1 January 2018 31 December 2030
2018F1A1H 20304 12A31H
1 January 2019 31 December 2030
201951 HA1H 203012 A31H

FAMGHRAS A ERA R R M
2E SR AN AIFEL RN T -

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFT AR¥ETT

Profit before tax BRI 443,748 1,069,521
Tax at PRC EIT rate of 25% R BRI IS R25% A
Z R 110,937 267,380

Tax effect on expenses not deductible A~ A] F075 5 2 BV TR 765 7 22

for tax purposes 69,464 62,933
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax 7 aR%: UL A B FL 75

purpose (30,208) (103,738)
Under provision in respect of prior years B FEEET 9,276 -
Tax effect of deductible temporary RIER NI B4 = 25

differences not recognised oz 29,854 16,745
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised  ARIERTIAE BRI E 61,251 49,165
Utilisation of tax losses previously not & FSE AT A MR AL B & 18

recognised (19,134) (24,085)
Tax benefit on research and 25 B 2 OB TS Al 2

development expenses (8,017) (4,311)
Income tax at concessionary rate REBENEGTERFTEN (37,289) (42,408)

186,134 221,703
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

11. PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 11.
Profit for the year has been arrived FRFE TR 5518
at after charging: Mg :
Directors’ remuneration B
Other staff costs HAh 8 TAA
— salaries and other allowances — & R MERE

—retirement benefit scheme contributions — 3R K1& K5t &I 70
— equity-settled share-based payments — ARz &S E HID ST FISE
expense

Total staff costs B TR AR

Depreciation of property and equipment #13 K % (& E

Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE
Auditor’s remuneration LA GIE A

During the year ended 31 December 2020, equity-settled
share-based payments expense of RMB76,166,000 (2019:
RMB115,829,000) were recognised in profit or loss in respect
of share options of the Company. Details of transactions are
set out in note 26.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

FRRE

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARET T

3,472 2,065
1,151,291 992,239
82,954 128,060
75,552 114,895
1,313,269 1,237,259
323,862 294,265
279,347 249,058
3,580 3,590

NEREENRD AERNZNRX
AR®76,166,0007T (20194F : AR
#115,829,0007T) ME 22020512 A
1B IEFERARAERENEZA
R o R SFIBEERAKIEE26 ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12. B BESTBRABREEME
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Directors =%

Details of the emoluments paid or payable by the Group to HZE2020%F K2019F 12 A31 HILF
the directors and chief executive of the Company (including B AEBENKENARRES R
emolument for services as employee/directors of the group EETHABZME (BEXKAERA
entities prior to becoming the directors of the Company) for RESZAETEEEREES &5
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 are as follows: FES RIS &) BFFIB AT

Equity-settled Retirement

Salaries share-based benefit
Directors and other payments scheme
fees allowances expense contributions Total
LUEREEMN
HER BROAKEED RIKEA
EEHE H At B XAEX HE &t

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARMTR AR®TR ARBTRT ARMTR

For the year ended & Z2020%
31 December 2020 12A31HLEE
Executive directors:  #{TE% :

Mr.Wu Wei REXE 320 480 - 8 808

Mr. Xiao Guoging HEELE 320 - - - 320
640 480 - 8 1,128

Non-executive FHTES

directors:

Mr. Wu Junbao REBREE 320 120 - 10 450

Mr. Lu Zhen BERLE 320 - 614 - 934
640 120 614 10 1,384

Independent non- BAUITES

executive directors:
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, REELE

Clement 320 - - - 320
Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, 3K & B %t &

Thomas 320 - - - 320
Dr. Zhu Guobin REUHE L 320 - - - 320

960 - - - 960
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

Directors (continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

12. EX - BETHRAEREEMS

(&

ExE

Equity-settled Retirement

Salaries  share-based benefit
Directors and other payments scheme
fees allowances expense  contributions Total
HER PARR 1R A RIK
5208 Hit#Rh  EEEXA BAFR At
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
For the year ended & Z2019F
31 December 2019 12A31HLEE
Executive directors: ~ H{TEZS ¢
Mr.Wu Wei RIERE - 481 - 17 498
Mr. Xiao Guoging HBIELAE - - - - -
= 481 = 17 498
Non-executive FITES -
directors:
Mr. Wu Junbao RIERFSE - 57 - 21 78
Mr. Lu Zhen BEExE - - 934 - 934
- 57 934 21 1,012
Independent non- BUFNTES
executive directors:
Mr. Hung Ka Hai, HEEETE
Clement 185 - - - 185
Mr. Cheung Tsun Yung, sk{& B 5 4
Thomas 185 - - - 185
Dr. Zhu Guobin REDEE L 185 - - - 185
888 - - - 588

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were

paid for their services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Group entities for both years. The non-
executive directors’ and independent non-executive directors’

emoluments shown above were for their services as directors

of the Company.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

A EFRSIBITE S HBM D EREER
MERNLEEAEEEREMEEM
REH RIS T T UASIAT o LA EFRSIZE
WITEF LB IFNITEFTNFHIY
REERARREZNREE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND 12.
EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) (&

Employees (3=
The five highest paid individuals of the Group did not include

any directors for both years whose emoluments are included
in the disclosures above. The emoluments of the five highest

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEE

EE BETBRAEREEMS

AEENARRSHFMA L TEER
EEENENES  BRESNZHH
DR EXWE - ARREHMA

paid individuals are as follows:

THFT -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

20204 20194

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T R ARETTT

Salaries and other benefits ¥EREMEN 10,489 9,186

Retirement benefit scheme contributions RIRERIFT IR 20 58
Equity-settled share-based payment g H MR R ERE

expense ISR 13,850 23,349

24,359 32,593

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals, other than
directors of the Company, are within the following bands:

AAFEERBHFMAL (TOEE
%) FMBRIT -

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019

2020 20194F

number of number of

employees employees

EEAH EEAH

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001#7T2 3,500,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000 3,500,001#7L. 24,000,000/ 7T 1 -
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001#7T%5,000,000/8 7T - 1
HK$5,000,001 to HK$5,500,000 5,000,001#7T 25,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$6,500,001 to HK$7,000,000 6,500,001 L 27,000,000/ 7T - 1
HK$7,000,001 to HK$7,500,000 7,000,001 7c 27,500,000/ 7T 1 —
HK$8,000,001 to HK$8,500,000 8,000,001#7L 28,500,000/ 7T 1 =
HK$9,000,001 to HK$9,500,000 9,000,001 7L29,500,0007 7T - 1
HK$10,000,001 to HK$10,500,000 10,000,00147C2 10,500,000/ 7T - 1
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

12. DIRECTORS’, CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S AND

13.

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS (continuead)

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group
to any of the executive directors, non-executive director,
independent non-executive directors, or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group
or as compensation for loss of office. For the year ended 31
December 2019, the executive directors of the Company,
Mr. Wu Wei and Mr. Xiao Guoging and the non-executive
directors of the Company Mr. Wu Junbao and Mr. Lu Zhen
have waived their directors’ fee of RMB177,000 each.

During the years ended 31 December 2019, certain
employees were granted share options, in respect of their
services to the Group under the share option scheme of
the Company. No share option was granted during the
year ended 31 December 2020. Details of the share option
schemes are set out in note 26.

DIVIDENDS

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
dividends for ordinary shareholders of the Company
recognised as distribution:

Final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2019 of HKO0.21 (2019: Nil
for the year ended 31 December 2018)
per ordinary share

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

12,

13.

HZE2019F12A31B I FER
REARR B AE IR T @A0.21
BIT (20194 « EAZE20184F
12A31ALFERE) -

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

EE BETBRAEREEMS
(&

7 5= 1B 774 o {8 4 T PR T B ) (R AT SR T T
BE  FWTEF  BUFNTES
AL RS HA LS EMBE
BB EMARNEE K INAEZAK
BRIk B (E - BE2019F12 A
J1BELEFE  ARAMITEETRER
EREBIESERIFATEERER
EERERCENERESBZES
#we AREA177,0007T °

HE2019F12A31BIEEE  BF
B ERIBEARREREAEFERA
EEIRENIRIEER TREIRE - #Z

R T o AR BB ENH T
26 °

BRE
HZE2020% K2019F12 A31 B ILE
[E @ RRARE BB EARESERE

K

Year ended 31 December

HZ12A31BLLEE
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARET T
422,319 -




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

13.

14.

DIVIDENDS (continued)

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, a final
dividend and a special dividend in respect of the year ended
31 December 2020 of HK$0.135 (approximately equivalent to
RMBO0.113) per ordinary share and HK$0.135 (approximately
equivalent to RMBO0.113) per ordinary share, respectively,
in an aggregate amount of approximately HK$593,000,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB499,000,000), have been
proposed by the directors of the Company at the board
meeting held on 25 March 2021 and are subject to approval
by the shareholders of the Company in the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 Decmber
2019 of HK$0.21 (approximately equivalent to RMB0.19) per
ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of HK$460,000,000
(equivalent to RMB422,139,000) was approved by the
shareholders of the Company in the annual general meeting
held on 27 May 2020 and paid in the current year.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share
attributable to owners of the Company is based on the
following data:

Earnings: BF|

Earnings for the purposes of calculating F{EzTEFREAR KHIEZ T

basic and diluted earnings per share 79 23 7|
— attributable to owners of the

Company

13.

14.

—RRATHE AEIERT

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

BB (&

WL AR - AEBEESZR202143 A
BRABTHNEFE R LS AITIR
HZE20205F12A31 B IEFEFRLY
0.1358 7T (HIER A KH0.1137T) &Y
LB R EARR B R FI#)0.135%8 T
(HZEHARKE0A137T) BT B
RIRL S+ A 5F49593,000,0007 7T (49
£ AR #499,000,0007T) © HEZBH
REERFAFTRE LEAQRRE
BOER T AIER o

HZE2019F12A31H L FEH KR
B FRERR0.21B T (HWERA
R#¥0.197T) * #2$%8460,000,000/%5
T (ERARE422,139,0007T) B
20205 H27T BEITHIRRAF RE
AR R )RR B IR AN F R
K

BRER
RRRHEEANEEEBREREHER

MEETETER A T8

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETFIT
257,614 847,818
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

14. EARNINGS PER SHARE (continueq) 14. ERER (&

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFE
2020 2019
20205 20194
Number of shares: fxnER A -
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{ERTE &M
shares for the purpose of calculating ERBNEE B
basic earnings per share 52 2,192,738,757  1,990,225,780
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares #f& &7 I AL ) 57 2
— share options —REARiE 91,798,911 85,682,721
— over-allotment options (note) — R EAAC AR (F5E) N/ATREA -
Weighted average number of ordinary ~ F{EsT E &R 12 Z R
shares for the purpose of calculating TR AR N9
diluted earnings per share 2,284,537,668 2,075,908,501
Note: The average stock price between the date of Listing and MizE : 70 B HRZ= 170 R #E A AR A BA
exercise of over-allotment option was lower than the offering MTEHEREEREIAREZEEN
price of initial public offering. Thus, the over-allotment option BEE - Bt - BERRERS
was anti-dilutive. REBEE -

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT




CosT

At1 January 2019
Additions
Transfer
Disposals/write-off

At 31 December 2019
Additions

Transfer
Disposals/write-off

At 31 December 2020

DEPRECIATION

At 1 January 2019

Provided for the year

Eliminated on disposals/
write-off

At 31 December 2019

Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals/
write-off

At 31 December 2020

CARRYING VALUES
At 31 December 2020

At 31 December 2019

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

5

R2019F1 A1H
WE

e/
R2019F12831H
AE

e /s
R2020E12A31H
il

120191 A1H
FRifE

HE /AR S5

120195124318

ERERE
HHE /W

20205124318

REE
120205124318

R2019%12A318

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

15. YERRZE
Leasehold Furniture
improvements and Electronic Motor  Construction
Buidings  and structures fixtures  equipment vehicles i progress Total
HEME
BF RBEEE GERRE W ETRE a8 ERIR At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR ARETR ARBTT  ARETR  ARETR
418 461 729,252 463,643 293,359 55,247 90,896 2,050,858
471 169,122 97,353 67,118 5,649 20,501 350,214
- 58,296 - - - (68,296) -
- (214,811) (10,652) (10,787) (9,175) - (044,925)
418,932 782,359 550,344 349,690 51,721 53,101 2,156,147
4,970 134,215 75,737 62,843 5,740 54,753 338,258
- 73,507 - - - (73,507) -
- (154,211) (9,79) (7,606) (2,504) - (174,117)
423,902 785,870 616,285 404,927 54,957 34,347 2,320,288
100,069 211,238 180,128 169,243 29,175 - 689,853
21,025 112,372 92,859 59,335 8,674 - 294,265
- (214,311) (8,338) (8,836) (2,401) - (233,836)
121,094 109,299 264,649 219,742 35,448 - 750,232
20,491 141,283 94,929 59,865 7,294 - 323,862
- (154,211) (6,436) (6,783) (2,109) - (169,539)
141,585 96,371 353,142 272,824 40,633 - 904,555
282,317 689,499 263,143 132,103 14,324 34,347 1,415,733
297,838 623,060 285,6% 129,948 16,273 53,101 1,405,915
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

15. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 15.

The above items of property and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated on a straight-line
basis, after taking into account their estimated residual value,
at the following useful life:

Buildings 20 years

Leasehold improvements Shorter of lease term or 3-5 years
Structures Shorter of lease term or 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 3-5 years

Electronic equipment 3-5 years

Motor vehicles 4-8 years

As of 31 December 2020, the Group is in the process of
obtaining title deeds of buildings with carrying value of
RMB103,085,000 (2019: RMB187,005,000).

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

Bt R R BRI R T2 LASMEY
BB E TSR A FRRRE RS
E - AR REEEE :

BT 20
MEMELEE RHHIE5F (ARG EAE)
#® HESA5E ABREE B%)

REREE 3B5F
EFRE 3B54E
AE 458

HZE2020512A31H » AEEER
TERREF BB R - HEE
FRREEAARYK103,085,0007T
(2019%F : AR¥187,005,0007T) °

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. ERAEEE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
AE i HEWME &5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T ARBT T
As at 31 December 2020 R2020512831H
Carrying amount BRTEIE 240,685 1,686,061 1,926,746
As at 31 December 2019 7A2019F12H31H
Carrying amount IREE 123,409 1,588,853 1,712,262
For the year ended B Z20205F12H31H
31 December 2020 IHEE
Depreciation charge meEER 3,420 275,927 279,347
For the year ended B Z2019%F12H31H
31 December 2019 IHEE
Depreciation charge TEEHA 2,940 246,118 249,058
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

16. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Expense relating to short-term leases ~ £242HATH SRR
HENRE R LA

Total cash outflow for leases
Additions to right-of-use assets from RNEGAREE

—new leases of lands in the PRC — A E
—new leases of properties in the PRC ~ —FR B HEE

For both years, the Group leases various properties, including
the teaching buildings, dormitory buildings and offices for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of
1 to 20 years (2019: 11 months to 20 years). Lease terms are
negotiated on an individual basis and contain different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing
the length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies
the definition of a contract and determines the period for
which the contract is enforceable. There are no enforceable
extension and termination options in lease contracts.

The leasehold lands are amortised on a straight-line basis
over a period of 50 years, which is based on the lease terms
or estimated by the management with reference to the normal
terms in the PRC.

At 31 December 2020, the carrying values of the leasehold
lands of RMB154,601,000 (2019: RMB118,019,000) are
allocated by the government, which have no definite lease
term stated in the relevant land use rights certificates.
However, without the relevant administrative authorities’
permission, the Group cannot transfer, lease or pledge as
security such land use rights allocated by the government.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

16. FEHEEE(Z

Year ended 31 December
HZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AR¥TT

7,460 6,613
398,031 353,360
120,696 =
410,999 286,216

AEBRMERNEEZEYE - 21
HEE FBERRAZE  LMELEE
& - HEAXUEFEHR1E20F
(2019%F : 11A A E20%) 5]z - M
BT ERETE - RETRIERRIE
- REERNE TR RFEERT
BEHERES - ERAANERNEEH
AT A Q9 ERRS - FAE S AU ER]
LASE ISR THORE B I 4R | E IR 124 o

H

HE T ES0F HIRIRE SR HH -
ZHELEREYAEREL2EH
BAERERGSH -

7202012 318 @ fAE T HHER
F{E A K #154,601,0007T (20194F :
AEK#118,019,0007T) BT 5 AL -
HERE T Mo (E AR FR I R AR B AR AR o
SR ARACHARAITERERPIRF AT + A%
B xuE - HERMEN S A+
P AR - SERERELR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

16.

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

The Group entered into short-term leases for staff
apartments during the year ended 31 December 2020. As
at 31 December 2020, the outstanding lease commitment
relating to these staff apartments are RMB3,435,000 (2019:
RMB8,925,000).

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2020, the Group entered into new
leases for several properties that are not yet commenced,
with average non-cancellable period ranged from 2 to 20
years (2019: 5 to 20 years), the total future undiscounted
cash flows over the non-cancellable period amounted to
RMB305,265,000(2019: RMB204,782,000).

Rent concessions

During the year ended 31 December 2020, lessors of several
properties provided rent concessions to the Group through
rent reductions ranging from 0.1% to 13.3% over three to six
months.

These rent concessions occurred as a direct consequence of
Covid-19 pandemic and met of all of the conditions in HKFRS
16.46B, and the Group applied the practical expedient not to
assess whether the changes constitute lease modifications.
The effects on changes in lease payments due to
forgiveness or waiver by the lessors for the relevant leases of
RMB22,622,000 were recognised as negative variable lease
payments.

Details of the lease maturity analysis of lease liabilities are set
out in notes 23 and 28.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

16.

EREEE(E

HE2020F12A31BLEFE © K
SEEMBEIABIVEHHEE -
MR2020F12A31H  HET A
BEHEMNAEEHREAEAAR
#3,435,0007C (20194 : AR#
8,925,0007T) °

BAENEE

202012 A31H » AEBEI &
THEFBE RS AFRG -
H A H B 39 T2 F =204
(20194 : 5E20%F) @ MR K ER
FRARRATRRESRELEBLAAR
#305,265,0007T (20194F : AR#E
204,782,0007T) °

HEEE

REE2020F12A81BIEFE - &
TFUHENHEABBAR =Z2"EARN
JBFH0.1%ZE13.3% 1% » MIAEE R
HESESR -

ZEHeEBZRF A ERESEBERE
BEEVWREBBYBERELERNSE
16.46BIRAMEM - HAREE R AIIT
EEAF AT EZSEHEEEAME
5k - HAASRBBEBRNE L
% AR 22, 622,0007T 8 A & 143
SHNTEERRA A EHEERNRK -

HEBENHEERD PO TFBHIIR
Bif5F23 %28 o



17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The followings are the major deferred tax assets recognised
and movements thereon during the current and prior years:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

17.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

EEBREE

RAFEMBEEFEERNERRET
MBEEREZEFHMT

Asset-related Excess of

government advertising
grants expenses Total

ERE E MR BHES
BUF B XM a5t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT ARETTT
At 1 January 2019 20191 A1H 194 2,802 2,996
Credited to profit or loss FFAES 230 416 646
At 31 December 2019 1201912 H31H 424 3,218 3,642
Credited to profit or loss FTABR 450 1,268 1,718
At 31 December 2020 7202012 A31H 874 4,486 5,360

Under the EIT Law of the PRC, withholding tax is imposed
on dividends declared in respect of profits earned by PRC
subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. No deferred tax
liabilities regarding the withholding tax has been provided as
the PRC subsidiaries will not declare any dividend to holding
companies outside mainland China in the foreseeable future.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unrecognised
deductible temporary differences of RMB227,344,000
(2019: RMB107,928,000). In the opinion of the directors
of the Company, no deferred tax asset is recognised in
relation to such deductible temporary differences as it is not
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

BRI B EFTETE - 20084
1A - 5 RME A R RIAF
EFTE R A IR B BBANTEINRL o I 7]
R - R BB AR ST E R
B A AN IR IR A Bl B R R AR
B I AR IEI A RIEE T A

= ©°

2020612 A381H » AEEMH R
BRANREREZEARARK
227,344,0007T (20194 : ARKE
107,928,0007T) ° NARIEERA -
B AN A Bt 3R B AR Bl I A) BB VR IR
SHATMPRE R =5 - I ERZS
AN EREEEERECHIEE
E °
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17. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS (continued)

18.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

17.

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unrecognised tax
losses of RMB805,022,000 (2019: RMB658,655,000),
among which, tax losses amounted to RMB788,991,000
(2019: RMB644,857,000) will expire at various dates
up to and including 2025 and tax losses amounted to
RMB16,031,000 (2019: RMB13,798,000) has no expiry date.
In the opinion of the directors of the Company, no deferred

tax assets in respect of tax losses are recognised due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

INVENTORIES

School materials and consumables

18.

B RoBREm

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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EERAEE (&

202012 A31H @ AEBRER
Fi 18 E518 A R #805,022,0007T (2019
F: AR¥658,655,0007T) @ EF -
+ 585 ARE788,991,0007T (2019
F: AR#644,857,0007T) B9 FE 1B
EEENEE2025F (BHEZEE)
IEOTRBHIERESEAARKE
16,031,0007T (20194 : 13,798,000
TLMBBEEEDSHA  c AQRE
ERE  BEREEBEBNECHES
ERERRFEBEZHT R
TR o

BE

As at 31 December

#M12831H
2020 2019
20204 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
56,250 51,713
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19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables 2 5 WA
— from government (note i) — BUT (P 5D
— from others (note ii) — EL b (B3
Other receivables b FE U RIE
Prepayments for consumables SHFERIBAEK
Prepayments for rental TEEER
Prepayments for services BRASTEL 5K
Prepayments for advertisement BESETARK
Value added tax recoverable AT (ER
Advance to staff M8 T{ELAIZR
Interest receivables from banks ERITHI RS
Other receivables H A fEYGRIE
Notes:

The amounts represent receivables from the local
governments, which purchased vocational education services
for students.

i. The amounts mainly represent receivables from customers,
which purchased ancillary services other than vocational
education services.

As at 1 January 2019, trade receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to RMB34,349,000.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

19. BEZREMEKRRE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T ARETIT
33,010 36,743
15,591 10,206
48,601 46,949
13,762 22,526
17,401 8,529
19,271 21,737
49,865 44,063
9,600 2,068
6,722 7,480
7,518 42,090
7,363 7,794
131,502 156,287
180,103 203,236

fias -

HEAZTRREK B SR SEER

BREHE RENREFE -

i. HEFEAEZEEXEFPEERD
IR (T BIEREHE IR

TRIA

R2019F1 B1H @ REARFAAINE
S ERGRIE A AR #34,349,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables net

of allowance for credit losses presented based on revenue
recognition dates:

Within 3 months 3EAA

Over 3 months but within 12 months 31E A _EER121E AR

Over 1 year 1F A E

In the opinion of the management of the Group, all of the
trade receivable balances at the end of each year which
have been past due over 90 days are not considered as in
default as these are contributed by local governments with
extremely low credit risks. The management of the Group
considered that the impairment loss was insignificant as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality and
amounts are considered recoverable at the end of each year
and no impairment loss on ECL is recognised during both
years. Details of impairment assessment of trade and other
receivables are set out in note 28.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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19. B RHEMBEWRIEGE)

NTRIZRAERBEHZ2INE S
FEW IR R E E B R EMR) Rk D
I

As at 31 December

M12H31H

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARBTT

25,530 22,906
21,787 19,146

1,284 4,897
48,601 46,949

FEBEEERA  NEEXRAOHB
BI0R K FTA B 5 EUGRIB AR I R
WARBEL - BHE BT RS AL
& FERREE BHREEEER
ﬁﬁmiﬁiiﬁﬁmvaﬁmﬁw
BRATURE - BARESE R ERE
REMEEEBRORERSE  WAE
EEEERAZREBBYREK -

B 5 I H h FEUGRIB R (E A S 15 &
I FE28 ©



20. OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS

Other financial assets measured
at FVTPL (note i)

Other financial assets measured
at amortised cost
— entrusted loans to related parties
(note ii)
— short-term investments (note iii)

Notes:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEE

20. HtheRmEE

AR R(EEFEY ABR
H A 5 B EE (BT RED

As at 31 December

BT ENEMER
BE
— (IR S IREHETER
(B =ii)
— R ERIE & (Bt i)

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARETIT
509,173 418,013
390,000 =
- 49,500
390,000 49,500

PEE

The other financial assets measured at FVTPL are short-term

investments issued by banks and financial institutions with
no predetermined or guaranteed return and are not principal
protected. These financial assets are with expected rates of
return (not guaranteed), depending on the market price of
underlying financial instruments, including listed shares, bonds,
debentures and other financial assets.

The amounts represented entrusted loans amounted to
RMB130,000,000 provided to Anhui Xinhua Investment Group
Co., Ltd. (REFTERESEFRAF]) (“Xinhua Investment
Group”), a company controlled by Mr. Wu Junbao, and
RMB260,000,000 provided to Anhui Xinhua Holdings Group
Investment Co., Ltd. (ZRFEZEREBEREFRAR)
(“Xinhua Holdings Group”), a company controlled by Mr. Xiao
Guoqing, respectively, at a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum
and with maturity on 31 December 2021, for earning interests
via the bank with predetermined return. The maximum
outstanding balances (including accrued interests) during the
year ended 31 December 2020 were RMB132,275,000 to
Xinhua Investment Group and RMB264,550,000 to Xinhua
Holdings Group respectively. The details of the entrusted
loans were constituted as continuing connected transactions
pursuant to the Listing Rules, details of which were set out in
the Company’s announcement dated 4 August 2020.

The amounts represented short-term investments, which
would be matured within one year and were issued by a
bank with predetermined return and principal protected, and
matured in this year.

RITREMEBBEBRTARAE
EFfEXAARSHNECEREE
A EFAR AR AE B AR A
HERE - ZEeREEAFEAR
BER(LEFRE)  BRERERF
HESMTA (B LEMmERNG - &
7 EREREMESREE) TS
B1% o

ZRE A DRI AR EREEE
FNARZHTELEEBER
ARI([FEREEE]DRENZ
AERAREAS0EE T AK&A
HEELAEESON QR ELR
SEREERAR ([FHELKSE
B RENZTERARE260H
BT AE BIRTTBRRENTEE [B 3Ry A
B - ZEZAEXNEENEXA
7% @ R2021F12 A31 HEIH - &
202012 A31 B ILFE - M
EREEREFEZEREBANK
EEsmEH (BEETFE) 55
B AR132,275,0007T M A R #E
264,550,0007T ° ZEERRFFER
B MRS ERERS - I
N BHHA202068 548 H)

N

B ARITEITAERES
RARZA 3 B AN B R0 52
1 -
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21.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

BANK BALANCES AND CASH/TIME DEPOSITS

The Group’s bank balances and cash comprised of cash held
by the Group and short-term deposits and carried interest at
prevailing market rates from 0.05% to 4.2% per annum (2019:
0.35% to 3.5% per annum) with original maturity of three
months or less.

As at 31 December 2020, time deposits represent (i) a
deposit of the Company amounted to HK$1,300,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,094,132,000) which carried the fixed
interest rate of 0.83% per annum with maturity on 25
December 2021, (ii) a deposit of the Company amounted
to RMB240,000,000 which carried the fixed interest rate
of 2.82% per annum with maturity on 23 July 2021, (i) a
deposit of the Company amounted to RMB475,000,000
which carried the fixed interest rate of 3.10% per annum
with maturity on 4 May 2021, and (iv) a deposit of the
Company amounted to US$59,600,000 (equivalent to
RMB388,884,000) which carried the fixed interest rate of
0.97% per annum with maturity on 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2019, time deposits represented
(i) a deposit of Anhui Xinhua Education amounted to
RMB100,000,000 which carried the fixed interest rate of
2.9% per annum with maturity on 16 December 2021, and
(i) a deposit of the Company amounted to HK$2,000,000,000
(equivalent to RMB1,791,600,000) which carried the fixed
interest rate of 2.7% per annum with maturity on 20 June
2020.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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RITEBRRRE EHER

AEBERTEB LA BIEASE R
BHRSMNEHER  RITEBER
K ARRITHIHFFE0.05%E4.2%
(2019%F : FF|=0.35%E3.5%) * F
HEA=EAxXTRE=(EA -

R2020F12 4318 @ THFEZIE)
NA R FF1,300,000,0005% JT (48
ERAR®1,094,132,0007T) °
EFEFEE0.83% * R20214F12
A25BHEIE : ((NARATFERAR
¥240,000,0007T ' EEFFEA
2.82% + 1A202147 A31BEIH ; (i)
KRARFERAREEA75,000,0007C
B FEFFIE A3.10% @ 720214654
BEIE] : K (v)AS A Fl175£59,600,000
L (FHEN ARE388,884,000
7)) BEFFEAR0.97% * 12021
F12A31BEIH -

R2019F12A31H » EHER
BEOWZRTERENTERARYE
100,000,0007T - 12 [E & F 7 %2.9%
T8 0 BIHIB A2021F128168 -
(i) A2 R1A97F 5£2,000,000,00078 75
(ZR ARE1,791,600,0007T) ° $Z[E
EFFE2.7%51 5+ BEIH /52020
FB6H20H o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 22, BEZRHMEMNRE

As at 31 December

M12A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARETT

Trade payables B S e EIE 122,288 79,699
Payable for property and equipment I EYNE ) AN O 83,576 77,773
Value added tax and other taxes payable 32 {EF K £ ith & (< F5 7k 3,511 8,364
Payroll payable JEN S & 222,619 155,989
Discretionary subsidies received on REEAUER BB AL

behalf of students 30,948 20,473
Miscellaneous deposits received from  [A1E2 4 IR ER R HEIE IR &

students - within 12 months — 128 AR 77,947 68,685
Other payables Hofh pERTSRIE 36,672 32,151

577,561 443,134

The credit period of trade creditors is normally 90 days. The 2 ZRENZIENEERBE /OA -
following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented TN AZRRE RSN E SRR
based on the dates of delivery of goods: TR BRI D AT

As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR ARETT

Within 90 days 90H A 122,288 79,699
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

23. LEASE LIABILITIES

Lease liabilities payable:
Within one year
Within a period of more than one year
but not more than two years
Within a period of more than two years
but not more than five years
Within a period of more than five years

LLess: Amount due for settlement with

12 months shown under current liabilities

Amount due for settlement after 12 months

shown under non-current liabilities

23. HHEAE

HESBEMNTE:
1R
BB FENZR2FRERE A

HiB2F BN ZREFHHREA

B HAREA

B P12{E A MBIEAEE
HERGIRRBEERT)

M2 A& BB
SEOIRFERBDAERT)

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 5.4% to 12.75% (2019: from 5.4%

to 12.75%).

24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

Tuition fees and service fees
Less: current liabilities

Non-current liabilities

24,

S8 MR
B RERE
FRBAE

As at 1 January 2019, the current and non-current portion

RMB56,101,000, respectively.

of contract liabilities amounted to RMB1,233,230,000 and

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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As at 31 December

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
338,510 307,391
229,305 273,211
664,262 614,283
385,811 319,346
1,617,888 1,514,231
(338,510) (307,391)
1,279,378 1,206,840

BANHESENMETEEEE
AZENF5.4%E12.75% (20194 :
5.4%%12.75%) °

EHERE
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
1,449,833 1,455,614
1,384,697 1,383,298
65,136 72,316
MN2019F1A1H r &4 BEEZ

RBRIERBDED DR RBARE
1,233,230,0007T & AR 56,101,000

7TE0
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24. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (continued)

25,

The contract liabilities as at 1 January 2019 and 31
December 2019, amounted to RMB1,233,230,000 and
RMB1,383,298,000, respectively, were recognised as
revenue during the years ended 31 December 2019 and

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

24. EHEE(E

R2019F 1 A1H K2019F 12 8
318+ AR#¥1,223,230,0007T &
1,383,298,0007THI & L) B E D RIAEL
Z2019F K2020F 12 A31H IEFE

=71 5 o
2020. RV ON
SHARE CAPITAL 25. B
Shown in the
consolidated
Number of financial
Notes shares Share Capital statements
iz e R RREBRE
HK$ RMB'000
B ARETTL
Orclnary shares of HK$0.0001 each  Z/%0.00012 THIE R
Authorised: BE
At 1 January 2019, 31 December ~ 1A2019F1A1H » 2019&
2019 and 31 December 2020 12318 &k2020F
12H318 3,800,000,000 380,000 -
Issued: BT
At 1 January 2019 M2019F1 716 1,000,030 100 -
Capitalisation Issue EXLET i 1,742,199,970 174,220 154
Issue of new shares upon Listing ~~ MBS E47#k i 435,800,000 43,580 38
Issue of new shares upon exercise  {T(F B RRIEA TR R
of the over-allotment option v 4,894,000 489 -
Issue of new shares upon the exercise 17{EERIELZTHRD
of share options v 7,198,104 720 1
At 31 December 2019 1M2019%12A31H 2,191,092,104 219,109 193
Issue of new shares upon the PR R TRG
exercise of share options Vi 4,011,602 401 -
At 31 December 2020 202012 A31H 2,195,103,706 219,510 193
Notes: MiEE -

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 4
October 2018 with an authorised share capital of HK$380,000
divided into 3,800,000,000 shares with a par value of
HK$0.0001 each.

ARARN2018FE10 A4 B S B
S - SR E A A380,000
IT 9 /43,800,000,0008% /%15
SR TE A0.000178 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

25. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

Notes: (continuead)

Vi.

On 12 June 2019, the Company capitalised the sum of
HK$174,220 (equivalent to RMB154,000) standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company and
applied the amount towards paying up in full 1,742,199,970
shares of par value of HK$0.0001 each for allotment to the
shareholders as appearing on the register of members of the
Company immediately before the Listing (“Capitalisation Issue”).

On 12 June 2019, 435,800,000 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.0001 each were issued at a price of HK$11.25 per
ordinary share (approximately equivalent to RMB9.90 per
ordinary share) by way of global offering. On the same date,
the Company’s shares were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. The proceeds of HK$43,580 (approximately
equivalent to RMB38,000) representing the par value of the
shares of the Company, were credited to the Company’s
share capital. The remaining proceeds of HK$4,902,706,000
(approximately equivalent to RMB4,315,853,000), before
issuing expenses, were credited to the share premium amount.

On 4 July 2019, 4,894,000 ordinary shares of par value of
HK$0.0001 each were issued at a price of HK$11.25 per
ordinary share (approximately equivalent to RMB9.90 per
ordinary share) pursuant to the exercise of over-allotment
option. The proceeds of HK$489 (approximately equivalent
to RMB432) representing the par value of the shares of the
Company, were credited to the Company’s share capital.
The remaining proceeds of HK$55,057,000 (approximately
equivalent to RMB48,583,000), before issuing expenses, were
credited to the share premium amount.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, 7,090,194 and
107,910 share options were exercised at a subscription price
of HK$2.25 and HK$11.25 per share (approximately equivalent
to RMB2.02 and RMB10.10 per share) respectively, resulting
in the issue of aggregately 7,198,104 ordinary shares of par
value of HK$0.0001 each in the Company. These shares rank
pari passu with other shares in issue in all respect.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, 4,011,602 share
options were exercised at a subscription price of HK$2.25
per share (approximately equivalent to RMB1.99 per share),
resulting in the issue of 4,011,602 ordinary shares of par value
of HK$0.0001 each in the Company. These shares rank pari
passu with other shares in issue in all respect.
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25. BRA&(E

fia -

Vi.

(%)

R2019%F6 A128 A2 & #
KRR zEBREERSES
174,220 (HHER AR
154,0007T) [AIR L AT &SI AR A &)
el T (s EI ]
0.0001787TH)1,742,199,970R% 45 &
B&AD ([EAR(LEETT]) ©

R20196F6A120 BB ERESE
FREEREBEB11.258 T (Q
ERERLEBVRAREI.QOL) Z
B 1£%17435,800,0000% & % &
0.0001 Bz LM% - REA -
ARG RDAREERATER T -
Fr18301B43,5808 T (WER AR
#38,0007T) (HHE R AR AR (KO E
B) fF AR R RIRA o 2 R85
184,902,706,000/8 7T (WER AR
#4,315,853,00070) (KRR EETTH
) et AR R ER

R2019F7 A48 « AfT{EBRERR
EIEBIR T EAR11.258 T (HER
BT AR ARE.Q0TT) 2 B1%%
174,894,0000% &R EI1E0.0001 7% 7T
ZERAR o AT RIE489/8 L (KM%
RAR®4327T) GEERAR TR
HDEE) FTARRARBRA B THE
FRIF55,057,00078 7T (HIFEHAAREE
48,583,0007T) (RIBREEFTHZ) 71
AR R ERR o

REZE2019F12A831HIEEE -

7,090,194 2107 91017 &A% #E 7 Bl/1%
F%2.258 T 11,258 TR iR (BT
(B2 RIEERERARK2.027T
RAREA10.107T) - UBA AR AT
E1TEHRE{E0.0001787C27,198,104
BREBAY o b FE D ES S E A
HMBBTRHZEERFMHA -

REZE2020F12 831 B IEEE -
4,011,60217 B ikt i T A% 2.25% 7T
REETE WHERERARE
1.9970) ' UBARR A ETER
E{E0.0001 T2 4,011,602 &8
B WERGES FEmEEMmBEER
TN ZBRSESHAL ©
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26.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company has adopted two share option schemes,
namely pre initial public offering share option scheme (the
“Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”) and post initial public
offering share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
(collectively referred as the “Schemes”).

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant
to a resolution passed on 7 December 2018 for the primary
purpose of providing incentives to eligible employees,
including directors of the Company, its subsidiaries and
consolidated affiliated entities, to subscribe for shares in the
Company.

According to the terms of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme,
options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the
date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00. The maximum
number of shares, which may be issued upon exercise of all
options granted under the Schemes and any other schemes
of the Group, shall not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares in issue as at the date on which dealings in the shares
first commence on the Stock Exchange, excluding shares
which may fall to be issued upon the exercise of any over-
allotment option granted by the Company.

The options may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme at any time during the
exercise period determined by the board of directors, which
shall in any event not be more than ten years from 12 June
2019 (being the date of Listing).

On 7 December 2018, 135,244,720 options were granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, assuming that the
Capitalisation Issue are completed. The exercise price for
the share options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme is HK$2.25 per share, which is 20% of the final offer
price per share on the date of Listing.

26.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

BRESE

ARRERAMARBRETE - IS
RAFRERNBEER S (B
HERMBRER]) RERRFREE
BB & ([RERERT &) (ehs
RlZEE) -

BRARBERBRETE

RIEFR2018F 12 A7HBAN —IER
BEEMNE R ARAEEABRER
2 ZErEFEEEREEERES
(BEARQT - B R T REE
BERES)RBARRARG o

WRIE B IR A% & B RS B RT &1 A0 1%
o B e ERELAR R G A HE
28R MRS - X EAX1.00
BT © REBEZFA B A KBTI E
b &8I A PR A B AR i JE T T R B AT
ERITHRERNEE A XTEEE
BB RFAENBRARZE HE#
TN EN10% @ NEEARFRLEH
LA B RR A AP S T T (R B ] BEBR 1T HY
Bedn o

BREATNESSEENITFEHRAST
BEELES =N Sl
EERITE - EBRUATEERE
20196 128 (B LA B HER) &+
¢ °

R2018F12A7H @ BIEEHXAH
HEMBERESSRENERES
135,244,7200%  BEREARMELETE
SERK o IR E X AR E R BARER
ZIR 2 BRENTTEERERR2.25
BT AETBEBERSKBEEN
20% °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Option

BB

The Pre-IPO
Share Option
Scheme
BRAREE
AIfE AT 2l

Date of grant

B A

7 December 2018

2018512 A7H

7 December 2018

2018%F 12 A7H

7 December 2018

2018512 A7H

7 December 2018

2018F12A7H

7 December 2018

2018512 A7H

7 December 2018

2018512 HA7H

Vesting period

BEAE

7 December 2018

~ 11 July 2019

2018F12A7HE
201957 H11H

7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2020
2018F12A7HE
2020F12 A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2021
2018F12A7HE
2021412 HA31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2022
20185F12A7THE
202212 A431H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2023
2018F12A7H=E
202312 A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2024
2018F12A7AE
2024%F12A31H
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BRAFMBEERBRES (B

AR AR

Exercise period

TR

12 July 2019
~ 11 June 2029
20197 H12B =
20296 411H

31 December 2020
~ 11 June 2029
2020F12A31HE
20296 H11H
31 December 2021
~ 11 June 2029
2021F12A31HE
2029964118
31 December 2022
~ 11 June 2029
20224 12A318 &
2029F6H11H
31 December 2023
~ 11 June 2029
2023F12A31H=
20296 H11H
31 December 2024
~ 11 June 2029
2024F12A31H=E
202946 H11H

R

Percentage of
the options to

be vested
FREBN
BRERDL
10%

10%

10%

10%

10%

10%



26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued)

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

(continued)
Option Date of grant
B i B

7 December 2018

201812 A7H

7 December 2018

2018512 A7H

7 December 2018

201812 A7H

7 December 2018

2018512 A7H

Vesting period

BEAH

7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2025
2018F12A7THE
202512 A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2026
2018F12A7EE
2026F12A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2027
2018F12A7THE
2027F12A31H
7 December 2018
~ 31 December 2028
2018F12A7HE
202812 A31H

The fair value of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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26. BREE(E

BRAR

FERER ARER

Exercise period

THREHE

31 December 2025
~ 11 June 2029
202512 A31HE
20296 H11H
31 December 2026
~ 11 June 2029
2026F12A31H =
2029F6H11H
31 December 2027
~ 11 June 2029
2027 12A31RZE
2029F6H11H
31 December 2028
~ 11 June 2029
2028F12A31HE
2029466 H11H

BRAFE

HERBRESTE (')

BEFEWT - ()

Percentage of
the options to
be vested
=EEN
BRERDL

10%

10%

10%

10%

ERERET SN AR(E

determined at the date of grant using the Black-scholes
option pricing model (the “Black-scholes model”).

The Black-scholes model has been used to estimate the fair
value of the options. The variables and assumptions used in
computing the fair value of the share options are based on the
directors’ best estimate. Expected volatility was determined
by using the historical volatility of comparable company’s
share prices with discounts for lack of marketability. Changes
in variables and assumptions may result in changes in the fair
value of the options.

BTy A B3 A Black-scholesHA
1 EBRE ([Black-scholestE#! |) &5
E_ o

Black-scholes#& Y [ 2k (& 51 HA #E 1Y
NAREE - FEBEREAABERAR
ANEE RERRIDERESNREM
=t o TEERRIEGE AR AT LL A RIRR (D B4R
E’JW&??&'FE%?)EEZ%TE%E o HE
R SHOBRELABERS
T\H g
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BRESTEI(E

The Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme was adopted pursuant to a
resolution passed on 21 May 2019 for the primary purpose of
providing incentives to eligible employees, including directors
of the Company, its subsidiaries and consolidated affiliated
entities, to subscribe for shares in the Company.

According to the terms of the Share Option Scheme, the
number of shares issued and to be issued in respect of which
options granted and may be granted to any individual in any
12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1% of the shares
of the Company’s issued share capital from time to time,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.
The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding share options granted and yet
to be exercised shall not exceed 30% of the issued share
capital from time to time. The options granted to substantial
shareholders or independent non-executive directors of the
Company in excess of 0.1% of the Company’s share capital
and with a value in excess of HK$5,000,000 at the date of
each grant must be approved in advance by the Company’s
shareholders in general meeting.

The options granted must be taken up within 28 days from
the date of grant, upon payment of HK$1.00. The exercise
price is determined by the directors of the Company, and
will not be less than the higher of (i) the par value of the
Company’s shares; (ii) the closing price of the Company’s
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date; and (jii) the average closing price of
the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet for the five business days immediately
preceding the offer date.

On 12 June 2019, 327,000 options were granted under the
Share Option Scheme and the exercise price is HK$11.25
per share.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme (continueqd)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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26. BREE(E

BT 8 ()

Details of specific categories of options are as follows: R B RERFIST
Percentage of Fair value
the options to at grant

Option Date of grant Vesting period Exercise period be vested date

SHERH =it A

iR BHBH SRR TR BRERSL ANREE

HK$'000

FAT

The Share 12 June 2019 Immediately vested 12 June 2019 33% *
Option Scheme ~ 11 June 2029
Bt 2019F6A128 MARE 201956A 128 %
20296 H11H

12 June 2019 12 June 2019 12 June 2020 33% *
~ 11 June 2020 ~ 11 June 2029
201966 H12H  2019F6H12HZE  2020F6H12HZE
20206 A11H 20296 H11H

12 June 2019 12 June 2019 12 June 2021 34% *
~ 11 June 2021 ~ 11 June 2029
201966 H12H  20199F6A12HZE  20214F6A12BZE
202156 A11H 202956 H11H

* In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the fair value * ARRESRA - R LmA MR

of 327,000 share options granted on the date of Listing was
considered insignificant due to the small volume of the options.

H3827,00000 EREHN A R EEER
BRREHE )N MEE BB TERX °
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26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2020

The Share Option Scheme (continuead)

As at 31 December 2020, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Schemes was 124,274,774 (2019: 128,286,376).
The following table disclosed movements of the Company’s

options granted under the Schemes for the years ended 31

December 2020 and 2019:

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F12831HILEE
Date of

Name of grantee grant

CGINCLE BitiRH

Director

£z

- LuZhen 7 December 2018

[} 2018512A7H

Employees 7 December 2018

fE8
2018F12A7H
12 June 2019
2019F6F 128

Exercisable as at

31 December 2020

R2020812A31H

T8

Weighted average

exercise price
IMEFATER

Exercisable
period

AT

12 July 2019
~ 11 June 2029
201957R128%
202956/ 11H

12 July 2019
~ 11 June 2029
201957R128%
202956/ 1R

12 June 2019
~ 11 June 2029
2019F6A128%
2029F6A11H

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

26. BRESTEI(E

BT 8(B)

MR2020F12A318 * BEREZXSE
FTEIE B R T AR L 2 AR
2D EE B124,274,7748% (2019
 :128,286,376/%) - TRERHE
2020 &2019%F 12 A31 B IEFE -
AABIREBZETEIR L ERE
2BiEnR

QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeted  Qutstanding

Exercise as at during the during the during the as at

price 1/1/2020 year year year  31/12/2020

20205 R20205

1R1A 127318

e AR RERRL  RERGTE  RERRK  HROE
HKS
BT

225 981,510 - (109,000) - 872,510

225 127,085,776 - (3,902,602 - 123,183,174

1.25 219,090 - - - 219,090

128,286,376 - (4011602 - 124274774

16,037,610

HK$2.27 - HK$2.25 - HK$2.27

2.205T 22587 22187
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

26. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 26. BREGHEI(E
The Share Option Scheme (continued) ERERTE (B)

For the year ended 31 December 2019

B Z£2019F12A31HLEE
QOutstanding Granted Exercised Forfeited  Outstanding
Date of Exercisable Exercise as at during the during the during the asat
Name of grantee grant period price 1/1/2019 year year year  31/12/2019
R2019% R2019F
1A1H 12R31A
G INE il AR 18 RATE  REARE  RERTE  RERRK RAGR
HKS
BT
Director
2
-Lu Zhen 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 225 1,090,510 - (109,000) - 981,510
~ 11 June 2029
BE 18F12A7H  201947A12HF
200956A11H
Employees 7 December 2018 12 July 2019 225 134,154,210 - (6,981,194) (87,240) 127,085,776
~ 11 June 2029
E& 18E12A7H  201947A126F
200956A11H
12 June 2019 12 June 2019 1.25 - 327,000 (107,910) - 219,090
~ 11 June 2029
201956A12H 20195641262
200956A11H
135,244,720 327,000 (7,198,104) (87,240) 128,286,376
Exercisable as at 31 6,425,554
December 2019
R2019%12A318
A F13E
Weighted average HK$2.25  HK$11.25 HK$2.38 HK$2.25 HK$2.27
EXercise price
T EE 2068 11258T  238Bm 22587  27ER
During the year ended 31 December 2020, the weighted B ZE2020F12A31 B IEFEHMAE
average closing price of the Company’s shares immediately R B BN T U TR (B B B
before the dates on which the options were exercised was BREETFE R BRI AE16.275
HK$16.27 per share (2019: HK$14.83 per share). JT ° (20194 : §Ax14.8387T) °
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27.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

The Share Option Scheme (continuead)

As at 31 December 2020, the weighted average remaining
contractual lives of the share options is 8.45 years (2019: 9.45
years).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised total expenses of RMB76,166,000 (2019:
RMB115,829,000) in relation to the shares options granted
by the Company under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
and Share Option Scheme.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern
while maximising the return to shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s
overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity
attributable to owners of the Group, comprising capital and
retained profits as disclosed in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a semi-annual basis. As part of this review, the directors
consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with
each class of capital. Based on recommendations of the
directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, new share issues and
share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt or the
redemption of existing debt.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

26.

27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

BT 8I(F
BT 8(B)

MN20205E12H31H @ BREAKTS
#)INFEFFH 58,459 (20194
9.45%) o

REZE2020F12 8308 IEFfE » &
SERRSLERRRRE XA
ERIERER B RIERERT S TR
[ e 00 7 >z 42 58 B A R 576,166,000
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

A.  Categories of financial instruments

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

28. £@iTH

A &@T ELER

As at 31 December

MA12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARETIT
Financial assets SRIE E
Financial assets at FVTPL AR EBEENTAER
Mo RtEE 509,173 418,013
Financial assets at amortised cost LA At EN S RIEE 5,663,868 5,964,618
Financial liabilities PHEE
Amortised cost BEERCA 351,431 278,781
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,617,888 1,514,231

B.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, other financial assets, time
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade and other
payables and lease liabilities. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk and interest rate risk), credit
risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management of
the Group manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on
a timely and effective manner. The risks associated
with these financial instruments and the management
policies remain unchanged from prior year.

B. TREREREBEZENMBE

AEENTIZeRTABER
5 R EMEW IR - HA S #
BE THEN RIOTEHRK
Ae -  BHREMEMNRIER
HERE ZFLRT AN
BREMERE - BRFH
TERBNRERBED SRR
(E%EREMNERR) 8
Rk RR#EEER - BRAW
] B AK 5% 5 L B B BOSR BU T
X AEBERERREMEE
ZERR - AR MBI
REGEERRE - BZFMT
EAMRREEERRBE
FRERFTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

() Market risk
(a) Currency risk
The Group has certain foreign currency
bank balances denominated in HK$ and
USS$, currencies other than the functional
currencies of the group entities, which

expose the Group to foreign currency risk.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

28. £RIEA (&

B. SRERERRZEMBEKGE

() 45 )E R
(a) E#¥mEE

REEETINERTT
REERAB TT KR SR TTAt
18 BT IFAEE

BIEEE - EX
SEmERINE =R -

==
p=!

REmERH A&

monetary assets and monetary liabilities at EEBEERBRE
the reporting date that are denominated in 2 BR A B A NS 5T
foreign currencies are as follows: (ELUNNE
Assets Liabilities
BE aE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 2020F 2019%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTrT AR¥®TR ARETET
HK$ BT 2,188,727 3,456,468 158 150
us$ E v 726,503 - - -

The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange
exposure and will consider hedging
significant foreign currency exposure when
the need arises.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

AE&EE B ATARE I
EHPEE - R
o B EEERN
R - AAGRE
FERZRHNE
RINE R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

() Market risk (continued)

(a)

Currency risk (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is mainly exposed to the
fluctuation of relevant foreign currencies
against RMB.

The following table details the Group’s
sensitivity to a 5% (2019: 5%) increase
and decrease in RMB against the relevant
foreign currencies. 5% (2019: 5%) is
the sensitivity rate used when reporting
foreign currency risk internally to the key
management personnel and represents
management’s assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency
denominated monetary items and adjusts
their translation at the end of the reporting
date for a 5% (2019: 5%) change in foreign
currency rates. The analysis illustrates the
impact for a 5% (2019: 5%) strengthening
of RMB against the relevant currencies. For
a 5% (2019: 5%) weakening of RMB against
the relevant currencies, there would be an
equal and opposite impact on the profit.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

28. 2RI E (&

B. SriERE

.
=y

2 BIE MR (&

() IEERE)

(a)

B¥mmg(E)
BT

AEBE T EHERME
RSN A R R
B E¥RER

T & #5 7 & E Y
R AR 5 RN
3% 0 K s 5%
(20194 : 5%) 2
HFRE - 5% (2019
F : 5%) A KNELR
4 HNEE [ & BT % B
M RRELLL R -
REHEE Y INEE
KA REHIRMA B
F BT E » BRK
B E B E XK
LA INEE S E Y
EEIEE - Wik
BER 7 5% (2019
F o 5%) EEH IR
CHIRRE EITH
B HMBREA
RS EEE A
B5% (20194 :
5%) B2 & o i

ARG HBEER
B7185% (20194 :
5%) @ Bl FEE
EERMMERZ
%E o
HKS$ impact US$ impact
BrEE ExyE
2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20194 20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Decrease in post-tax G A AR 5 4ME
profit for the year ~ FHES%{EFi &
asaresultofa5%  FEREA
strengthening of
RMB against the
foreign currencies

(82,071)

(129,612)

ARBTRT ARETT

(27,244) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

()

(i)

Market risk (continued)

(b)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest
rate risk in relation to lease liabilities. The
Group is also exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk through the impact of rate changes
on bank balances. The Group cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of interest rates on bank
balances and time deposits.

The Group will continue to monitor the
exposure on cash flow interest rate risk
and will consider hedging the interest rate
should the need arise. In the management’s
opinion, the Group does not have material
interest rate risk exposure and hence no
sensitivity analysis is presented.

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk

which will cause a financial loss to the Group is

arising from the amount of each class of financial

assets as disclosed in the consolidated statement

of financial position. The Group does not hold any

collateral or other credit enhancements to cover

its credit risks associated with its financial assets.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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B. SRERERRZEMBEKGE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment
(continueq)

Trade receivables

For trade receivables with gross carrying amount
of RMB48,601,000 (2019: RMB46,949,000),
the Group has applied the simplified approach
in HKFRS 9 to measure the loss allowance at
lifetime ECL. The ECL on trade receivables are
assessed individually, based on the past default
experience of the debtor, general economic
conditions of the industry in which the debtors
operate and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forward-looking information that is
available without undue cost or effort at the end
of each year.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
as 67.9% (2019: 78.3%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the PRC government
as at 31 December 2020. The Group’s remaining
customers were mainly the corporate customers,
and individually contributed less than 10% of the
total trade receivables of the Group.

In the opinion of management, the Group has no
significant credit risk for the receivables from the
PRC government.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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B.

TRERERERRRBER(E)

(i)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(i)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment
(continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

In order to minimise the credit risk with the
corporate customers, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits and credit approvals.
Before accepting any new customer, the Group
uses an internal credit scoring system to assess
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines
credit limits by customer. Other monitoring
procedures are in place to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts.

The management of the Group believes that
the Group’s credit risk in trade receivables is
significantly reduced.

Deposits and other receivables

The Group assessed the loss allowances for
deposits for rental, deposits for utilities and
others, and other receivables with gross carrying
amounts of RMB25,332,000, RMB7,991,000
and RMB21,603,000 (2019: RMB24,022,000,
RMB12,230,000 and RMB57,364,000),
respectively on 12m ECL basis.

For deposits for rental and deposits for utilities
and others, the management of the Group
has taken into account the historical default
experience and forward-looking information,
as appropriate. There had been no significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

(i)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment
(continueq)

Deposits and other receivables (continueq)

Other receivables are mainly consisted of
interest receivables from time deposits and bank
balances, advance to staff and deposits paid
for advertising services. For interest receivables
from time deposits and bank balances, the
management considered those banks are with
good reputation and transaction record. For
advance to staff, the management considered
those staff are with good credit records and will
usually pay back timely. For deposits paid for
advertising services, the management closely
monitors the progress of advertising services
rendered and takes follow-up action when the
cooperation with advertising agency ended. Only
reputable advertising agency could be selected
by the Group with good credit record.

The ECL on other receivables are assessed
individually based on historical settlement records
and past default experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current
as well as the forecast direction of conditions at
the end of each year. The management believes
that there are no significant increase in credit risk
of these amounts since initial recognition and the
Group provided impairment based on 12m ECL.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B. Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

(i)

Credit Risk and Impairment Assessment
(continued)

Deposits and other receivables (continued)

For the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019, the Group assessed the ECL for other
receivables are insignificant and thus no loss
allowance was recognised.

Bank balances/time deposits/other financial
assets measured at amortised cost

The credit risk on bank balances, time deposits
and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost other than entrusted loans to
related parties with gross carrying amounts of
RMB2,972,325,000, RMB2,198,016,000 and nil
(2019: RMB3,882,953,000, RMB1,891,600,000
and RMB49,500,000), respectively, is limited
because the counterparties are reputable
financial institutions. The entrusted loans to
related parties amounted to RMB130,000,000
and RMB260,000,000, were secured by
personal guarantee of Mr. Wu Junbao and
Mr. Xiao Guoging. In addition, each of them
made a guarantee that the Group has the right
to postpone the payment of the Company’s
dividends to Mr. Wu Junbao and Mr. Xiao
Guoqing to the amount of the entrusted loans
and interests owed by the respective borrowers
until the entrusted loans and interests are fully
paid. The management are of the opinion that
the average loss rate is insignificant and no
impairment was provided at the end of each year.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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] bk I 4 e 2R A ) JRS 18 1
f& o

RITHEE EHEHR
BEBHKA T BHREME
ATA

HRXZEFREER
TR EREE - WRA
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Sh - BREBED B A A
R #2,972,325,0007C
AER#2,198,016,0007T
KT (20194 : AR
3,882,953,0007C * AR
#1,891,600,0007T K A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

B.  Financial risk management objectives and policies

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

28. 2RI E (&

B. TREREREREIBEE

(continued)
(i) Liquidity Risk (i)  wEE LA
In the management of the liquidity risk, the EERRBESRRA
Group monitors and maintains a level of cash H - AEEEERERSE
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the BERAETNELREED
management to finance the Group’s operations KERBESHIRES KR
and mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash SEEYKFE - WRER
flows. The Group regularly reviews its major EMERBNTE - KNE
funding positions to ensure that it has adequate ETHREEEESMR
financial resources in meeting its financial W BRER RSN E
obligations. TR EL R T o
The following is the maturity analysis for financial LTAREEMFEEH
liabilities held by the Group which is based on BEMEEHA DT (ER
undiscounted remaining contractual obligations: RITBBLTEHEMD) -
Weighted  On demand Total
average  or less than 1to 2to over undiscounted Carrying
interest rate 1 year 2years 5years Syears  balances  amounts
ERE AR
METHHE  1FMR 132F 2255  iBsE 2 EE
% RVB000 RVMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARETL ARBTT ARETR ARETT AREfT ARETE
At 31 December 2020 20208128310
Trade and other payables & 7 R EAFERF1E - %l - - - %1431 31491
Lease libilties BERE 880 35110 370507 903769 680578 2309959 1,617,888
706,541 370,507 903,769 680573 2,661,390 1,969,319
At31December 2019 R2019412A431A
Trade and other payables 85 REMETFE - 218781 - - - 218781 278,781
Lease libilties i 867 321885 311,776 831,882 665006 2130219 1,514,231
600,666 311,776 831,332 665,226 2,409,000 1,793,012
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C.  Fair value measurements of financial instruments C.

()

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that are (i)
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Some of the Group’s financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. The following table gives
information about how the fair values of these
financial assets are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used).

Fair value at
Financial RN RSz AR EE Fairvalue  Valuation technique(s) and
assets 31/12/2020  31/12/2019  hierarchy  key input(s)
20205 019F AREE AERHR
TREE 128818 12R31F ER LD b
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR
Other financial 509,173 418,013 Level 3 Discounted cash flow - method was
assets used/expected return rates
measured at
FVTPL
WRARBEET E=R RRERRSRBE-ARTENE
STARR A ERL/BERE
THEE

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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28. £RIEA (&

B E 1 BELL A EE
EZAEELHBEES
LA 1EE

AEBETEREENS
BERARRAIAEBER
B NRMABREETZ
FeMEEAABENS
A (L E 2P A E R

N ABIR) B -
Significant Relationship of
unobservable  unobservable
input(s) input(s) to fair value

EXTIEE

EXTTEE BANER

BAHE NAEEZEE

Expected The higher the
retum rates expected retum,
range from the higher the fair
1.7%10 value, vice versa
5.4% (2019: (note)

3% 10 5.2%)

NFIT%E  EEERES - AR
SA%MEE  BEES R
(FEie A (hsx)

(2019% : 3%
£5.2%)
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C. Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(continued)

()

(i)

Fair value of the Group’s financial assets that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(continueq)

Note:

At 31 December 2020, if the estimated return was
5% (2019: 5%) higher/lower and the other variables
were held constant, the total carrying amount of
other financial assets would increase/decrease
by RMB54,000/RMB54,000 (2019: RMB97,000/
RMB97,000), respectively.

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurements
of financial assets

The following table presents the reconciliation of
Level 3 measurements of other financial assets
during both years:

At 1 January 2019

Purchases of other financial assets
Redemptions of other financial assets
Gains on other financial assets

At 31 December 2019
Purchases of other financial assets

Redemptions of other financial assets
Gains on other financial assets

At 31 December 2020

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3
during the year.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

28. £RIE (&

g2l

C. ERMIAZDAEENE@®E

() IEEEMEEELLAEE
SECAFETHEES
A 1E1E (B)

Mo

A2020F 128318 - fif
et E®RE A T 5%
(20194 : 5%) i H i A £
ARERTE - Hthe i
=R BRTE (B 1§ 2 Bl in,~
B AR #54,0007T, AR
#54,0007T (20194 : AR
#97,0007T, A R 197,000
o) ©

(i)  HEZRAAEETSEHR
THEEZ R

TREINMIESFELRE
=RARBEFENDR

BEZHER ¢

RMB’000

AREFIT
2019F1 A1H =
BEHMERMEE 2,856,080
fEOHEMeREE (2,467,240)
HEhEpE EWeS 29,173
M2019F12A31H 418,013
BEHMEREE 3,303,310
EOHMe R EE (3,244,302)
E b s E WS 32,152
R2020F12A31H 509,173

FARESHEER ANE L
F=M e
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

C. Fair value measurements of financial instruments C.

(continued)

(i) Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

that are recorded at amortised cost

The management of the Group considers that the
carrying amounts of financial assets and financial

liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate

to their fair values at the end of each reporting

period.

29. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Capital expenditure contracted for but
not provided in the consolidated
financial statements in respect
of acquisition of property and
equipment and leasehold land

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

28. £RIE (&

(i) AR AR 2 E
EREHBR BN I1EE

AEEERERR  REEH
BRI P ABERAARNE
REEMGRABNREER
HERZEREPROAABEN

4\
il

29. BEAREE

MBI R LR EAREE L
EATHERNEFA M BRET
AHRBBR B AR

As at 31 December

M12831H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT
82,717 63,379

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT



30. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 30.
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities

arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-

cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are

those for which cash flow were, or future cash flow will be,

classified in the Group’s consolidated statement of cash

flows as cash flows from financing activities.

At 1 January 2019

Financing cash flows

New leases entered

Interest expenses
Accrued/prepaid issue costs

At 31 December 2019

Financing cash flows

Dividend declared

New leases entered

Interest expenses

Termination of lease agreements
Covid-19-related rent concessions

At 31 December 2020

1201951 A18
BERSRE
ST AL
FEREY

fezt /FRE{TRA
201912 /318
BERSRE
BESREE
I )
MERY
RHERE
ENAERREEENELER

20205125318

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

RMETDMEEEENEER

TRFMAEERERDIELAR
VR (BREREKIFREEE) - B
BEBMELENARR/ERERED
REARRREREFRARERAR
ERERADBAREZBMELD

RERENEE -

Accrued

Lease Dividend issue
liabilities payable costs Total
HE8E ERfRE  ESRTKA fit
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANREFTT ARETTT ANREFT ANRETTT
1,445,065 34,112 556 1,479,733
(346,747) (84,112) (90,882) (471,741)
284,392 - - 284,392
131,521 - - 131,521
- - 90,326 90,326
1,514,231 - - 1,514,231
(390,571) (422,139) - (812,710)
- 422,139 - 422,139
407,677 - - 407,677
146,053 - - 146,053
(36,880) - - (36,880)
(22,622) - - (22,622)
1,617,888 - - 1,617,888
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The relationships between the Company and related

parties are as follows:

Name of the related parties

B E A8

Anhui Xinhua University

(ZRERESRT)

(“Anhui Xinhua University”)

(TR BEEER)

The School of Clinical Medicine of Anhui Medical
University

(R B RIR 2R K 2 2t )

(“School of Clinical Medicine”)

(ERREE 28 )

Xinhua Investment Group

MEREEE

Anhui Xinhua Boyi Landscape Engineering Co., Ltd.

(RN ERBESBIREROBRAF)

(“Xinhua Boyi”)

(TFrEEEE )

Anhui Xinhua Real Estate Co., Ltd.

(REERERMEGR AT

(“Anhui Xinhua Real Estate”)

(L REEREHE])

Xinhua Holdings Group

EEREE

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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31. FEBLIXS

() AR =EERIEE T < H 8RR
™

Relationship with the Company
EAA N B BRI R

Controlled by Mr. Wu Junbao
RRERA AT

Controlled by Mr. Wu Junbao
RRER

Controlled by Mr. Wu Junbao
RRERFTAEES
Controlled by Mr. Wu Wei

R RE S

Controlled by Mr. Wu Wei
RRE TS

Controlled by Mr. Xiao Guoaging
X H BE A
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For the year ended 31 December 2020

31.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(i)

Save for those disclosed in other notes to the
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered
into the following transactions and balance with the

31.

related parties:

Name of a related party

BB L B

Anhui Xinhua University
ZHRETES

School of Clinical Medicine
Xinhua Boyi

MEBE

Xinhua Investment Group
MEREEE

Xinhua Holdings Group
MEEREE

Anhui Xinhua Real Estate

RREREHE

Nature of transactions

RZME

Service income

BRAS WA

Rental income

HERA

Construction cost

BERFAX

Interest income (note 20)

S ONCi 7))

Interest income (note 20)

F 2 (BtEE20)

Interest expenses on lease
liability

HEaENN SR

Lease liability (note)

HE A B

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group entered into a new lease agreement for the
use of offices with Anhui Xinhua Real Estate for 3

years. The Group has recognised an addition of
right-of-use asset and lease liability amounted to
RMB964,000 and RMB867,000 respectively.

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEE

RBAXS (&

(i)

Bz & BF 7% Rk E A MY RE AT IR
BEI AEEEREY TR
AT R M ek -

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31BLLEE

2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETIT
1,795 1,376
6,752 6,575

- 400

1,980 =
6,343 =

39 =

867 =

MicE : MBI ZE20205F 12 A31HIEFE -

REE E W E AL E B
RERLHHE W - HHIF -
AEECHERATIEERAEEERE
E8EDR/ARKEI64,0007T K
AE#867,0007T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

31. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continuead) 31. BBAERS (&

(i)  Compensation of key management personnel (iii)

The remuneration of directors of the Company and
other members of key management of the Group
during the year was as follows:

TREEABHM

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

ARBAEZERAKEEMBEER

ERABRASF
™

JZ &Y % B 20

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFE

2020 2019

2020F 2019%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMET T ARETTT

Short-term benefits 72 HAtE A 5,257 3,438

Post-employment benefits BEER 1212 A 28 84
Equity-settled share-based AR AEE R

payments expense AR TR 1,351 2,055

6,636 5,577

288 China East Education Holdings Limited ® FERAFHEERER AT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

32.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries at 31

December 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

HELTAR

Anhui Xinhua Education Group Co., Ltd.
CHNEHRSBERAR
(formerly known as Anhui Xinhua
Education Development Co., Ltd.)
(BRI EHERRERARA)
China East Education Investment Limited

PERSTHERAARAA

China Xinhua Vocational Education Holdings

Limited B ERXABERER LR

Hefei Xinhua Chuangzhi Education
Management Co., Ltd.
AENEAEHEERERAR

Hefei Xinhua East Education Investment
Co, Ltd. AEEFZER AR REER

1A

Hefei Xinhua Xueli
Education Investment Co., Ltd.

AEHERNBERARRAR

Hefei Xinhua Zhiyuan
Education Investment Co., Ltd.

AREFEERIERARRAA

Place/country

and date of
establishment/
incorporation
FRL/ AL
e/ BRRAH

30 March 2004
PRC
20044330
G

19 October 2018
BVI
2018F10A419R
EEEBRHE
10 August 2018
Hong Kong
201848 /108
M

28 August 2018
PRC

20188 28H
G

6 November 2016
PRC

201611 A6H
i

6 November 2016
PRC

201611 A6H
i

6 November 2016
PRC

2016411 A6H
G

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
BETRER
Rip/ERER

RMB100,000,000
ARH
100,000,0007T

US$1
E

HKS1
1T

RMBS5,000,000
AR 5,000,0007C

RMB1,000,000
AR%1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
ARE1,000,0007

RMB1,000,000
AR 1,000,0007C

32.

AAREENE A RINFE
20204 K2019F12A31H * AR
AEEMBARMFIBAT
Equity interest
attributable to the Group
as at 31 December  Principal activities
KEEM2A318  and country of operation
JEfh R AR FEXBRELER
2020 2019
2020  2019F
% %
100 100 Education Investment
HERE
100 100 Investment holding
RERR
100 100 Investment holding
REER
100 100 Education Investment
YERE
100 100 Education Investment
HERE
100 100 Education Investment
HERE
100 100 Education Investment
YERE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

THE COMPANY (continued)

Name of subsidiaries

MEARGHE

Sichuan Xinhua Jinjin
Education Investment Co., Ltd.
mFES2HEREAEB AT

Chengdu Tianji Education Management

Co., Ld. KBABHEEEARAA

Anhui Wontone Automobile Maintenance
Institute ZHERTEEELR

Anhui New East Culinary Technical School
ZRNR N THERIER

Anhui New East Culinary Institute
TRMR A T HAEEER

Anhui Xinhua Computer Institute
TRNEEREBER

Anhui Xinhua Technical School Co., Ltd.
CHHERTERERAT]

Place/country

and date of
establishment/
incorporation
R/ SRR
%,/ BXRAH

29 May 2018
PRC
2018F5H429H
Gl

16 April 2001
PRC
200147 16H
t

19 March 2007
PRC
2007F3A19H
t

30 October 2016
PRC
2016F10A30H
e

2 March 2006
PRC
20063 A2H
EF

28 December 2004
PRC

200412 A28H
e

10 April 2017
PRC
2017848108
e

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
BETRER
i3 /AR

RMB50,000,000

AR 50,000,0007

RMB600,000
AR#600,00070

RMB30,000,000
AK30,000,0007C

RMB1,500,000
ARH1,500,0007

RMB40,000,000
AK#40,000,0007C

RMB5,000,000
ARH5,000,0007

RMB1,500,000
ARH1,500,0007

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

Equity interest

attributable to the Group
as at 31 December
AEEM2A31A
JEfh R AR
2020 2019
2020% 20194
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

32. RABEEMBEATNFEE

Principal activities
and country of operation

IRXHREEER

Education Investment

BERE

Education Investment

BERE

Provision of automobile related
educational services in the
PRC

RAEREETEEENHE
i

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

RPEREET HEBNHE
FRi%

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

RAEREETEENHE
FRi%

Provision of internet technology
related educational services
in the PRC

R EIR (B G B AR B
HHE R

Provision of internet technology
related educational services
in the PRC

A EIR (B2 B B AR B A
HHE RS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continueq)

32. XRBFEEMRBATNFEE

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/ attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital as at 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiaries R/ BT BEARAR AEER12A318  and country of operation
i} yNGEA %/ ERR A Rip/ AR e I IRFBREZER
2020 2019
20206 2019F
% %

Beijing Wisezone 1 November 2005 RMB2,550,000 100 100 Provision of data technology
Educational Technology Co., Ltd. PRC AR#2,550,0007C related educational services
EREEEREERMERAR 2005%11A1H in the PRC

H R IR EREER R AR
HE R

Chengdu New East Culinary Technical 17 April 2018 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
School Co., Ltd. PRC AR%1,000,0007 educational services in the
BENR AR AR IERER AR 2018%4A178 PRC
(formerly known Chengdu City s R B SRR AR
Longquanyi District New East Culinary %

Technical School Co., Ltd) (R &8
ERERARA AR IERERAF)

Chengdu New East Culinary Vocational 14 January 2003 RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Training School Co., Ltd. FKESTE A = PRC AR%3,500,0007 educational services in the
ABERASE I SRERAR fomery 200851 A14A PRC
known as Chengdu New East Culinary s R E R E T SRR MR
School) (AR EH R A THER) FR%

Guangzhou Gity Panyu District Wontone 4 July 2011 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Automobile Vocational Training School PRC AR#500,0007 educational services in the
ENTEBRSRIERFEIIER 201157R4R PRC

e R BRI RENHE
FR%

Guangzhou Gity Panyu District educational 17 February 2009 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
senvices in the PRC New East PRC AEE500,00070 RPERE R BN AE
Culinary Vocational Training School 2009F2A17H Rt
BATEBRFR THEREE)ER @

Guiyang City Xinhua Computer 10 July 2007 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Secondary Vocational School PRC ARE500,0007 related educational services
EBmHEERT FREEN 2007%7A108 in the PRC

G FAF EIR {2 B B AR AR
B RS
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

32. RABEEMBEATNFEE

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/  attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital asat 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiaries XL/ AL BETRER AEEM2A318  and country of operation
i) yNGEA %,/ BXRAH Rip/ AR [ElE AR FEEHREEAR
2020 2019
20206  2019F
% %

Guiyang New East Culinary 8 December 2016 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Technical School PRC ARH500,0007 educational services in the
ERHR A RHRIER 2016512A8H PRC

i R B R EENHE
fs

Guiyang New East Culinary Institute 28 December 2007 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary services in
BEBMEA RSN PRC AR#500,0007 the PRC

2007512/28H R ER AR AR
i

Guizhou Xinhua Computer Institute 11 July 2005 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology

BEMFEERER PRC AKE1,000,0007 related educational services
200567 A 11H in the PRC

t O B Rt 61 B AR H R
HHE RS

Hangzhou City Yuhang District 5 July 2015 RMB600,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
New East Culinary School PRC ARE600,00070 educational services in the
MMTRRRIR T 2R 2015%7 A5H PRC

t R EREE RN E
R

Henan Xinhua Computer Institute 7 April 2003 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology

MENEEKER PRC AK1,000,0007C related educational services
2008F4A7H in the PRC

t FAF EIR {2 B B AR AR
BB R

Hunan Wontone Automobile Vocational 10 May 2010 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Training School Hf 818 T2 B % PRC AR#500,00070 educational services in the
$EFIIZH (formerly known as Hunan 201065A108 PRC
Wontone Automobile Repair Vocational e RPEREE S EEENHE
Training School) (FifE iR &M@ BRE s
EHIER)

Jiangsu New East Culinary Training School 12 April 2002 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
IER A TR 2R PRC AR#500,00070 educational services in the

200244128 PRC
ilo? R E R ERNHE

oy

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. XRBFEEMRBATNFEE

THE COMPANY (continueq)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/ attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital as at 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiaries R/ BT BEARAR AEER12A318  and country of operation
i} yNGEA %/ ERR A Rip/ AR FElE AR IRFBREZER
2020 2019
20206  2019F
% %

Jiangxi Nanchang New East Culinary 14 March 2005 RMB1,800,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Secondary Vocational School PRC AR 1,800,007 educational services in the
TERENRSTHTEER 200563A14A PRC

H R EREETERNHE
T

Jiangxi Nanchang Xinhua Computer 22 March 2005 RMB2,600,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Secondary Vocational School PRC AR E2,600,0007C related educational services
IREEENEERTEER 200543A22A inthe PRC

i FAF LRt R AR B AR
04 A s

Jiangxi Wontone Automobile 13 July 2015 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Technical School PRC AR%500,0007 educational services in the
TRERERIER 201567A13A PRC

e R ER IR RENHE
FR%
Nanjing Culinary Technical School 16 July 2007 RMB300,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
HRRARIER PRC AR300,0007 educational services in the
200747 16H PRC
i R EREET RS
FR%

Shandong New East Culinary 14 July 2009 RMB3,000,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Vocational Training School Co., Ltd. PRC AR3,000,0007C educational services in the
WRAR A ZHBEENSBRERAT 200067 A14R PRC
(formerly known as Shandong New ks RAEREEZ BN AE
East Culinary Vocational Training School) 5
(AR RIS TR R 2h)

Shandong Xinhua Computer 27 May 2003 RMB3,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
Institute Co., Ltd. PRC AR3,000,0007C related educational services
WRHEERBRARAA 2003557278 in the PRC
(formerly known as Shandong Xinhua A AR EIR (B B B AR
Computer Institutell)) (FIERHEE HHERE

2R
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

Name of subsidiaries

MEARGHE

Shanxi New East Culinary
Vocational Training School

R R BRI 2R

Shanxi Xinhua Computer
Vocational Training School
Wlifiiead 12 SpE

Shanghai Xinman Culinary Training Co., Ltd.

LB EREEIBRAT

Shenyang New East
Culinary School Co., Ltd.

BRI RARRARAR

(formerly services known as

Shenyang New East Culinary School)

(MIRBBHR ) ZHER)

Shijiazhuang City Luancheng District
New East Culinary Vocational Skills

Training School Co., Ltd.
e THE il
BERAEIERERAR

(formerly known as Shijiazhuang City

Luancheng District New East Culinary
Vocational Training School) (BTfA
IR R T ERR T2

Shijiazhuang New East
Secondary Vocational School
REENRSTEZEER

Place/country

and date of
establishment/
incorporation
R/ SRR
%,/ BXRAH

7 December 2010
PRC
2010%12A7H
il

19 August 2005
PRC
200558 H19H
e

11 September 2013
PRC

20139/ 11H

i

14 December 2010
PRC
2010%12A14H
il

9 July 2010
PRC
201067 A9H
G

20 May 2005
PRC
200545208
TE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Issued and fully
paid share/
registered capital
BETRER
i3 /AR

RMB500,000
ARH500,00070

RMB1,000,000
ARH1,000,0007

RMB3,000,000
ARH3,000,0007

RMB500,000
AE#500,0007

RMB500,000
AE#500,00070

RMB2,000,000
ARE2,000,0007C

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

Equity interest

attributable to the Group

as at 31 December

REER12A31A
[ElE AR
2020 2019

20205 2019

% %

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

100 100

32. RABEEMBEATNFEE

Principal activities
and country of operation

IRXHREEER

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

R B R EENHE
fs

Provision of internet technology
related educational services
in the PRC

R EIR (B B AR B
055 R

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

RAEREET I AR
R

Provision of culinary related
educational in the PRC

REEREETHERNYE
oS

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

RAEREETEENSE
iy

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

RPEREET HEBNHE
FRi%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 32. XRBFEEMRBATNFEE

THE COMPANY (continueq)

Place/country
and date of Issued and fully Equity interest
establishment/ paid share/ attributable to the Group
incorporation registered capital as at 31 December  Principal activities
Name of subsidiaries R/ BT BEARAR AEER12A318  and country of operation
i} yNGEA %/ ERR A Rip/ AR FElE AR IRFBREZER
2020 2019
20206  2019F
% %

Shijiazhuang Xinhua Computer School 17 July 2005 RMB2,000,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology

ERIGTESRER PRC AR%2,000,0007C related educational services
2005%7R17H in the PRC

e LRt 6 B AR AR
BB IR

Chengdu Wontone Automobile Vocational 19 March 2010 RMB1,000,000 100 100 Provision of automobile related
Training School Co., Ltd. FX#EE S PRC AR®1,000,0007C educational services in the
BEBERESRERAR fomely 201063719 PRC
known as Sichuan Wontone Automobile RAEREE SERENHE
Vocational Training Institute) (1800118 073
BEBREEER)

Sichuan Xinhua Computer Institute 25 May 2004 RMB3,500,000 100 100 Provision of internet technology
mIFEERER PRC AR®3,500,0007 related educational services

2004E5H25H inthe PRC
i FAFR L Rt R B AR B R
0 A ks

Yunnan New East Culinary 14 February 2012 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Vocational Training School PRC AR%500,0007 educational services in the
ERMEA TEREEIER 2012%2R 148 PRC

e KRR HRENHE
FR%
Changsha New East Culinary Institute 12 September 2002 RMB1,600,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
ROFRN w2 PRC AR®1,600,0007C educational services in the
200269A12H PRC
i R EREE RS
FR%

Zhengzhou City New East Culinary 26 December 2008 RMB500,000 100 100 Provision of culinary related
Vocational Skills Training School Co. Ltd. ~ PRC AR®500,00070 educational services in the
BMMHRA T ERR R 2R 2008412265 PRC
BB/AF (formerly known as Zheng ks R E R SRR A
Zhou City New East Culinary Vocational 5

Training School) (RITBEPM AR 7 5E
BEEER)
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

THE COMPANY (continued)

32. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

Place/country

and date of Issued and fully
establishment/ paid share/
incorporation registered capital

Name of subsidiaries FXSL/ SRR BEIRAR

i) yNGEA %,/ BXRAH Rip/ AR

Zhengzhou Wontone Automobile Vocational 12 March 2009 RMB2,000,000
Training School Co., Ltd, EpHERTE PRC AR®2,000,0007C
B ERABRAT formedyknown 200938128
as Zhengzhou City Wontone Automoblle &

Vocational Training School) (1 E5
ERAEREEIER)

Chongging City New East Culinary 12 March 2008 RMB500,000
Vocational Training Institute PRC AR#500,0007
EEMHR S AR 2 2008F3A12H

Gl

Beijing Langjie Technology Co., Ltd. 28 September 2006 RMB20,000,000

E BRI BRAR PRC AK#20,000,0007
2006594 28H
il

Tianjin Langjie Technology Co., Ltd. XZER 16 July 2019 RMB5,000,000

EREBRAA PRC AR¥5,000,0007C
201957 A 16H
el

Chengdu Oumandi Vocational Skills Training 4 September 2019 RMB1,000,000
School Co., Lid. X#BISHBERASE  PRC AR#1,000,0007T
HERARAT 201959R4R

iz

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which
providing vocational education services, in the opinion of the
Company’s directors, principally affected the results or assets

of the Group.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

32. ARRTEMBARNEEE

Equity interest

attributable to the Group
as at 31 December
AEEM2A31A
JEfh R AR
2020 2019
2020% 20194
% %
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100
100 100

Principal activities
and country of operation
IREBREAZER

Provision of automobile related
educational services in the
PRC

RPEREESEEENHE
FR%

Provision of culinary related
educational services in the
PRC

R B R EENHE
FRi%

Technology development,
consulting, promotion and
services in the PRC

RAERMRE - BF - #E
KR

Technology development,
consulting, promotion and
services in the PRC

RAEIR RS - B
Rt

Provision of fashion and beauty
related educational services
in the PRC

FAF BIR L i B A R
HER

EREINARBAEERAREBZFEN
SENEENEE  REBEHER
BHARBEHB AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

32.

33.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (continued)

Each of the subsidiaries is limited liability company and has
adopted 31 December, as their financial year end date.

None of the subsidiaries has issued any debt securities at the
end of the year.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-management retirement benefits scheme operated by
the PRC government. The Group is required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs as determined by
respective local government authority to the retirement
benefits scheme to fund the benefits. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the retirement benefits scheme is
to make the specified contribution under the scheme.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme for all employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group, in funds
under the control of trustees. The Group contributes a certain
percentage of the relevant payroll costs to the scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employees.

The amounts of contributions made by the Group in respect
of the retirement benefit schemes during both years are
disclosed in notes 11 and 12.

32.

33.

For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE2020512 831 AILFE

FARNEERMBEA RN (E

EWB AR AEERETA R MER
12A31BEAEMBEEH LA -

R - B 2 R B BT
i -

RAKBRGE

FEMEARNEE SETERTE
ERBIZKE RARRENEIKE -
7R BB 5 BN R SR & 0 05 BURT 1
188 1 E B L Bl e AR AR AR R 5 1 4 1 £
o URENREES - AEEHEH
RIREN T EIAME — R ERRIRA S
TEHARTE M B o

AEBESHBEERENHZERHIME
RIEREHE - HETEIMEERAKE
MEEDRFE - YHRBIUEEAE
BMESEE - AKENIEBEZT
ETHAREREFERAETESL
PR o

AEBREFERNFERERNEIELA
MRS BRI R12 <
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For the year ended 31 December 2020
EZE 2020512 B 31 AILFE

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 34.

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) %5 Bi #8R i F (&)

MFBIRR R R A D B

As at 31 December

Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment Y EYSE
Investment in a subsidiary RETB AR E
Right-of-use asset EREEE
Deposit for rental HEZS

Loan to a subsidiary (note i)

Current assets
Prepayments and other receivables
Amounts due from subsidiaries (note ii)

Interest receivables JFEUF 2

Time deposits TEHATF K

Bank balances and cash RITERNIRS
Current liabilities RENEE

Trade and other payables B 5 Rk EAMENFRIE

Amount due to a subsidiary (note iii)

Lease liability HEAE

Net current assets REEEFE

Total assets less current liabilities BEAERRBEE
Capital and reserves BEARR HE

Share capital (note 25) A&7 (fF7525)
Reserves (e

Total equity DB

Notes:

[ — XM B A B IR &K

(B aED

REBEE

B RR N Bt FE UK IR

& B BB A =) R 3E (B 5D

FERTB B A 5708 (M i)

M12H31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AREFIT
357 461
870 1,971
274 234
50,000 -
51,501 2,666
395 501
46,800 35,815
6,942 42,090
2,198,016 1,791,600
1,635,420 2,563,372
3,887,573 4,433,378
490 403
50,801 50,796
888 1,931
52,179 53,130
3,835,394 4,380,248
3,886,895 4,382,914
193 193
3,886,702 4,382,721
3,886,895 4,382,914

The amount represented the loan to Anhui Xinhua Education,
which was unsecured and carried the fixed interest rate of
7% per annum. This loan will be repayable on 24 September
2024.

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT

ZRERATBNEARERENE
K AEIIR MR E T FHERT%ET
B o ZEEFBR2024F9H24H

G

T
(il



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (continued) =& B #3R K Mi s (&)

34.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

34.

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HZE2020F 12 A31 BILFEE

BBRRREE D RRE (E)

Notes: (continued) s : (48)

i, The amounts were non-trade in nature, unsecured, interest- i ZEFBRIEESEE - EER
free and repayable on demand. The maximum outstanding TEr B RBREREE - RBE
balance during the year ended 31 December 2020 was 2020@12)51 B1HILEFE » RE
RMB46,800,000 (31 December 2019: RMB35,815,000). The BiEwRes A AR 46,800,000
Group measured the loss allowance of amounts due from 7_E (2019%F12A31H : AR
subsidiaries equal to 12m ECL. As there is no significant 35,815,0007T) ° ANEETE R
increase in credit risk since initial recognition and those Pt A R IER E B BB 1218
subsidiaries are profitable and of good credit records, which RATEHEEEE - BN B & RER
also maintain good cashflow, the management of the Group PAZRAE B R\ B 37 £ AR 38 i B 5% 5
were of the opinion that the impairment loss was insignificant MEBARAAF AR RITEER
and no loss allowance was provided. B MEFBBRORESR A%

BEEEERAREBEBMTEMKR
WHEEFTIRE B -
i.  The amount was due to Anhui Xinhua Education, non-trade in ii ZHENENTERBIERS B
nature, unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. FESME  BER  THERA
BREREE -
Movement in the Company’s reserves KAREEEE
Share-based
Share payments  Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total
PARR 1R A AL

BRin s E B R Z5EE At

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETT ARETTT AREFTT

At 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1H 583 8,125 (31,997) (23,339

Capitalisation issue B EAT (154) = - (154)

Issue of new shares upon Listing S E1T#IAR 4,315,853 - - 4,315,853

Issue of new shares upon exercise  1T{F FREA AL AR IR 2417

of the over-allotment options ;D 48,583 - - 48,583

Transaction costs attributableto ~ Z /TP FEIE L ZAA

issue of shares (95,800) - - (95,800)
Profit and total comprehensive FAMBRZEKELE

income for the year - - 6,300 6,300
Recognition of equity-settled share-  HER LA EE R

based payments S - 115,829 - 115,829
Issue of new shares upon exercise  {T{EBEMIER 21T R

of share options 37,610 (22,161) - 15,449
At 31 Decernber 2019 320194 127318 4,306,625 101,793 05697) 4382721
Loss and total comprehensive FABBRZERT A

expense for the year - - (158,041) (158,041)
Recognition of equity-settled share-  HER AR EE MR

based payments <t - 76,166 = 76,166
Issue of new shares upon exercise  1T{EERRRIERZ1 T3 IR

of share options 20,473 (12,478) - 7,995
Dividend distribution (note 13) BB IE(HIFE13) (422,139) - - (422,139)
At 31 December 2020 R2020F12A31H 3,904,959 165,481 (183,738) 3,886,702
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Five-year Financial Information & F 8 #%& &

A summary of the consolidated statement of profit or loss and of REBEEF AT BFENE HERR
the consolidated assets and liabilities of the Group for the last five ket EERAGERESFIAT

financial years is as set out below:

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Revenue WA

Profit before income tax BRPTISHL A

Income tax expense FEHE R

Profit and total TR
comprehensive income 2ENEHEE

Consolidated Assets and Liabilities

Total assets BEE
Total liabilities waf
Net assets BEFE

EptERER
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31HLEE

Audited

REK
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20205 20194 20184 20174 20164
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®TR) (ARMTD) (ARETRD) (RETD ARETR)
3,648,892 3,905,306 3,264,964 2,850,165 2,335,730
443,748 1,069,521 687,004 832,155 719,657
(186,134) (221,703) (171,863) (170,965) (132,278)
257,614 847,818 515,141 661,190 587,379

EHEEREE
As at 31 December
W12A31H

Audited

REK
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
20204 20194 20184 20174 20164
(RMB’000) (RMB'000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)
(AR®Tn) (AREfm) (AREFD) (AR%Tn) (AR®ETI)
9,821,294 9,677,862 2,815,535 3,518,325 2,648,144
(3,781,256) (3,657,460) (1,942,904 (1,911,601) (1,583,041)
6,040,038 6,120,402 872,631 1,606,724 1,065,103

China East Education Holdings Limited ® HERAHFERER QT
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